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NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

This Prospectus is being displayed on the website to make the Prospectus accessible
to more investors. The Philippine Stock Exchange assumes no responsibility for the
correctness of any of the statements made or opinions or reports expressed in the
Prospectus. Furthermore, the Philippine Stock Exchange makes no representation as
to the completeness of the Prospectus and disclaims any liability whatsocver for any
loss arising from or in reliance in whole or in part on the contents of the Prospectus.



PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK

9™ Floor PNB Financial Center

President Diosdado Macapagal Boulevard

Pasay City

Telephone Number- (632) 8916040 to 70/ 5263131
Facsimile Number (632) 8340780

This Prospectus relates to the offer and sale of 423,962,500 common shares (the
“Shares”) with a par value 840.00 per share of Philippine National Bank (“PNB" or
the “Merged Bank™), a corporation organized under Philippine law. The Shares
comprise of 423,962,500 new shares to be issued by PNB by way of a primary offer
(the “Primary Offer”) to the shareholders of Allied Banking Corporation (“Allied
Bank”), whose Merger with PNB was approved by the Securitics and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC™) on 17 January 2013, using the Exchange Ratio of 130 PNB
common shares for each Allied Bank common share and 22.763 PNB common sharcs

for each Allied Bank preferred share. The Shares will be listed and traded on The
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.

Upon the approval of the Merger by the SEC, the Shares were deemed issued at a
price of B70.00 per Share (the “Tssue Price™) in accordance with the Plan of Merger of
the banks. The determination of the Issue Price is further discussed on page 45 of this
Prospectus and is based on the share-swap ratio proposed by ING Bank, NV. As a
result of the Merger, PNB will have a combined outstanding capital stock of
1,086,208,416 common shares, of which 423,962,500 new common shares are issucd
to the Allied Bank stockholders with an issue value of P29.677,375,000.00,

The Merger is intended to strengthen and consolidate PNB’s and Allied Bank’s long-
term strategic business plans with PNB as the surviving bank. The Merger marks a
special milestone for both PNB and Allied Bank. The synergies arising from the
broadened network, diversificd deposit base and improved scale will provide a
compelling value proposition for their various stakeholders. In creating the country’s
fourth largest privately-owned bank, the Merged Bank will be in a prime position to
improve customer experience and lead industry innovation. Moreover, it will yield
substantial benefits for its customers and provide more opportunities for its
employees,

As a result of the merger, PNB is the 4™ largest private domestic bank in the
Philippines with a combined distribution network of 656 branches and offices
nationwide and combined total assets of B618.1 billion as of 31 December 2013. In
addition, it has the largest international footprint across the Asia Pacific Region,
Europe, the Middle East and North America and a stronger platform to offer a wider

range of personal and corporate banking products and services, and become a leading
player in its chosen markets.

While there are no cash proceeds from the Merger, it is expected to result in revenue
enhancements and cost savings. Cost savings will potentially come from branch re-
engineering, economies of scale, consolidation of overlapping systems and corporate



indirect overheads, realignment of front offices and the optimization of back office
processing and support functions. The Merger is further expected to support asset
growth and enable the Bank to comply with the higher capital ratio requirements of

Basel III beginning 2014, particularly on the prescribed capital conservation buffer of
2.5% for Common Equity T1 (CET1).

The accounting treatment for the Merger was made in accordance with PFRS 3. The

Merger was accounted for under the Purchase Method, adopting the following main
principles;

- Assets and liabilities, including unrecorded intangible assets and contingent
liabilities of the “acquirce™ will be taken up at fair value as of the date of the
Merger in the books of the “acquirer”

- Prior years’ financial statements will not be restated and the income statement
will only incorporate the results of the “acquirec” from the date of merger

- Equity of the “acquirer” is increased by the amount of the acquisition cost,
equivalent to the number of new shares of the “acquirer” to be issued
multiplied by the issue price

- The difference between the acquisition cost and fair value of the net assets of
the “acquiree” as of the date of the Merger will be recorded as goodwill.

There are no underwriters, brokers/dealers engaged for this transaction and no party
will receive a transaction tee from PNB from the issuance of the Shares.

Each holder of Shares will be cntitled to such dividends as may be declared by PNB’s
Board of Directors (the “Board™), provided that any stock dividend declaration
requires the approval of sharcholders holding at least two-thirds of PNB’s total
outstanding capital stock; provided further that the Bangko Scntral ng Pilipinas (the
“BSP”) approves the declaration of dividends. Dividends may be declared only from
PNB’s unrestricted retained earnings, Please sce a more detailed discussion of PNB's
dividend policy under “Dividends Policy” on pagc 47 of this Prospectus,

The listing of the Shares is subject to the approval of the Philippine Stock Exchange,
Inc. (the “PSE"). An application to list the Shares had been submitted to the PSE on
November 2013. Such an approval for listing is permissive only and does not
constitute a recommendation or endorsement by the PSE or the SEC of the Sharcs.

Before making an investment decision, prospective investors should carcfully
consider the risks associated with an investment in the Shares. These risks include:

. risks related to PNR;

risks relating to the Philippines;

risks associated with the Shares; and

risks relating to certain statistical information in this Prospectus



See the section entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 28 of this Prospectus,
which, while not intended to be an exhaustive enumeration of all risk, must be
considered in connection with a purchase of the Shares,

An application is being made to the SEC to register the Shares under the provisions of

the Securities Regulation Code of the Philippines (Republic Act No, B799) (the
“S‘RCD!).

A REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING TO THESE SECURITIES
HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION BUT HAS NOT YET BEEN DECLARED EFFECTIVE. NO
OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF
THE PURCHASE PRICE CAN BE ACCEPTED OR RECEIVED UNTIL THE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT HAS BECOME EFFECTIVE, AND ANY
SUCH OFFER MAY BE WITHDRAWN OR REVOKED, WITHOUT
OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY KIND, AT ANY TIME PRIOR
TO NOTICE OF ITS ACCEPTANCE GIVEN AFTER THE EFFECTIVE
DATE. AN INDICATION OF INTEREST IN RESPONSE HERETO
INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY KIND. THIS
PROSPECTUS SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AND OFFER TO SELL OR THE
SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY,

No representation is made by PNB regarding the legality of an investment in the
Shares under any legal, investment or similar laws or regulations. The contents of this
Prospectus arc not investment, legal or tax advice. Prospective investors should
consult their own counsel, accountant and other advisors as to legal, tax, business,
fancial and related aspects of a purchase of the Shares. In making any investment
decision regarding the Sharcs, prospective investors must rely on their own

examinations of PNB and the terms of the share swap, including the merits and risks
involved.

No person has been authorized to give any information or 10 make any representation
other than those contained in this Prospectus and, if given or made, such information
ot representation must not be relicd upon as having been authorized by PNB. This
Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to
purchase any securitics other than the Shares or an offer to sell or the solicitation of an
offer to purchase such securities by any person in any circumstances in which such
offer or solicitation is unlawful. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale of
the Shares offered hereby shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that
therc has been no change in the affairs of PNB since the date hereof or that the
information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the datc hereof.



Presentation of Financial Information

PNB’s financial statements are reported in Pesos and are prepared based on its
accounting policies, which are in accordance with the Philippinc Financial Reporting

Standards (“PFRS”) issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council of the
Philippines.

The financial information for the year ended 31 December 2012, included in this
Prospectus, represents the consolidated accounts of PNB and its subsidiaries. The
financial information of PNB as of and for the period ended 31 December 2013
represcnt the accounts of PNB as the Merged Bank. Unless otherwise stated, all

financial information relating to PNB contained hercin is stated in accordance with
PFRS.

Figures in this Prospectus have been subject to rounding adjusiments. Accordingly,
figures shown in the same item of information may vary, and figures which are totals
may not be an arithmetic aggregate of their components,

PNB’s fiscal year begins on 1 January and ends on 31 December of each year, SGV &
Co. has audited and rendercd an unqualified report on PNB’s financial statements as

of and for the years ended 31 December 2013, 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011

Forward-Looking Statements

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements that are by their nature subject to
significant risks and uncertainties. These forward-looking statements include, without
limitation, statements relating to:

. known and unknown risks;

. uncertainties and other factors that may cause PNB’s actual results,
performance or achicvements to be materially different from any future results:
and

. performance or achievements expressed or implied by forward-looking
gtatements,

Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding
PNB’s present and future business strategics and the environment in which PNB will
operate in the future. Important factors that could causc some or all of the assumptions
not (o occur or cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially
from those in the forward-looking statements include, among other things:

. PNB’s ability to successfully implement its strategies;
. PNB’s ability to anticipate and respond to market trends;

. PNB’s ability to successfully manage its growth;



. the condition of and changes in, the Philippine, Asian or global economies;
. any future political instability in the Philippincs;
- PNB’s ability to secure additional financing;

. Changes in interest rates, inflation rates and the value of the Peso against the
1J.5. dollar and other currencies:;

. Changes in laws, rules and regulations, including tax laws and regulations and
licensing requirements, in the Philippines; and

. Competition in the Philippine banking industry.

Additional factors that could cause PNB's actual results, performance or achievements
to differ materially from forward-looking stalements include, but are not limited to,
those disclosed under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Prospectus. These forward-
looking statements speak only as of the date of this Prospectus.

This Prospectus includes statements regarding PNB's expectations and projections for
future operating performance and business prospects. The words “believe”, “plan”,
“expect”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “project”, “intend” and similar words identify
forward-looking statements, In addition, all statements other than statements of
historical facts included in this Prospectus are forward-looking statements. Statements
in the Prospectus as to the opinions, beliefs and intentions of PNB accurately reflect in
all material respects the opinions, beliefs and intentions of its management as to such
matters as of the datc of this Prospectus, although PNB gives no assurance that such
opinions or beliefs will prove to be correct or that such intentions will not change.
This Prospectus discloses, under the section “Risk Factors” and elsewhcre, important
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from PNB’s expectations.
All subscquent written and oral forwarding-looking statements attributable to PNB or

persons acting on PNB’s behalf arc expressly qualified in their entirety by the above
cautionary statements.
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GLOSSARY

In this Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall
have the meanings set forth below.

ABC/ALLIED BANK Allied Banking Corporation

AFS

AMLC
BAP

BASEL III

BIR
Board
BSP

Corporation Code

available for-sale

Anti-Money Laundering Council
Bankers Association of the Philippines

"Bascl II" is a comprchensive set of
reform measures, developed by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision, to
strengthen the regulation, supervision
and risk management of the banking
sector. These measures aim to improve
the banking scctor's ability to absorb
shocks arising from financial and
economic stress, whatever the source
improve  risk  management  and
governance and  strengthen  banks'
transparency and disclosures.

Bureau of Internal Revenue
Board of Dircctors of PNB
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas

The Corporation Code of the Philippines,
Batas Pambansa Blg. 68

DOSRI Directors, Officers, Stockholders and
their related intcrest

FCDU Foreign Currency Deposit Unit

FVPL

Gencral Banking Law

Fair value through profit or loss

The Philippine General Banking Law of
2000, RA 8791

10



Government

ING

Issue Price

LTNCD

Manual
MCO

Meiro Manila

New Central Bank Act
NPAs
NPLs
OBUs

Offer

Other operating expenses

PAS
PCD

PCD Nominee

The Governmenl of the Republic of the
Philippines

ING Bank, N.V,
P70.00 /share is the price at which the

Shares are issued pursuant to the Plan of
Merger

Long Term Negotiable Certificates of
Deposil

BSP Manual of Regulations for Banks
Maximum Cumulative Outflow

the metropolitan area compromising the
cities of Caloocan, Las Pifias, Makati,
Malabon, Mandaluyong, Manila,
Marikina, Muntinlupa, Navotas,
Parafiaque, Pasay, Pasig, Pateros,
Quezon, Valenzuela, Taguig, and San
Juan, which comprise the National
Capital Region and are commonly
referred to as Metro Manila

The New Central Bank Act, RA 7653
Non-Performing Assets

Non-Performing Loans

Offshore Banking Units

the offer for sale of the Shares to the
shareholders of Allied Bank

Total operating expenses excluding
provision for impairment and credit
losses

Philippine Accounting Standards
Philippine Central Depository

PCI Nominee Corporation, a
corporation wholly-owned by the PDTC
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PDS

PDTC

PesosorPorR
PFRS
Philippines

PNB or the “Bank™ or “Merged Bank”

PSE
R.A.
SEC

UBS

Philippine Dealing and Exchange
Commission

the Philippine Dealing System

the Philippine Depository and Trust
Corporation, the central securities
depository of, among others, securities
listed and traded on the PSE

the lawful currency of the Philippines
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Republic of the Philippincs

Philippine National Bank, and except
when the context otherwise requires, all
its subsidiarics

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
Republic Act

Securities and Exchange Commission

UBS Investments Philippines, Inc.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by, and its subject to, the more
detailed information presented in this Prospectus, including PNB's financial
statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Prospectus. Capitalized terms
not defined in this summary are defined in the Glossary of Terms, Risk Factors,
Business or elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Overview

The Philippine National Bank (PNB or the “Bank”), the country’s first universal bank,
i the fourth largest private local commercial bank in terms of assets based on PNB’s
published Statement of Condition as of December 31, 2013. The Bank was
established as a government-owned banking institution on July 22, 1916. As an
instrument of cconomic development, the Bank led the industry through the years with
its agricultural modernization program and trade finance support for the country’s
agricultural exports, pioneering efforts in the Overseas Filipino Workers (OFW)
remittance business, as well as the introduction of many innovations such as Bank on
Wheels, computerized banking, ATM banking, mobile money changing, domestic
traveler’s checks, and electronic filing and payment system for large taxpayers. PNB
has the widest overseas office network and one of the largest domestic branch
networks among local banks.

In affirmation of the Bank’s well-managed opcrations, PNB received awards from the
Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD) and the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). In
2011 and 2012, PNB was given the Silver Award for Good Corporate Governance
from the ICD in recognition of its professional practice of corporate directorship in
line with global principles of good governance, In 2012 and 2013, the BSP awarded
PNB as the Top Commercial Bank in Generating Remittances from Overseas
Filipinos for two years in a row. PNB was also clevated by the BSP as Hall of Fame
Awardee for Best Commercial Bank Respondent on Overscas Filipino Remittances
for having won the award for four straight years (2005-2008).

On February 9, 2013, the Bank concluded its planned merger with Allied Banking
Corporation (ABC), as approved and confirmed by the Board of Directors of the Bank
and of ABC on January 22 and January 23, 2013, respectively. The original Plan of
Merger was approved by the affirmative vote of shareholders on June 24, 2008
representing at least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of both banks. The
respective shareholders of the Bank and ABC, representing at least two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock of both banks, approved the amended terms of the Plan of
Merger of both banks on March 6, 2012.

The Bank undertook long-term fund generating initiatives to support its growth and
expansion plans. PNB redeemed its high cost subordinated notes and replaced these
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funds through the issuance of lower cost, long-term negotiable certificates of time
deposits (LTNCDs). On March 6, 2013, PNB exercised its call option and redeemed
the B4.5 billion (7.13%) Subordinated Notes due in 2018 issued by ABC. Likewise on
June 30, 2013, PNB exercised its call option on its 86.0 billion (8.5%) Unsecured
Subordinated Notes due in June 2018. Subsequently, the Bank successfully undertook
two tranches of LTNCD offerings, viz: (1) on August 5, 2013 for 85 billion worth of
LTNCDs at 3% which will mature on February 5, 2019; and (2) on October 21, 2013
for B4 billion worth of LTNCDs at 3.25% which will mature on April 22, 2019.

Recognizing the importance of its branches as the Bank’s primary platform for sales
and scrvice, PNB continued to expand its branch network and improve delivery of
services. It opened three branches in 2013, relocated six branches to more strategic
and accessible locations based on market potential and growth, and renovated 11 other
branches using the new branch design. The Bank deployed additional 34 automated
teller machines (ATMs) nationwide in strategic, mostly off-site, locations with high
pedestrian traffic.

PNB fortified its bid to be a strong player in the consumer loans business, particularly
in its housing and motor vehicle market segments, It launched the PNB Home Flexi
Loan in 2013 wherein a client can borrow against his residential real estate properties
to get cash up to £ 10 million to make housing improvements, purchase furniture and
fixtarcs, travel abroad or cven acquire another property. The Bank also offercd low
promo rates for PNB Home Loans received during the months of May to July.
Furthermore, PNB offered a promo financing tie-up with Chevrolet that featured frec
chattel mortgage fee and free 3-year LTO registration in the last quarter of 2013.

To boost its credit card business, PNB launched the Jewelmer Joaillerie Platinum
MasterCard in May 2013. In line with the Bank’s integration initiatives, PNB also
rebranded the PNB and ABC Core Credit Cards and launched these in October 2013,

PNB remained at the forefront of debt capital markets, as the Bank led 7 corporate
finance deals in excess of B75 billion in the industries of power, infrastructure and
real estatc. As PNB continued to originate and deliver structured solutions to large

corporates, the Bank was involved in a total of 13 big ticket deals in the aggregate
amount of B 140-billion.

PNB was actively involved in 3 Public-Private Partnership (PPP) projects that were
rolled out in 2013. As testament to the Bank’s commitment to nation building, the
Bank supported the bid of leading conglomerates for the NAIA Expressway and
Public School Infrastructure Project for Regions 1 to 4 and CAR. Ultimately, the Bank
led the R6.7B syndication for the Public School Infrastructure Projects in
CALABARZON, as well as the B7.5B syndication for thc NAIA Expressway Project.

PNB further strengthened its distinct franchise over the Global Filipino market
segment. It maintained the widest network of overseas branches and offices serving as
primary contact point for overseas Filipinos, The Bank has expanded its reach even
further into non-traditional contact channcls in the form of partner agent agreements
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and distribution through convenience storcs and other similar retail outlets, PNB
continued to innovate its remittance products and services with the launch of Phone
Remit, a 24/7 toll free phone remittance platform servicing the Europe and US
market. The Bank also launched the PNB Web Remil in the last quarter of 2013 that
enables customers to conduct online remittance transactions anywhere and anytime,
The Bank continued to make headway in deepening its relationship with its Global
Filipino customers by offering other products and services such as personal, home and
auto loans, including credit cards. PNB has a strong affinity with the Global Filipino
market and continues to enrich the lives of Filipinos worldwide.

Merger Developments

On April 30, 2008, the respective Board of Directors of PNB and Allicd Banking
Corporation (ABC) passed resolutions approving the plan to merge the two banks.
The plan of merger was subsequently approved on June 24, 2008 by the affirmative
vote of PNB and ABC's respective sharcholders representing at least two-thirds of the

outstanding capital stock of each bank. The banks submitied the Plan of Merger to the
BSP on July 30, 2008,

In December 2008, the merger, which was expected to have been completed by the
end of 2008, encountered delays due to the requirement of ABC to divest its 27.78%
equity share in Oceanic Bank, a commercial bank based in California, USA, in
compliance with US banking regulations.

PNB and ABC’s respective Boards of Directors passed a resolution in October 2011
approving the execution of a Voting Trust Agreement among PNB, Oceanic Holding
(BVD) Ltd. and Mr. Walter Mix III, the nominated trustee. The agreement placed all
shares of the holding company that directly owned Oceanic Bank in a trust to be sold
to third parties. ABC owned 27.78% of Oceanic Holding (BVI) Ltd. which in turn
owned Oceanic Bank Holding, Inc., the parent company of Oceanic Bank in San
Francisco, California, U.S.A. PNB, as successor-in-interest of Oceanic Bank upon
merger, assumed all rights and responsibilities under the Agreement. The US Federal
Reserve Board subsequently approved the Voting Trust Agreement in order to

facilitatc the merger of PNB and ABC in a manner that addressed US regulatory
CONGCEMS.

On March 6, 2012, PNB and ABC separatcly held Special Stockholders’ Meetings
approving amended terms in the Plan of Merger of the two banks. In order to secure
all necessary approvals from the regulators, the banks submitted the amended Plan of
Merger to the BSP and the PDIC on March 26, 2012 and to the SEC on April 12,
2012, :

On March 27, 2012, the trusiee of the shareholders of Oceanic Holding (BVI) Ltd.,
entered into a definitive agreement with FNB Bancorp (FNBG), the parent company
of First National Bank of North California, whereby the former agreed to sell to
FNBG all of the outstanding stocks of Oceanic Bank Holding, Inc., the parent
company of Oceanic Bank.
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On July 25, 2012, the PDIC granted its consent to the proposed merger of PNB and
ABC, with PNB as the surviving entity, pursuant to Sec. 21(c) of R.A. 3591, as
amended, (the “PDIC Charter™), subject to certain conditions. This was followed by

the BSP’s approval of the Plan and Articles of Merger on August 13, 2012, subject
also to certain conditions.

On January 17, 2013, the SEC approved the Plan and Articles of Merger.

Having already gained all necessary regulatory approvals to proceed with the Merger,
the Board of Directors of PNB and ABC, in separate Special Board Meetings held on
January 22, 2013 and January 23, 2013, respectively, set the Effective Date of the

Merger on February 9, 2013. Thus, on February 9, 2013, PNB and ABC merged into
one bank.

As the Merged Bank, PNB is now the fourth largest private commercial bank in terms
of assets as of 31 December 2013,
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Business Description

FNB, as thc Merged Bank, through its Head Office and 656 Domestic Branches and
offices and 80 Overscas Branches and Representative Offices, provides a full range of
banking and financial services to large corporate, middle-market, small medium
enterprises (SMEs) and retail customers, including OFWs, as well as to the Philippine
National Government, national government agencies (NGAs), local government units
(LGUs) and GOCCs in the Philippines. PNB’s principal commercial banking
activities include deposit-taking, lending, trade financing, bills discounting, fund
transfers/temittance  servicing, asset management, treasury operations, and
comprehensive trust, retail banking and other related financial services,

Competition

In the Philippines, the Bank faces competition in all its principal areas of business,
from both Philippine and foreign banks, as well as finance companies, mutual funds
and investment banks. The competition that the Bank faces from both domestic and
foreign banks was in part a result of the liberalization of the banking industry by the
National Government in 1994 which allowed the entry of more forgign banks and the
recent mergers and consolidations in the banking industry. As of December 31, 2013,
there were 36 universal and commercial banks in the Philippines, of which 17 are
private domestic banks, 3 arc government banks and 16 are branches or subsidiaries of
foreign banks. In some instances, some competitor banks have greater financial
resources, wider networks and greater market share. These banks may also offer a
wider range of commercial banking services and products, have larger lending limits
and stronger balance sheets than the Bank, To maintain its market position in the
industry, the Bank offers diverse products and services, invests in technology,
leverages on the synergics within the Tan Group of Companies and with its

government customers, as well as builds on relationships with the Bank’s other key
customers.

The Bank also faces competition in its operations overseas. In particular, the Bank’s
stronghold in the remittance business in 16 countries in North America, Europe, the

Middle East and Asia is being challenged by competitor banks and non-banks with
remittance business.

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank has a combined distribution network of 656
branches and offices and 859 ATMs nationwide. The merged entity is the fourth
largest local private commercial bank in the Philippines in terms of local branches and
the fourth largest in terms of consolidated total assets, net loans and receivables,
capital and deposits. In addition, it has the widest international footprint among
Philippine banks, spanning Asia, Europe, the Middle East and North America with its
overseas branches, representative offices, remittance centers and subsidiarics.
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Revenue Derived from Foreign Operations

PNB and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group™) offer a wide range of
financial services in the Philippines. In addition, the Group provides remittance
services in the USA, Canada, Asia, the Middle East and Europe. The following shows
the percentage distribution of the consolidated revenues for the past three (3) years:

2013 2012 2011

Philippines 93% 93% 1%

Asia (excluding the Philippines)/ 4% 3% 4%

Middle East

Canada and USA 2% 3% t 4%

United Kingdom & Other 1% 1% 1%
European Union Countries

Total 100% 100% 100%

New Products and Services
The Bank launched the following products and services in 2013:

© Enhanced Internet Banking System

PNB’s Internet Banking service offers a secure and convenient way for PNB
clients to do routine banking transactions right in the comfort of their own homes.
Users can monitor account balances, transfer funds 1o family and friends, pay bills,
schedule payments and fund transfers in advance and program recurring
transactions, order checkbooks, view their statement of account online, and get
email notifications to monitor their transactions. The facility has also been
enhanced to include online savings account, opening for individual accounts, as
well as SMS alerts for fund transfers or bills payments made.

o PNB Web Remit
PNB Web Remit offers fast and safe means for clients to remit to their loved ones
using the Internet. Using the PNB Web Remit portal www.pnbwebremit.com,
customers can cnroll and automatically make a remittance transaction via cash
pick-up, or credit to a PNB account or another bank account. The [acility also
features the PNB Remittance Tracker, where clients can know the status of their

remiltance by just clicking the track remittance button and encoding the reference
number,

o Healthy Ka Pinoy (HKP) Emergency Card
The Healthy Ka Pinoy (HKP) Health Emergency Card is an affordable insurance
product by PNB Life (insurance provider) and Eastwest Healthcare (hospital
network and emergency services provider). For an annual premium of only
B750.00, clients can receive coverage of £20,000.00 in Emergency Hospital Care
for Accident and Sickness; £100,000.00 in Accidental Death, Dismemberment
and Disability benefits; and £20,000.00 in Accidental Burial Benefit per year.

18



© PNB UITF Online_

The PNB UITF Online is the Bank’s electronic banking platform that allows PNB
account holders to perform investment transactions conveniently and securely
using the Internet. Through PNB UITF Online, clients can make direct
investments, subscribe to an Auto Investment Plan (AIP), make additional
participations, make full and partial redemptions, enroll an existing UITF
participation, view their consolidated UITF portfolio, and generate an electronic
copy of their Confirmation of Participation and Participating Trust Agrecement.

o PNB Auto Invest Plan

The PNB Auto Invest Plan (AIP) is an investment facility which allows PNB
account holders to regularly set aside a portion of their savings for automatic
investment to a PNB Unil Investment Trust Fund (UITF) of their preference once
it reaches the required threshold amount. PNB AIP provides potentially higher

returns than traditional savings deposit, and customers can start investing for as
little as B100 or USD10.

Key Business Activities

PNB provides a full range of banking and other financial services to large corporate,
middle market, SME and retail customers, including OFWs, as well as to the
Govemment, Government agencies, LGUs and Government-owned and -controlled
corporations in the Philippines.

lts banking activilies are undertaken through the following groups within the Bank:

Institutional Banking Group

The Bank’s Institutional Banking Group is responsible for credit relationships with
large corporate, middle-market and SMEs, as well as with the Government and
government-related agencies and financial institutions,

Retail Banking Group

The Retail Banking Group (RBG) principally focuses on retail deposit products (i.e.,
current accounts, savings accounts, time deposit and other accounts) and services.
While the focal point is the gencration of low-cost funds for the Bank's operations,
the RBG also concentrates on the cross-sclling of other bank products and services to
its customers by transtorming its domestic branch distribution charmels into a sales-
focused organization.

Consumer Finance Group
The Consumer Finance Group provides multi-purpose personal loans, home mortgage
loans, motor vehicle financing and credit card services to the Bank’s retail clients.

Global Filipine Banking Group

The Global Filipino Banking Group covers the Bank’s overseas offices which
essentially provide convenicnt and safe remittance services to numerous QFWs
abroad and full banking services in selected jurisdictions. PNB has the largest
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overseas network among Philippine banks with 80 branches, representative offices,
remittance centers and subsidiaries in the United States of America (USA), Canada,
Europe, the Middle East and Asia. PNB also maintains corrcspondent relationships
with 1,120 other banks and financial institutions worldwide.

Treasury Group

The Treasury Group is principally responsible for managing the Bank’s funding and
liquidity requirements as well as its investment and trading portfolio. The Treasury
Group engages the treasury operations of the Bank and its subsidiaries. It also
monitors PNB's compliance with the reserve requirements and guidelines of the BSP.
It further engages in inter-bank lending/borrowing, investment in peso and foreign
exchange denominated bonds and securities, currency trading, equities trading and
investment in structured products.

Trust Banking Group

Through its Trust Banking Group (TBG), PNB provides a wide range of personal and
corporate trust and fiduciary banking products and services. Personal trust products
and services for customers include living trust accounts, educational trust, estatc
planning, guardianship, insurance trust and investment management. Corporate trust
services and products include trusteeship, securitization, investment portfolio
management, administration of employee benefits, pension and retirement plans, and
trust indenture services for local corporations. The TBG's agency services include
acting as bond registrar, collecting and paying agent, loan facility agent, escrow agent,
sharc transfer agent and domestic recciving bank.

Credit Management Group

The Credit Management Group is primarily responsible for providing credit
management services in the form of credit rating and scoring, financial evaluation and
credit risk assessment, credit policy formulation, credit investigation and appraisal and
risk asset acceptance criteria development. It focuses on sound credit underwriting and
monitoring guidclines and practices to ensure a healthy loan portfolio for the Bank.

Remedial Management Group

The Remedial Management Group is primarily responsible for managing problem
accounts and reducing the non-performing loans of the Bank. Tt determines and
formulates the appropriate setlement plan for each work-out account for its
immediate resolution.

Special Asset Management Group
The main objective of the Special Asscts Management Group is the disposal and/or

lease of the Bank’s real and other properties acquired (ROPA) and bank-owned
propetties.

20



COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

FNB considers the following to be its principal competitive strengths relative to the
banking sector:

Well-positioned franchises in the robust Philippine banking sector

PNB belicves that it is well-positioned in the robust Philippine banking scctor. The
Philippines has one of the lowest banking penctrations in Asia, leaving significant
headroom for growth. According to the Economist Intelligence Unit, loan growth is
cxpected to be strong at 13.5% on average over the next five years driven by strong
domestic consumption and favorable demographics. The banking sector has also
stabilized over the years, with the NPL ratio steadily declining to 1.9% as of
December 2012, from 15.0% in 2002 according to data from the BSP.

The Bank’s scale, rcach, business mix, product offerings and brand recognition has
made it among the leading financial institutions in the Philippines. According to the
Bank’s published SEC Form 17-A report, as of 31 December 2013, PNB is the
Philippines’ fourth largest private commercial bank in terms of total assets, deposis,
net loans and receivables.

Extensive and strategically located distribution network

The Bank believes it has one of the most extensive branch networks among its
competitors in the Philippines, As of 31 December 2013, the Bank had 656 domestic
branchcs and offices and 859 ATMs, The Bank’s branches and ATMs are strategically
located to maximize market potential and cover areas where competitors are less
present, making financial services accessible to untapped customers and investment
opportunities. The Bank’s cxtensive distribution network allows for a strong deposit
gathering capability and the ability to sell and distribute fee-generating product lines
such as bancassurance, trust, fixed-income securities and credit cards. According to
BSP data, the 656 domestic branches and offices of the Bank comprised
approximately 13% of the tolal number of branches of all private commercial and
universal banks in the Philippines as of 31 December 2013, The 859 ATMs of the
Bank represented about 6.3% of the total number of ATMs of commercial and
universal banks.

Industry-leading OFW remittance business

As of 31 December 2013, the Bank's OFW remitlance business accounted for
approximately 21% market share by remittance volume, based on data from the BSP,
making it onc of the largest in the Philippines. The Bank’s large-scale remittance
business is supported by the Bank’s extensive overseas network of 80 branches,
representative offices and remittance centers across 16 countries in North America,
Europe, the Middle East and Asia. As of 31 December 2013, the Bank also
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maintained correspondent relationships with 1,120 banks and financial institutions
worldwide,

Diversified customer base

The Bank provides a full range of banking and other financial services to diversified
customer bases including government entities, large corporate, middle-market, SME
and retail customers, with the Bank having the distinction of being one of only five
authorized Government depository banks in the Philippines. As of 31 December 2013,
the Bank’s receivables from customers were well-diversified across the large
corporate, Government, SME and retail segments. The Bank believes that with the
merger, additional customers contributed by ABC will strengthen the Bank’s ability to
withstand periods of volatile cconomic markets as compared to many of its peers.

Solid capitalization, improving asset quality and stable financial performance

The Bank believes its capital position is strong, with a consolidated Tier 1 ratio of
16.4% and consolidated CAR of 19.7% as of 31 December 2013 as reported to the
BSP. Meanwhile, ABC maintained a strong capital position prior to its merger with
the Bank, with a consolidated CAR of 21.0% for the year ended 31 December 2012 as
reported to the BSP, higher than the BSP minimum required CAR of 10%. The
Bank’s strong capital position gives it the flexibility to expand its business, invest in
new products and services, information technology and other infrastructure required
for the execution of its growth strategy. Morcover, the Bank has been committed to
prudent credit approval and risk management processes, which have resulted in

improving asset quality. As of 31 December 2013, the Bank recorded an NPL ratio of
1.4%, a net NPA ratio of 4.0% and an NPL coverage ratio of 90.8%.

The Bank believes that its asset quality would remain at a healthy level subsequent to
its recent merger with ABC with the latter having similarly maintained strong asset
quality.

Moreover, the Bank believes it will benefit from ABC’s stable financial performance
in recent years. ABC had continuously maintained its position as among the 10 largest
private Philippine universal banks in terms of total assets, loan portfolio, deposits and
net worth, according to data from the BSP.

Synergies from its strong shareholder group

As a member of the Tan Companies, PNB believes that it will continue to benefit
from being part of one of the largest and most diverse conglomerates in the
Philippines, with interests ranging from beverages, airlines, tobacco, property
development, education and others. PNB believes that it has been able to achieve
significant syncrgies with the Tan Companies, such as partnering with Philippine
Airlincs 1o introduce one of the most popular mileage rewards credit cards in the
Philippine market, providing collection facilities through its nationwide branches for
sellers of PMFTC’s products and for other Tan Companies, streamlining loan
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applications for end-buyers of Eton, and facilitating guarantecs for ticketing agents of
Philippine Airlines,

BUSINESS STRATEGIES

PNB aims to fortify its position as one of the leading banks in the Philippines,
delivering strong profitability supported by a solid balance sheet, PNB will pursuc the
following major strategies to achieve its business objectives:

1. Improve revenue mix

As part of the strategy to improve its profitability and at the same time minimize
dependence on any specific revenue source, the Bank will take steps to modify its
revenuc mix towards a morc stable stream of income. Along this line, The Bank
will continue to determine the proper allocation of the usc of funds between loans
and investments to ensure a more stable level of accrued interest income and
higher yields from loans versus the volatile movements in wrading gains/losses
from investment securities held for trading, Likewise, the Bank intends to further
leverage on its strong franchise and increase fee-based income by intensifying its
cross-selling efforts to its cxisting customers, including its OFWs customers. The
Bank will also review its fee structure and align bank fees and service charges with
market rates o remain competitive. With its bancassurance license from the BSP,
the Barik plans to intensify its efforts in the marketing of bancassurance products.

2. Shift loan portfolio mix in favor of SME and consumer segments

The Bank's lending strategy will entail a shift in marketing focus from large
institutional accounts to SMEs and individuals, This shift in lending strategy by
increasing the number of smaller accounts is intended to help the Bank in
achieving higher lending margins as smaller accounts are less sensitive to changes
in interest rates. The Bank intends to leverage on its extensive customer base of
OFWs to expand its consumer lending business. The Bank’s subsidiary, Allied
Savings Bank will play a pivotal role in strengthening the bank’s foothold on the
retail and consumer segment.

3. Strengthen leadership in the global Filipino Market

The Bank intends to further increasc its share in the global Filipino market by
going beyond merely providing them with remittance services to offering them a
more diverse menu of financiat services. The Bank will continue to enhance its
products aimed at delivering optimum  services, particularly by introducing
electronic-remittance channels,  In addition to its large global distribution
network, the Bank will keep on partnering with companics that are considered
leaders in their home markets to reinforce its overscas presence. The sustained
focus on service quality, continued product innovation and marketing initiatives
arc cxpected to result in increased remittance volume and/or increased foreign
currency business.
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4, Rationalize cost of funds

The Bank will leverage on the strength of its nationwide branch network to
generate low-cost deposits from its existing and growing customer base. In support
of the expansion in total assets, the Bank will also keep an acceptable level of
high-cost deposits to complement the low-cost deposit base,

5. Maximize synergies from the meryer

The merger brings together a combined complementary client base ranging from
large corporations, local government units, government-owned and controlled
corporations, overseas Filipino workers and the Chincse-Filipino community to the
provincial market. The merged bank will also be able to leverage and hamess on
the wide network of its major shareholder, the LT Group, Inc., one of the largest
conglomerates in the Philippines. As the merged bank, PNB will have a better
platform to offer a wide range of personal and corporate banking services and
produets, and become a leading player in its chosen markets,

The merger is expected to create substantial revenue and cost synergies. Revenues
should be enhanced as a result of new customers, increased business from existing
customers, low funding cost from improved risk profile and greater opportunities
for cross-selling bancassurance, trust, credit card and other products to a larger
customer base via a wider distribution network. In addition, the merger will result
in cost efficiency improvements through branch re-engincering, economies of

scale, systems integration, realignment of front officcs and optimization of back
office processing and support functions.

6. Accelerate ROPA disposition

Through its Special Asset Management Group (SAMG), the Bank will
aggressively dispose of foreclosed assets as well as maximize recoveries from assct
sales and incomc potential of acquired assets. Under the Bank’s three-year
business plan, SAMG will focus its efforts on the following: a) pursue
implementation of development plans for selected ROPAS e.g., portfolio sale,
joint-venture with developers, sale of small and medium ROPAs; b) collection of
CARP accounts; ¢) strong marketing initiatives; d) efficient account management
of SCR accounts; and ¢) more effective and efficient lease management practices.

Risks of Investing

Before making an investment decision, investors should carefully consider the risks
associated with an investment in the Shares. These risks include;

. Risks Relating to PNB’s Business;
. Rigks Relating 1o the Philippines;

. Risks Relating to the Shares; and
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. Risks Relating to the Presentation of Information in this Prospectus.

The Bank is subject to a number of risks, the realization of which could have a material
adverse effect on the Bank’s business, financial condition and results of operations and
cause the market price of the Shares to decline. For cxample, the merger between PNB
and Allied Bank may not result in the expected synergies contemplated by PNB, PNB
and Allied Bank may be subject to tax liabilities in relation to their merger, the Bank
has faced and may continve to face significant levels of non-performing loans, The Bank
1s also subject to risks related to, among other things, the size, quality and concentration
of its loan and investment portfolios, its provisioning policies, its ability to recover
collateral, its exposure to the real cstate industry, its reliance on gains from treasury
operations and its ability to successfully monitor and manage certain decentralized
business and risk management functions across its banking network. In addition, the
Bank operates in a compctitive and highly regulated industry and thus may be limited in
its ability to expand and grow its customer base. As a Philippine bank, the Bank’s
results of operations and financial condition may also be adversely affected by political
and economic¢ developments in the Philippines. Investors may also face risks regarding
liquidity of the Sharcs and fluctuations in the market price of the Shares.

Corporate Information

PNB is a Philippine corporation with registered office and principal executive offices
located at PNB Financial Center, President Diosdado Macapagal Boulevard, Pasay
City. PNB’s tclephone number is (632) 8916040 to 71 or 5263131 while its fax
number is (632) 8340780, Its corporate website is www.pnb.comph. The information on
PNB’s website is not incorporated by reference into and does not constitate part of
this Prospectus.
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Dividends

SUMMARY OF THE OFFER

..........................................

.....................................

............................

........................

....................................

Philippine National Bank, a corporation
organized under the Philippine law, The
trading symbol is PNB,

Primary Offer of 423,962 500 Common
Shares to be issued by PNB to all
shareholders of  Allied Banking
Corporation at the Issue Price of P70.00
per share using the Exchange Ratio of
130 PNB common shares for each Allied
Bank common share and 22,763 PNB
common shares for each Allied Bank
preferred share pursuant to the Plan of
Merger.

P70,00 per Sharc

See “Use of Procceds™ for details of how
the total net proceeds are expected to be
applied.

The Shares are expected to be listed on
the PSE under the Symbol and company
alias PNB at least fiftcen days after the
submission of the Listing Application
with the PSE. Trading of the shares is
cxpected to commence upon receipt of
the notice of approval from the PSE.

PNB is authorized to declare dividends.
A cash dividend declaration requires
approval from the Board. A stock
dividend declaration requires the further
approval of shareholders representing not
less  than two-thirds of PNB's
outstanding capital stock. Dividends
may be declared only from unrestricted
retained earnings and is subject to the
approval of the BSP, PNB cannot
provide assurance that it will pay any
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Taxation ...........

Expected Timetab

Risks of Investing

..............

le s

.......................

dividends in the future. See “Dividends
Policy”.

Documentary Stamp Tax for the primary
issue of the Shares at the rate of P1.00
for every P200,00 of the par value shall
be for the account of the Bank,

The Timetable of the Offer is expected to
be as follows:

Filing of Prospectus and Registration
Statement — 8 August 2013

Filing of Listing Application with the
PSE - 29 November 2013

Listing Date and Commencement of
trading on the PSE — at least 15 days
from submission of the Listing
Application with the PSE and receipt of
the formal notice from the PSE

The dates included above are subject to
the approval of the PSE and the SEC,
market and other conditions, and may be
changed.

Before making an investment decision,
prospective investors should carefully
consider the risks associated with an
investment in the Shares, Some of these
risks are discussed in the section entitied
“Risk factors” and include risks relating
to PNB, risks relating to the Philippines,
risks associated with the Shares and risks
relating o certain statistical information
in this Prospectus,
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL AND OPERATING INFORMATION

The following tables set forth the selected financial information for PNB and should
be read in conjunction with PNB's financial statements as audited by SGV & Co. for
the years ending 31 December 2011 to 2013, including the notes thereto, and the
section entitled Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations included elsewhere in this Prospectus. The following data is
qualified in its entirety by reference to all of that information.

SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME OF PNB

For the years ended December 31,

011 2012 2013

(Amounts in ' milliens)
INTEREST INCOME ON
Loans and reecivables 73310 74514 13.118.5
Trading and invesimenl securities 4,260.7 32357 3,756,2
Deposit with banks and others 6899 673.5 1,605.4
Interbunk louns receivable

12,487.6 11,360.6 18,450.1
INTEREST EXI'ENSE ON
Deposil liabilities 4011.5 3,099.8 3,655.4
Bills payable and other borrowings 1,257.2 1,285.1 ], 076.1

5,268.7 4,384.9 4,731.5

NET INTEREST INCOME 7,218.9 6,975.7 13,748.6
Services lees und commizsion income 2,344.0 2,130,7 3.341.1
Services foeg and camimission expense 2074 2344 9067
NET SERVICE FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME 2,136.6 1,876.3 2,434.4
OTHER INCOME
Trading and investment securitics gain - net 35910 5,364.8 4.618.2
Foreign exchange gaing - nel I, 1984 1,173.8 1,236.2
Net gain on sale of cxchange ol assels b,350.4 3599 515.6
Miscellaneous 1,148.1 $52.8 2.008.9
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 16,643.4_ 16,603.3 24.564.9
(PERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and fringe benefits 3,858.3 3,710.0 5.988.2
Taxes and ligenses 1,319,] 1,134.3 1.784.9
Pravigion for impairment, credit and other losses 10252 823.7 8338
Occupancy and equipment-related costs L0154 1,004.3 1,508.2
Depreciation and amortization 818.6 568.1 1,742.0
Miscellaneous 31258 34194 6,314.8
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 11,162.3 10,9549.8 18,171.7
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 5,481.1 5,643.5 6,353.2
FROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 849.4 925.1 1,171.1
NET INCOME 4,631.7 4,718.4 52121
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NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE T(k

Lquity halders of PNRB

4,623.2 4,708.6 51238
Non-controlling interest 8.5 9.8 98.3 |
4,631.7 4,718.4 52211
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF PNB

For the years ended December 31,

2011 012 013
(Amounts in P millions)
ASSETS
Cash and Other Cash ltems 5,404.1 5.599.1 11,804.7
[ue from BSP 38,1328 371754 153,169.3
Due from Other Banks 6,424.0 4042 8 14,881.5
Interbank Loans Receivable 170876 11,498.7 §.405.3
_Seeurities Teld Under Ayreement to Resell 18,300.0 18,300.0
Financial Assets al Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 6,875.7 4,023.1 11,709.3
Available-for-Sale Investments 52,3238 66,997,5 80,3041
Louns & Receivable 125,630.8 144,230.7 274276.1
Property and Equipment 16,564.5 16,503.8 226184
Investment in Subsidiarics and an Assosiate 2,896.7 2,381.2
Investment Properties 18,519,7 15,4930 21,4530
Deferred Tux Assets 1,775.8 1,780.7 2519
Intangible Azsels 410.4 377.0 2,378, 1
Croodwill 13,3754
Other Assets 1,175.5 1,777.8 3.436.4
TOTAL ASSETS 311,551.4 330,190.8 618,065.5
LIARILITIES
Dieposit LiahHitles
| Demand 29 8961 28,1523 125.359.1
Savings 184,676.1 192,793.3 285,542.2
Time 22,961.7 19.908.8 §1.464.1
2375430 240.854.4 462 3654
Fittantial Liabilities at Fair Value Throuph Profitor Loss 6,650.2 6,479.8 8.074.9
Bills and Acecpiances Payable #.458.4 13,0769 13.172.0
Accrued Taxes, Intetest and Other Expenses 3,739.1 39143 5,523.5
Subordinated Debt 6,452.5 5,538.8 9,951.7
[ncome Tax Payable 242.2 149 48.5
Other Liahililies 14,668.2 17,2853 35,0294
TOTAL LIABILITIES 277,744.5 191,698.5 534,147.9
EQUITY
Equity Attributable (o0 Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital Stock 26,459.8 26,4804 43,448.3
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Capilal Puid in Excess of Par Value

2,037.3 2,037.3 26,499.9
Surplus Rescrves 5602 569.9 524.0
Surplus 25672 7,266.1 12.432.8
Revaluation [ncrement on Land and Buildings 2,817.0 2R17.0 2.489.7
Remeasurement [.osscs on Relirement Plan (1,004,1) {751.9) {1,278,4)
Accumulated Trunslation 451.7) {992.6) 291.5
Met Unrealized Gain/{Loss) on Availuble-for-5ale Investments 742.3 1037.2 (3 581.9)
Lquity in Net Unrcalized Gain on Available-tor-8ale Investment of an
Azsociale &8 - -
Parent Company Shares Held by n Subsidiary (4.7) {4.7) -
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 46.8 5.2 7.7
TOTAL EQUITY 33,8069 38,492.3 83.897.6
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 311,551.4 330,190.8 618,065.5
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USE OF PROCEEDS

There are no cash proceeds from the offering. As previously approved by the
respective Board of Directors and sharcholders of PNB and Allied Bank, the
accounting treatment for the Merger will be in accordance with PFRS 3. The Merger
will be accounted for under the Purchase Method, under which the following main
principles will be followed:

- assets and liabilities, including unrecorded intangible assets and contingent
liabilities of the “acquirec™ will be taken up at fair value as of the date of the
Merger in the books of the “acquiror”

- prior years® financial statements will not be restated and the income statement
will only incorporate the results of the “acquiree™ from the date of merger

- equity of the “acquiror” is increased by the amount of the acquisition cost,
equivalent to the number of new shares of the “acquiror” to be issued
multiplied by the issue price

- difference between the acquisition cost and fair valuc of the net assets of the
“acquiree” as of the date of the Merger will be recorded as goodwill.

There are no expenses which will be deducted or paid out of the proceeds of the
offering.

The Merger of PNB and Allied Bank has, however, elevated PNB as the fourth largest
private commercial bank in terms of assets based on the Bank's published Statement
of Condition as of 31 December 2013, The infusion of Allied Bank’s assets into PNB
is expected to improve its financial standing,
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RISK FACTORS

Prior to making an investment decision, the prospective investors should carefully
consider the risks described below, which are hereby presented in no order af
importance, in addition to the other information set forth in this Prospectus

including the Bank’s financial statements and notes relating thereto included
herein.

The price of securities can and does fluctuatc, and any individual security may
experience upward or downward movements, and may c¢ven become valucless. There
is an inherent risk that losses may be incurred rather than profit made as a result of
buying and selling securities. Past performance is not a guide for future performance,

This risk disclosure does not purport to disclose all the risks and other significant
aspects on investing in these securities. Aty investor should undertake his or her own
rescarch and study on the trading of securities before commencing any trading
activity. He may request information on the securities and the issuer thereof from the
SEC which are available to the public,

RISKS RELATING TO PNB

PNB operates in a highly competitive environment, which could limit its ahility ro
maintain or increase its market share and maintain or increase its profitability,

PNB competes against both local banks and branches of foreign banks that offer
similar financial products and services. These include competitors which, in some
instances, have greater financial and other capital resources, a greater market share, or
greater name recognition in certain areas than PNB,

In the future, competition in the industry may further intensify. Continued expansion
of Philippine banks can satrate markets that PNB intends to serves. Continued
consolidation in the banking sector, alliance between domestic banks and foreign
banks will create stronger institutions which are better positioned to compete against

PNB, Entry of new players in the industry ¢an also increase competition as they seck
to gain market share,

There can be no assurance that PNB will be able to compete effectively in the face of
such incrcased competition. Increased competition may make it difficult for PNB to
increase the size of its loan portfolic and deposit base, sustain or increase its margins,

and could have a materizl adverse effect on results of operations and financial
condition.

PNB’s business is closely monitored and regulated by the Government through
policies that may significantly impact its operations and profitability.
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PNB is regulated principally by the BSP through the regular and special examination
and review of reports that all Philippines banks are required to submit. PNB is also
subject to banking, corporatc and other laws in effect in the Philippines. The
regulatory and legal framework governing PNB differs in certain material respects
from that in effect in other jurisdictions and may continue to change as the Philippine
economy and commmercial and financial markets evolve,

For example, the Government has imposed an agrarian reform and agriculture lending
policy that requires Philippine banks to grant loans to agricultural sectors of the
country and agrarian beneficiaries, Banks that fail to comply by falling below the
specificd level of loans granted to these sectors may be fined by the Government,
There is no absolute guarantee that these fines will not be significantly changed by the
Government, which may have a negative impact on the Bank’s financial performance
in the cvent of non-compliance with the regulation. Another examplc is the BSP’s
policy of prohibiting banks from having a financial cxposure to any individual, entity
or group of connected persons in excess of 25 per cent of its net worth, except when
the transactions involve Government related entitiecs or guaranteed by the
Government, among others.

In recent ycars, existing rules and regulations have been modified, new rules and
regulations have been cnacted and reforms have been implemented which are intended
to provide tighter control and more transparency in the Philippine banking sector.
These rules include new guidelines on the monitoring and reporting of suspected
money laundering activities as well as regulations governing the capital adequacy of
banks in the Philippines. PNB has embarked on initiatives in order to meet the
requirements under Basel Il It is anticipated that the adoption of Basel TII may result
in the decline of capital ratios of banks in the Philippines, including PNB’s. PNB may
also have to comply with stricter regulations and guidelines issued by other regulatory
authoritics in the Philippines, such as the Bureau of Internal Revenue (“BIR™), the
Anti-Money Laundering Council (the “AMLC™) and international bodies, such as the
Financial Action Task Force. If additional rules or regulations are introduced, PNB
may incur substantial compliance and meonitoring costs, and if PNB is unable to
comply with existing and new rules and regulations applicable to it, it could incur
penalties, face disruptions to its operations and face reputational damage, which could
materially and adversely affect PNB’s busincss, Anancial condition and results of
operations,

PNB is exposed to credit, market, interest rate, foreign exchange, liquidity,

operating, and other risks which may have an impact on its future financial
performance and operations.

The inability of PNB to manage these various risks could have an adverse impact on
its business, operations and financial performance. PNB's interest income and
earnings depend on its ability to accurately gauge the credit worthiness of its
borrowers, provide adequate allowance for credit losses and manage migrations in
credit quality and risk concentration of its portfolio, PNB’s existing and prospective
lending policies, processes and controls may not adequalely mitigate the risk of loan
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loss provisions and write-offs. The success of the Bank’s treasury and trading
strategies and operations depend upon its capacity to correctly identify and execute
mark-to- market changes in the valuc of financial instruments caused by fluctuations
in market value, interest rates and foreign exchange rates, among other factors. In the
event that PNB’s estimates differ significantly from actual results and critical
assumptions prove inaccurate, it could incur losses that are higher than expected. Such
losses may result in liquidity concems which hamper the Bank’s ability to scttle
obligations as they fall due, resulting in increased costs, loss of reputation, and other
detrimental effects that can affect the Bank’s performance and standing, Lastly, the
Bank’s operating controls, policies and processes may not be adequate to prevent
losses from transaction failures, human error, fraud, breakdown of its IT systems, and
other such events that have a negative impact on its operations and financial results.

Lending carries the risk of default by borrowers and PNB may face increasing
levels of NPLs and provisions for impairment and credit losses on loans,

Any lending activity is exposed to credit risk arising from the risk of default by
borrowers. PNB’s resulls of operations may be negatively affccted by the level of its
NPLs. A number of factors affect PNB’s ability to control and reduce its NPLs, such
as volatile economic conditions in the Philippines, which may adversely affect many
of PNB’s customers, and may cause uncertainty regarding their ability to fulfill their
loan obligations, and in effect increase PNB's exposure to credit risk, Tn addition,
PNB is seeking to grow its business, particularly its earnings assct base, which would
likely entail extending more loans to customers. While PNB believes that it has more
than adequate loan provisions, these and other factors could result in an increased
number of NPLs in the future and may require PNB to book additional provisions for
impairment and credit losses on loans. While PNB regularly monitors its NPL levels
and has strict credit processes in place, there can be no assurance that PNB will be
successful in reducing its NPL levels or that the percentage of NPLs that PNB will be
able to recover will be similar to PNB’s historical recovery rates or that the overall
quality of its loan portfolio will not deteriorate in the future. If PNB is not able to
control and reduce its NPLs or recover expected amounts from NPLs, if the quality of
collateral is lower than estimated or if there is a significant increase in its provisions
for loan losses, PNB’s operating costs, business, financial condition, results of
operations and capital adequacy could be adversely affected.

PNEB may experience significant losses if it is unable to fully recover the assessed
value of collateral when ity borrowers default on their obligations.

Most of PNB’s secured loans receivable are collateralized by real estatc properties.
These collaterals plus PNB's holdings in real estate and other properties acquired
(“ROPA™) give thc Bank a considerable amount of exposure in the Philippine
property market. The liquidation value of the ¢ollateral, the maximum amount that
PNB will most likely get in the cvent of a sale of the property less the expenses
incurred in such a sale held by PNB, may be below the value recorded at the time of
the release of the loan. PNB liquidates part of its ROPA and other collateral through
public auctions and negotiated transactions at ongoing market prices, which are
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heavily influenced by buyers. Property prices in the Philippines have generally been
volatile and the property market has been highly cyclical. There is no certainty that
PNB’s loans can be sufficiently covered by the realized value of the attached
collateral. The market value of real estate held as collateral can be significantly
affected by events such as economic downturns, In some instances, the recorded value
of the collateral may be out of date and not accurately mirror their current market
value. There are also some circumstances wherein there are no buyers for a particular
type of asset held as collateral and it may be difficult to liquidate such collateral at
acceptable priccs. Any possible decrease in the value of the collateral on PNB’s loans,
including future collateral received by PNB, would translate to insufficient provisions
for credit losses that consequently forces PNB 1o increase such provisions. In the
event that loans become non-performing, there is no certainty that the collateral
sceuring any kind of loan will fully shicld PNB from incurring partial or total losses.
Any additional amount in PNB’s provisions for credit losses would significantly
impact its operational and financial performance as well as its capital adequacy ratio.

In addition, PNB may encounter problems and delays in the process of recovering
value and liquidating collateral or collecting on any guarantee due to the inefficient
enforcement of obligations by the Philippine legal system. Banks in the Philippines
arc required to undergo a mandated process and follow the steps identified by
Philippine law when foreclosing on collateral or enforcing guarantees. This process is
governed by administrative and bankruptey law requirements that may make it more
difficult to deal with compared to other regions and jurisdictions. The time delay
caused by the bureaucratic process may last several years during which both the
market value and physical condition of the collateral may significantly deteriorate,
particularly inventory of goods or accounts receivables. In addition, collateral of this
nature may not be insured. Taken together, these factors cxpose PNB to certain legal
liabilities while the collateral is in PNB’s possession. These factors may also
substantially lower PNB’s ability to unlock the value of its collateral and therefore
reduce the comfort in taking security in exchange for granting loans. In some
instances, PNB will need to spend on the maintenance of properties held as collateral
in order to prevent or slow down their deterioration. The process of liquidating assets
and properties held as collateral may also require PNB to pay legal fees and taxes.

PNB’s trading activities are subject to volatility.

PNB engages in trading activities, primarily mainlaining proprietary trading positions
in Philippinc and foreign government securities and some corporate debt securities. In
recent years, PNB’s gains from treasury opcrations have contributed significantly to
PNB’s operating income. PNB’s trading gains are inherently volatile as trading
securities and currencies arc subjcct to economic, political and other conditions that
may fluctuate from time to time. There can be no assurance that, in the future, PNB
will be able to realize an amount of trading gains that is similar to the gains it realized
historically, that it will not incur a loss from such trading or that it will not hold on to
its trading and investment securities to realize interest income, any or all of which
could have a material adverse effect on PNB’s fulure net income. Risks arising both
from its trading and investment strategy and general market volatility, which are
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beyond its control, could expose PNB to potential losses and may materially and
adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

PNB is subject to interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

PNB realizes income from the margin between interest-earning assets and interest
paid on interest-bearing liabilities. The business of PNB is subject to fluctuations in
market interest rates as a result of mismatches in the re-pricing of assets and
liabilities. These interest rate fluctuations are neither predictable nor controllable and
may have a material adverse impact on the operations and financial condition of PNB,
In a rising intercst rate environment, if PNB is not able to pass along higher interest
costs to its customers, it may negatively affect PNB’s profitability. If such increased
costs are passed along to customers, such increased rates may make loans less
atiractive to potential customers and result in a reduction in customer volume and
hence operating revenues. In a decreasing intcrest rate environment, potential
competitors may find it easier to enter the markets in which PNB operates and to
benefit from wider spreads. As a result, fluctuations in interest rates could have an
adverse effect on PNB’s margins and volumes and in turn adversely affect PNB’s
business, financial condition and results of operations.

As a financial organization, PNB is exposed w foreign exchange risk. Movements in
foreign exchange rates could adversely affect PNB's business, financial condition and
results of operations. The foreign exchange transactions of Philippine banks are
subject to stringent BSP regulation. Under BSP guidelines, PNB is required to provide
100.0% foreign asset cover for all forcign currency liabilities in its Foreign Currency
Deposit Unit (“FCDU”) books, The decline in the value of the peso against foreign
currencies, in particular, the U.8. dollar may affect the ability of PNB’s customers or
the Government to service debt obligations denominated in foreign currencies and,
consequently, increase NPLs. Conversely, increases in the value of the peso can
depress the export market which can ncgatively affect the ability of certain PNB
customers (0 repay their debt obligations or may reduce credit quality or demand.
There can be no assurance that the peso will not fluctuate further against other

currencics and that such fluctuations will not ultimately have an adverse effect on
PNB,

PNR is exposed to the risk that fraud and other misconduct could be committed by
employees or outsiders,

Banks have large amounts of cash flowing through their systems hence, reputation and
client trust is integral to a bank’s business. Incidents of fraud and other misconduct
done by bank employecs or third parties may damage a bank’s reputation and could
have severe repercussions to its business, profitability, financial standing and
prospects. Moreover, these incidents could lead to administrative or regulatory
sanctions by the BSP or other Government agencies in the form of suspensions or
limitations to PNB’s banking and business activities. Despite the fact that PNB has
internal control procedures to prevent fraudulent activities, there can be no guarantee
that PNB will be able to avoid and prevent incidents of fraud,
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PNRB’s ability to retain and develop its employees and attract capable personnel has

an effect on lits current business, expansion plans, and future business
performance.

The success of PNB, like any other company, rests on its management and employees.
In the event that Bank is unable to retain its existing key officers or develop capable
replacements for these individuals, the Bank’s operations and business performance
will suffer. The demand for competent and experienced bank personnel is increasing,
not only from other financial institutions in the country but also from institutions
outside the Philippines. The Bank’s expansion plans will require it to attract and
rccruil new managers and employees and given the increasing competition, there is no
assurance that the Bank will be able to employ such individuals or employ these at
salary and compensation arrangements that are favorable o the Bank.

PNB’s risk assessment and monitoring methods varies from those of its more
developed and established counterparts.

PNB’s risk assessment and monitoring methodologies may be different from other
banks and financial institutions.

PNB’s pertinent risk data such as the credit history and loan exposure of proposed
borrowers may be incomplete or obsolete. Consequently, the eftectivencss of PNB's
risk management may not bc at par with other banks. If PNB is unable to attain the
necessary expertise and systems similar to its peers, PNB’s ability to tanage the risks
inherent in its business, to expand its base of operations, to fortify its financial
position and to enhance its profitability may be adverscly affected.

PNB may fail to upgrade or effectively operate its information rechnology systems.

PNB’s businesses are heavily dependent on the ability to timely and accurately collect
and process a large amount of financial and other information across numerous and
diverse markets and products at its various branches, at a timec when transaction
processes have become increasingly complex with increasing volume. The proper
functioning of PNB’s financial control, risk management, accounting or other data
collection and processing systems, logether with the communication networks
connecting PNB’s various branches and offices is critical to its business and its ability
to compete effectively. PNB has centralized the database in respect of its domestic
business through the adoption ol a core banking system that provides the capability of
online real-time transaction processing and accessible in various electronic channels,
including ATMs, internet banking, and mobile banking. Any failure in PNB’s systems
or to implement new systems, particularly for retail products and banking transactions

could have a negative effect on its business, financial condition and results of
operations,
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PNB’s failure to manage risks associated with its information and technology
systems could adversely affect its business.

PNB is subject to risks relating to its information and technology systems and
processes. The hardware and software used by PNB in its information technology are
vulngrable to damage or interruption by human error, misconduct, malfunction,
natural disasters, power loss, sabotage, computer viruses or the interruption or loss of
support services from third partics such as internet service providers, ATM operators
and telephone companies. Any disruption, outage, delay or other difficulties
experienced by any of these information and technology systems could result in
delays, disruptions, losses or errors that may result in loss of income and decreased
consumer confidence in PNB. These may, in turn, adversely affect PNB’s business,
financial condition and results of operations,

PNB also seeks to protect its computer systems and network infrastructure from
physical break-ins as well as security breaches and other disruptive problems caused
by PNB’s increased use of the internet. Computer break-ins and security breaches
would atfcet the security of information stored in and transmitted through these
computer systems and network infrastructure, PNB employs security systems and
maintains operational procedures to prevent break-ins, damage and failures. The
potential for fraud and securities problems is likcly to persist and there can be no
assurance that these security measurcs will be adequate or successful. The costs of
maintaining such security measures may also increase substantially. Failure in security
measures could have a material adverse effect on PNB’s business, financial condition
and rcsulis of operations,

PNB relies principally on short-term deposits for its funding needs.

PNB’s funding needs are principally satisfied from demand, savings and time
deposits, and 1o a smaller extent, borrowings from other banks. Although PNB’s
deposits have historically been a stable source of funding for PNB, no assurance can
be given that this will continue to be the case in the futurc. In the event a substantial
number of PNB’s depositors withdraw, or do not roll over their deposits, or if other
banks do not lend short term funds to PNB as they have in the past, PNB’s liquidity
position could be adversely affected, which could result in its inability to fund its loan
portfolio and may require PNB to seek alicrnative sources of funding, PNB can
provide no assurance as to the availability or terms of such funding. To the extent
PNRB is unable to obtain sufficient funding on acceptable terms or at all, PNB’s
liquidity and financial condition and results of operations will be adversely atfected.

PNB could be materially and negatively affected by sudden and unfavorable
changes in the Philippine banking industry.

PNB’s financial condition and performance, like other local banks, is directly affected
by trends and movements in the Philippine banking industry. Disruptions in the
financial sector or in the general cconomic conditions of the Philippines may cause the
Philippine banking industry, along with PNB, to encounter similar problems faced
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during the Asian economic crisis such as substantial increases in NPLs, liquidity
issues, capital adequacy problems, and other challenges.

The current global economic climate could negatively impact PNB’s business.

The global markets have been highly volatile in recent times due to the economic
instability occurring in different areas of the world, particularly in Europe, that may
continue to persist in the near future. Capital markets around the world, including in
Asia, have reacted to these turbulent global cconomic conditions negatively and
turther volatility may adversely impact the Bank’s business and performance, In
addition, some economists have forecasted that the United States, China, and Europe
will experience a slower pacc of growth. All of these developments may significantly
impact trade volumes with potentially untoward effects on the Philippines and
eventually on the Bank’s business.

There is no assurance that the volatility and uncertainty prevailing in global markets
will not spill over and adverscly affect credit markets in Asia, including in the
Philippines. Any deterioration in the economic conditions in the Philippines as a result
of the forcgoing factors could materially and adversely affect the Bank’s borrowers,
clients and counter-parties. This, in turn, could materially and adversely affect the
Bank’s financial condition and results of operations, as well as the Bank’s ability to
implement its business strategy. There can also be no assurance that PNB and its

operations will be protected against adverse developments arising from the global
chvironment.

PNB is controiled by the LT Group, Inc. whose interests may significantly differ
Jrom other shareholders in the bank

As of 31 December 2013, the LT Group, Inc. (LTGI) held indircct ownership over
56.47% of the Bank's shares through various subsidiaries. Shareholders associated
with or who issue proxies/special powers of attorney in favor of Mr. Lucio C. Tan
from time to time held a total of about 17.95% of the Bank’s sharcs, while the latter

held direct ownership over 1.19% of the Bank’s shares. The remaining 24.39% were
owned by other stockholders.

As of 31 March 2014, the LT Group, Inc. (LTGI) held indirect ownership over
38.05% of the Bank’s shares through various subsidiaries, Shareholders associated
with or who issue proxies/special powers of attorney in favor of Mr. Lucio C. Tan
from time to time held a total of about 17.42% of the Bank’s shares, while the latter
held direct ownership over 1.15% of the Bank’s shares, The remaining 23.38% were
owned by other stockholders.
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RISKS RELATING TO THE PHILIPPINES

PNB is exposed to risks associated with the Philippines because substantially all of
the Bank’s assets and business activities are based in the Philippines.

Historically, PNB has derived substantially all of its operating income from the
Philippines. Hence, PNB’s business is highly dependent on the state of the Philippine
economy, Factors that may adversely affect the Philippine cconomy include:

* uncontrollable inflation and increasing interest rates;

* high unemployment, dwindling consumer confidence and low income;

» exchange rate fluctuations;

* slowdown in business, industrial, manufacturing and financial activities;
» credit scarcity resulting in lower consumer spending;

= changes in Government fiscal policy;

= re-emergence of epidemic discases such as SARS and avian influenza;

= natural catastrophes;

= political instability, mutinics, acts of terrorism and military conflict.

There is no assurance that the country will attain strong economic fundamentals in the

future. Any abrupt changes in the conditions in the country may adversely affect
PNB’s business, financial position and profitability.

Political Instability in the Philippines may negatively impact PNB’s business,
[Jinancial standing and profitability.

In recent years, the Philippincs has seen several unsuccessful military wprisings and,
every so often, public protests are held. A turbulent political atmosphere diminishes
investor confidence and may adversely affect PNB’s business. Despite the high

approval ratings of President Benigno 8. Aquino 111, there can be no assurance that the
country will avoid political turmoil,

Terrorist acts and high-profile vielent crimes threaten the coumtry’s stability and
may have an adverse effect on PNB’s business, financial standing and profitability.

In recent history, the country has been victim to numerous acts of terrorism. There
have been several prominent kidnappings and slayings of foreigners. A number of
bombings have occurred, And, most recently, the hijacking of a tourist bus carrying
Hong Kong tourists that resulted in the deaths of several passengers took place. These
incidents alienate affected parties and have adverse effects on investor confidence, and
consequently, the Philippine economy.

Natural catasirophes may negatively affect PNB's business, financial standing and
profitability.
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The Philippines is plagued by typhoons and is hit by floods, earthquakes and volcanic
eruptions from time to time. The occurrence of natural disasters may affect the
capacity of PNB’s clients to fulfill their obligations to PNB,

Also, despite the implementation of business conlinuity management measures, there
can be no assurance that PNB will be fully capable to deal with these kinds of
situations and that insurance will fully compensate PNB for the damage and economic
losses brought about by thesc catastrophes.

Any future changes in PFRS may affect the financial reporting of PNB’s business.

PFRS continues to cvolve as standards and interpretations promulgated subsequent to
December 31, 2011 come into effect. In 2011, the BSP approved the guidelines on the
early adoption by banks and other BSP-supervised financial institations of PFRS 9
Financial Instruments under Circular No. 708 s. 2011. In 2012, the provision of
Circular No, 708 was amended by Circular No. 761. PFRS 9 is the local adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) 9 Financial Instruments, which
is the first phase of the three-phase improvement project by the International
Accounting Standards Board to ultimately replace Intcrnational Accounting Standards
(“1AS™) 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Phases 2 and 3 of
the project deal with accounting for the impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting, respectively. Phase 1 of TFRS 9, which deals with the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, was adopted in the
Philippines by the Financial Reporting Standards Council as PFRS 9, Tt will become
mandatory for annual periods beginning January 1, 2015, and carly application is
permitted. PFRS 9 aims to improve and simplify the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. It requires entities to classify and subscquently measure
financial assets at cither amortized cost or fair value on the basis of both (a) the
entitics’ business model for managing the financial assets and (b) the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asscts. Among others, PFRS 9 eliminates
“Available-for-Sale” (“AFS”) and “Held-to-Maturity” (“HTM™) categories, together
with the “tainting rule”, which requires entities to reclassify HTM securities to AFS
securities in the event that any more than an insignificant amount of an instrument
booked under the HTM category is sold or reclassitied. PFRS 9 also eliminates the
requirement to bifurcate embedded derivatives from financial assets host contracts. It
also requires enhanced disclosures to help the users of financial statements better
understand the risks and the likely cash flows from the financial assets.

In addition to the required compliance with the provisions of PFRS 9 by banks and
other BSP-supervised cntities, the newly approved guidelines also provide for certain
prudential requirements, such as approval by the entities’ board of dircctors or
¢quivalent governing body of the carly adoption and submission by early adopters of
the prescribed additional reportorial requirements., Phasc 2 will deal with
measurements of financial assets classified as amortized cost. This may require
recognition of credit loss expectations which may be significantly differemt from
current accounting requirements under 1A% 39, On the other hand, Phase 3 will
propose significant hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39, There can be no
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assurance as to the implementation of new accounting standards in the Philippines and

the significance of the impact it may have on the future financial statements of PNB’s
businesses,

Corporate governance and disclosure standards in the Philippines may be less
stringent than those in other couniries.

There may be less publicly available information about Philippine public companies
than is regularly made available by public companies in certain other countries.
Philippine SEC and PSE requirements with respect to corporate governance standards
may also be less stringent than those applicable in certain other jurisdictions. For
example, the SRC requires publicly listed companies to have at least two independent
directors or such number of independent directors as is equal to 20.0% of its board of
directors, whichever is lower, but in no case less than two. Many other countries
require significantly more independent directors. Further, rules against self-dealing
and those protecting minority shareholders may be less stringent or developed in the
Philippines. Such potentially lower standards in certain arcas of disclosure and
corporalc governance may materially and adversely affect the interests of PNB’s
shareholders, particularly those of minority shareholders.

The sovereign credit ratings of the Philippines may adversely affect PNB’s
business.

Historically, the Philippines’ sovereign debt has been rated relatively low by
international credit rating agencies. Although the Philippines® long-term foreign
currency-denormninated debt was recently upgraded by Fitch and Standard & Poor’s to
the investment-grade rating of BBB-, Moody's has not upgraded its rating of the
Philippines” sovereign debt to investment grade. The continued relatively low
sovereign ratings of the Government may directly and adversely affect companies
resident in the Philippines, as international credit rating agencics issue credit ratings
by reference to that of the sovereign. No assurance can be given that Moody’s,
Standard & Poor’s or any other international credit rating agency will not downgrade
the credit ratings of the Government in the future and, therefore, of Philippine
companies, including PNB. Any of such downgrades could have an adverse impact on
the liquidity in the Philippine financial markets, the ability of the Government and
Philippine companies, including PNB, o raise additional financing and the interest
rates and other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available.
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RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE SHARES
The PNB shares are subject to market price fluctuations and liquidity risks,

The market price of securities fluctuates and no one can predict with certainty the
behavior of the price of PNB shares. There is an inherent risk of loss attached to the
PNB shares as downward price movement, cven the total loss of its value, is a
possibility. The Philippine securities markets are substantially smaller, less active,
more volatile and less regulated than other more developed markets. Hence, an
investor may not be able to sell his/her shares as quickly as he/she would desire at
his/her desired price.

Despite the fact that the issue price has been determined after rigorous study, the PNB
shares may trade at a significantly different price from the issue price subsequent to
the completion of the issuance. PNB will apply for the listing of the issued shares on
the PSE after registration. However, there can be no assurance that there will be an
active trading market for thc PNB shares or it will be sustained after the issuance and
listing.

Future issuance of new PNB shares in the public market could adversely affect the

prevailing market price of the shares and unfavorably impact the ownership of
existing sharehalders.

In the interest of business expansion, the Board may resort to raising capital through
the issuancce of mew equity or equity-linked securities. This may cause existing
shareholders to cxperience dilution and/or may result in their shares becoming
subordinate to the newly issued securities, Furthermore, the market price of the shares
may decline, The foregoing may affect PNB’s ability to raise capital at a time and at a
price it deems appropriate.

PNB may be unable to pay dividends on the shares.

There is no assurance that PNB can or will declare dividends on the shares in the
future. Dividends, if any, are determined by the Board and will depend on PNB’s
performance, financial standing, capital requircments, loan obligations, legal,
regulatory and contractual restrictions, and other factors the Board may deem
perlinent.
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DETERMINATION OF ISSUE PRICE

ING Bank, N.V., Financial Advisor to the majority shareholders of PNB and Allied
Bank, proposed a sharc swap ratio between PNB and Allied Bank for approval by
their respective Boards. The majority shareholders of PNB and Allied Bank
considered several investment banks and selected ING on the basis of its
qualifications and advisory track record in Philippine bank mergers and acquisitions.

ING is a Financial Advisor with a long track record in advising on merger and
acquisition transactions in the Philippines. ING has advised in at least 19 M&A and
advisory transactions involving banks and other financial institutions in the
Philippines, including landmark deals such as the privatization of Philippine National
Bank in 2005 and the merger between Banco de Oro and Equitable PCI Bank in 2008.
ING has acted as the Financial Advisor for the majority shareholders of PNB and
Allied Bank in relation to the proposed merger since 2007. ING is also aceredited by
the PSE to issuc fairncss opinions and valuation reports for listed companies and
prospective listing applicants.

ING’s recommendation was based solely on publicly available information and other
information on Allied Bank and PNB provided to ING by the management teams of
Allicd Bank and PNB, Roxas de Los Reyes Laurel Rosario & Leagogo Law Offices
and SGV & Co. (collectively known as “Management and Advisers™). In formulating
the recommendation, ING relied on Management and Adviscrs to ensure that the
information and facts supplied by them are true, accurate and complete in all material
respects as of the date hereof and that all information which is or may be relevant, has
been provided to ING. ING also relied on the discussions with members of the
management of Allied Bank and PNB regarding their respective financial projections
and other information provided to ING. ING did not independently verify such
information nor conducted any independent in-depth investigation into the business,
and the affairs, of Allied Bank, PNB, or the merged entity.

To determine the swap ratio, ING used contribution analysis 10 examinc the relative
contribution of PNB and Allicd Bank to a hypothetical combined entity and thereby

determine the owmership levels between both banks’ shareholders in the enlarged
entity,

Various methodologies were used, including (a) Relative “Fair Values” (e.g.,
Dividend Discount Model, Adjusted Net Asset Value, Comparables Analysis), (b)
Relative Size (e.g., Total Assets, Interest-Eaming Assets, Deposits, Stockholders’

Equity), and (c) Relative Operating Performance (e.g., Intcrest Income, Net Interest
Income, Net Interest Income + Non-Interest Income, Underlying Profit).

Each methodology yielded a certain relative contribution ratio betwesn PNB and
Allied Bank. Based on the relative contribution ratio and current outstanding capital
stock of PNB, the required number of PNB common shares to be issued to Allied
Bank shareholders, commensurate to Allied Bank’s contribution to the enlarged
entity, was computed. Such rumber of PNB common shares was, in tarn, divided by
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the current outstanding capital stock of Allied Bank to arrive at an implied share swap
ratio.  After discussions with PNB and Allied Bank management and majority
shareholders, ING proposcd a specific share swap ratio within the range of implied

share swap ratios for the various methodologies and presented such to PNB’s and
Allied Bank's Board of Directors for approval.

On 30 April 2008 and 24 June 2008, the Board of Directors and stockholders of PNB
and Allied Bank, at separate meetings, approved the mcrger of both banks with PNB
as the surviving entity. At that time, the stockholders of both banks approved the
Exchange Ratio of 140 PNB common shares for one Allied Bank common sharc and
30.73 PNB common shares for one Allied Bank preferred share at the issue price of
P55.00 per share. Thereafter, PNB sought for the approval of the merger with the
BSP, the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation (“PDIC™) and the SEC, as well as
foreign regulators for its operations abroad. Due to certain regulatory requirements,

however, the merger was delayed. PNB has sincc complied with the same regulatory
requircrments.

Due 10 the passage of time since the Boards’ and shareholders’ approvals in 2008,
both banks decided to review the exchange ratio for their respective shares. Upon the
recommendation of ING, the following exchange ratio was proposed:

1. 130 PNBE common shares for cach Allied Bank common share
2. 22.763 PNB common sharcs for each Allied Bank preferred share.

The Issue Price was also recommended to be increased to P70.00 per share from
P55.00 per share.

On 16 December 2011 and 6 March 2012, each of the Board of Directors and
shareholders of PNB and Allied Bank, at separate meetings, approved the proposed a
share swap ratio of 130 PNB common shares for each Allied Bank common share and

22.763 PNB common shares for each Allied Bank preferred share at an Issue Price of
P70.00 per share.

On July 235, 2012, the PDIC granted its consent to the proposed merger of PNB and
Allied Bank, with PNB as the surviving entity, pursuant to Sec. 21 (c) of R.A. 3591,
as amended (the “PDIC Charter”), subject to certain conditions. This was followed by
the BSP’s approval of the Plan and Articles of Merger on August 13, 2012, subject
also to certain conditions.

On January 17, 2013, the SEC approved the Plan and Articles of Mcrger.

Applying the Exchange Ratio, the stockholders of Allied Bank are entitied to the
corresponding shares of PNB in the following amounts:
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Name of Allied Bank Stockholders

R e

_ e e = = e
o T =

20,
21
22,
23.
24,
23,
26,
27,
28.
29,
i
3,

Key Landmark Investments, Lid.

True Suecess Profits L,

Caravan Holdings Corporation

Solar Holdings Corporation

Pritha Equilies & Investments Corporation
Infinity Equities, Inc.

Virgo Holdings & Devclopment Corporation
Virge Holdings & Development Corporation
Jewel Holdings, Ing,

Iris Holdings & Development Corporation

. Iris Holdings & Development Corporalion

Lugio C. Tan

. Ignacio B, Gimener
. Willy 5. Co

Kings Investment & Developmet Corporation

. Manano Tanenghan

Ramon Lee

Lur L. Siy

Nelly 5. Sy

Domingo T, Chua
Marano Khoo
Ramon L, Siy
Mariano G. Ordoner
James Ang Yiok Teck
Manuel T, Gonzalcs
P.0. Dominge
Michael G, Tan
Reynaldo A. Maclang
Harry C. Tan

Patrick L. Go
Anthony Q, Chua

TOTAL

Type of

ABC Sharcs

Common
Common
Connon
Common
Common
Commaon
Common
Preferrad
Common
Common
Freferred
Comtnon
Common
Commum
Common
Common
Cotninon
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Cominoen
Comnon
Cotamon
Comimon
Common
Common
Cominon
Common
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Number of Converted
ABC Shares PNB Sharcs
729,872 94,883,360
449,152 58,380,760
446,152 58,389,760
449,152 58,389,760
393,008 51,091,040
336,864 43,792,320
52,617 6,840,210
25,000 569 075
77,005 10,010,650
46,957 6,101,810
25,000 569,075
Q6 185 12,907,050
44,089 5,731,570
38,768 5,039,840
29,571 3,844,230
17,635 2,292,550
17,635 2,292 550
8,759 1,138,670
8,716 1,133,080
3,511 456,430
M40 57,200

150 19,500

142 18,460

10 1,300

10 1,300

11} 1,300

1 130

1 130

| 130

1 130

1 130

3,302,495 411,962,500



DILUTION

The merger with Allied Bank will be undertaken via a share-for-share swap
transaction, where all the issued and outstanding common shares of Allied Bank will
bhe converted to fully-paid and non-assessable common shares of PNB at a ratio of
130 PNB common shares for each issued Allied Bank common share and all the
outstanding preferred stock of Allied Bank will be converted to fully paid and non-
assessable PNB common shares at a ratio of 22.763 PNB common shares for each
Allied Bank preferred share, all at an issue price of R70.00.

The book value attributable to PNB’s common shareholders, based on PNB’s audited
financial statements as of December 31, 2012, was R38.4 billion, while the book value
per share was at B58.06, The book value represents total equity attributable to equity
holders of PNB. PNB’s book value per share is computed by dividing the book value
by the number of common shares outstanding less shares held by a subsidiary.

Dilution in book value per share to Allied Bank shareholders represents the difference
between the issue price and the book value per share (cxcluding goodwill, core
deposits intangibles and customer relationship intangibles) as of December 31, 2013.
The book value attributable to PNB’s common shareholders, based on PNB’s audited
financial statements as of December 31, 2013, was 883.9 billion, while the book value
per share was at £60.25. The book value per share (excluding goodwill, core deposits
intangibles and customer relationship intangibles) represents total equity attributable
to equity holders of PNB less goodwill, divided by the number of common shares
outstanding post-merger less shares held by a subsidiary.

The following table illustrates dilution on a per share hasis based on the issue price;

[ssue price per share R 70.00
PNB book value per share as of December 31, 2012 £ 58.06
Difference in issue price per share and PNB book value per share as of

December 31, 2012 B 1194
Book value per share (excluding goodwill) as of December 31, 2013 £60.25
Dilution in pro forma book value per share to Allied Bank sharcholders 9.75

The following table sets forth the shareholdings and percentage of common shares
outstanding of existing PNB sharcholders and Allied Bank shareholders immediately
after completion of the issuance:

Common shares

Number Y

Existing PNB shareholders 662,245,916 61%

Allied Bank shareholders 423,962,500 39%

Total 1,086,208.416 100%
48
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

As the issuance of shares is limited to the sharcholders of Allied Bank and only occurs
by operation of law upon the SEC’s approval of the Merger between Allied Bank and
PNB, there is no underwriter or marketer engaged by PNB with respect to this
offering, as such, there is no compensation to be paid to selling agents, underwriters or
marketers with respect to this offering. There is likewise no compensation to be paid
to selling agents or underwriters by PNB with respect to this offering. Further, there
are no brokers/dealers or finders engaged for purposes of this offering,

Designated Shares and Allocations

The shares to be issued under this offering are issned on a limited basis to the
shareholders of Allied Bank as part of the Merger which was undertaken via a share-
for-share swap transaction, As contained in the Plan of Merger, all the issued and
outstanding Common Stock of Allied Bank will be converted into fully-paid and non-
assessable Common Stock of PNB at a ratio of 130 PNB Common Shares for each
issued Allied Bank Common Share while all the issucd and outstanding Preferred
Stock of Allied Bank will also be converted into fully-paid and non-assessable PNB

Common Sharcs at a ratio of 22.763 PNB Common Shares for each issued Allied
Bank Preferved Share.

On 17 January 2013, the SEC approved the Mcrger of PNB and Allied Bank and
simultaneously approved the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation of PNB
reclagsifying PNB's 195,175,444 Authorized Preferred Shares into Authorized
Common Shares thereby increasing its Authorized Common Shates to 1,250,000,001
corresponding to its Authorized Capital Stock of B50,000,000,040.00. As a
consequence of the approval of the Plan and Articles of Merger and by operation of
law, PNB is then required to issue new PNB Common Shares out of its authorized and
unissued capital stock at an Issue Price of B70.00 per share to swap for the
outstanding Allied Bank Common Shares and Preferred Shares in accordance with the
Plan of Merger.

said new PNB Common Shares will be listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange
(GEPSEPD).

In case of any resulting fractional shares from the above Exchange Ratio, each holder
of Allied Bank Common Shares and Allied Bank Preferred Shares who would
otherwise be entitled to such fractional share shall be entitled to an amount in cash,
without interest, rounded to the nearest centavo cqual to the product of (a) the amount
of the fractional share intercst in a PNB Common Share to which such holder is
entitled and (b) the average of the closing sale prices for PNB Common Shares on the
PSE for each of the thirty (30) consecutive trading days ending on the date of
execution by the parties to the Amended Plan of Merger.
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Applying the Exchange Ratio, all of the shareholders of Allied Bank are entitled to a

corresponding number of PNB shares, as follows:

ALLIED BANK SHAREHOLDERS AND THEIR CORRESPONDING PNB

SHARES:

Name of Allied Bank Stockholders

Key Landmark Investments, Ltd.

True Success Profits Ltd.

Caravan Holdings Corporation

Solar Holdings Corporation

Prima Equities & Investments Corporation
Infinity Equities, Inc.

Lol BB Sl

9. Jewel Holdings, Inc,

10, Iris Holdings & Development Corporation
11. Iris Holdings & Development Corporation
12. Luecio C. Tan

13. Ignacio B. Gimenez

14. Willy S, Co

15. Kings Investment & Development Corporation

16, Mariano Tanenglian
17, Ramon Lee

18. Luz L, Siy

19, Nelly 5. Sy

20. Domingo T. Chua
21. Mariano Khoo

22, Ramon L. Siy

23. Mariano G. Ordonez
24, James Ang Yiok Teck
25. Manuel T. Gonzales
26. P.O. Domingo

27. Michael G. Tan

28, Reynaldo A. Maclang
29. Harry C. Tan

30, Patrick L. Go

31. Anthony Q. Chua

TOTAL

Virgo Holdings & Development Corporation
Virgo Holdings & Development Corporation

Type of
ABC Shares

Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Cominon
Common
Preferred
Common
Common
Preferred
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Commeon
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Number of Converted

ABC Shares PNEB Shares
729872 094,883,360
449,152 58,389,760
449,152 58,389,760
449,152 58,389,760
393,008 51,091,040
336,864 43,792,320
32,617 6,840,210
25,000 569,075
77,005 10,010,650
46,937 6,101,810
25,000 569,075
99,285 12,907,050
44,089 5,731,570
38,768 5,039 840
29,571 3,844,230
17,635 2,292,550
17,635 2,292,550
8,759 1,138,670
8,716 1,133,080
3,511 456,430
440 57,200
150 19,500
142 18,460
10 1,300
10 1,300
10 1,300
1 130
1 130
1 130
1 130
1 130
3,302,495  423962,500



DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES TO BE REGISTERED

Prior to the approval of the Merger, PNB’s authorized capital stock amounted to
£50,000,000,040.00 divided into 1,054,824,557 common shares at a par value of
£40.00 per sharc and 195,175,444 preferred shares at a par value of B40.00 per share.
In accordance with the Plan of Merger, the Bank re-classified all its preferred shares to
comtnon shares to accommodatc the issuance of 423,962,500 shares to the
shareholders of Allied Bank. On 17 Janvary 2013, the Securities and Exchange
Commission approved the Plan of Merger and the Amended Articles of Incorporation
including the re-classification of 195,175,444 preferred shares to common shares,
thereby increasing the number of common shares to 1,250,000,001 common shares

with a par value of B40.00 per share, of which 423,962,500 are issued to Allied Bank
shareholders,

As of 31 December 2013, the total number of sharcs issued and outstanding was
1,086,208,416, of which 763,031,006 shares (or 70.24720%) were held by Filipino-
Private Stockholders while the remaining 323,177,410 shares (or 29.75280%) are held
by Foreign-Private Stockholders. The Bank has a total of R43,448,336,640.00
subscribed capital.

At each mecting of stockholders, every stockholder entitled to vote on a particular
question involved is entitled to one (1) vote for each share of stock standing in his
name in the books of the Bank at the time of the closing of the Stock and Transfer
Book for such meeting or on the record date fixed by the Board of Directors (Section
4.9 of PNB’s Amended By-Laws)

Section 24 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines provides that “x x x every
stockholder entitled to vote shall have the right to vote in person or by proxy the
number of shares of stock standing, at the time fixed by the by-laws, in his own nome
on the stock books of the corporation x x x and said stockholder may vote such
number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of
directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall equal, x x x.”

The Articles of Incorporation of PNB provides that the sharcholders have no pre-
emptive right on any new issuance of shares.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Dividends are declared and paid out of the earned surplus or nel profits of the Bank as
often and at such intervals as the Board of Directors may determine and in
accordance with the provisions of law and the regulations of the BSP, There are no
specific requirements relating to the Bank’s dividend policy.

Dividends to be paid in cash by the Bank are subject to approval by a majority of
the Board of Directors and no further approval from the Bank’s shareholders is
required. Dividends to be paid in the form of stock requires both the approval of a
majority of the Board of Dircctors and the approval of shareholders representing not
less than two-thirds of the Bank’s outstanding capital stock. Save as disclosed in this

Prospectus, there are no known restrictions to the Bank's ability to pay dividends
on the Shares.

The Bank’s dividend policy is an integral component of ils capilal management
policy and process rather than a stand-alone process. Its fundamental and
overriding policy is sustainability. These arc referenced against the Bank's capital
management adequacy process.

Pursuant to existing PSEC rules, cash dividends declared by the Bank must have a
record date that is neither less than 10 nor more than 30 days from the date the cash
dividends are declared. In case no record date is specified, the same is deemed to be
fixed at 15 days from such declaration. However, companics that arc obliged to pay
dividends may have a single declaration for several cash dividends within a year,

subject to the condition that their record and payment dates are also explicitly
provided.

With respect to stock dividends, the record date is to be neither less than 10 nor
more than 30 days from the date of shareholders’ approval, provided, however, that
the sct record date is not to be less than 10 trading days from receipt by the PSE
of the notice of declaration of stock dividend.

In relation to banks, however, the rccord date can only be fixed afier receipt of the
BSP’s approval for the dividend declaration, In the event that a stock dividend is
declared in conncction with an  increase in authorized capital stock, the
corresponding record date is to be fixed by the PSEC.

The payment of dividends in the future will depend on the Bank’s earnings, cash
fow, financial condition and other factors. Dividends may be declared only from
unrestricted retained earnings and subject to approval from the BSP, and to the extent
that the same comprises stock dividends, the PSEC. Appraisal increment amounting to
P7.7 billion and translation adjustment of P1.3 billion applied to deficit through a
quasi-reorganization in 2002 and 2000 are not available for dividend declaration.
Circumstances which could restrict the payment of cash dividends include, but are
not limited to, when the Bank undertakes major projects and developments requiring
substantial cash expenditures. The Board of Dircctors may, at any time, modify the
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Bank’s dividend payout ratio depending on the results of operations and future
projects and plans of the Bank.

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank had retained eamings of R13.0 billion, a

significant amount of which is available for the payment of dividends subject to
restrictions as mentioned above,

The table below scts out the earnings per Share of the Bank for the periods indicated:

Earnings
per
Share
For the year ended December 31, 2011.......ocvvvvenenee. 6.98
For the year ended December 31, 2012, ......cvvveone. 7.11
For the year ended December 31, 2013............co........ 4.88

The Bank has not declared any cash or stock dividends on its common cquity for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013.
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INTEREST OF NAMED EXPERTS AND INDEPENDENT COUNSEL

There are no experts or independent counsel who will receive a direct or indirect
interest in the Issuer or who was a promoter, underwriter, voting trustee, director,
officer, or employee of the registrant,

Apart from normal professional fees payable to the following entities which assisted
PNB and ABC with respect to the Merger and this Offer, no arrangement exists
whereby any of the following will receive any fees, benefits, securities or any direct or
indirect interest from PNB in connection with this Offer:

3GV & Co. audited the financial statements of the Registrant for the years ended 31
December 2011, 2012 and 2013 included in this prospectus. SGV & Co. does not

have shareholdings in PNB nor any right to nominate persons or subscribe to PNB
shares.

ING Bank, N.V,, Financial Advisor to the majority shareholders of PNB and Allied
Bank, proposed the share swap ratio between PNB and Allied Bank for approval by
their respective Boards and for submission to the sharcholders. ING has no direct or
indirect interest in PNB,

Roxas de Los Reyes Laurel Rosario & Leagoge Law Offices was engaged as
Transaction Counsel for the Merger. Roxas De Los Reyes Laurel Rosario & Leagogo
Law Officcs does not have any direct or indirect intcrest in PNB.

UBS Investmenis Philippines, Inc. (“*UBS”) rendered a “Fairness Opinion™ as to the
valuation of the PNB Shares and the Fxchange Ratio. UBS does not have any dircct
or indirect intercat in PNB.
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INFORMATION WITH RESPECT TO THE REGISTRANT

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS OF PNB

A. Business Development

The Philippine National Bank (PNB or the “Bank™), the country’s first universal bank,
is the [ourth largest private local commercial bank in terms of assets based on PNB’s
published Statement of Condition as of December 31, 2013, The Bank was
established as a government-owned banking institution on July 22, 1916. As an
instrument of economic development, the Bank led the industry through the years with
its agricultural modernization program and trade finance support for the country’s
agricultural exports, pioneering efforts in the Overseas Filipino Workers (OFW)
remittance business, as well as the introduction of many innovations such as Bank on
Wheels, computerized banking, ATM banking, mobile money changing, domestic
traveler’s checks, and electronic filing and payment system for large taxpayers. PNB
has the widest overseas office network and one of the largest domestic branch
networks among local banks.

In affirmation of the Bank’s well-managed operations, PNB received awards from the
Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD) and the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). In
2011 and 2012, PNB was given the Silver Award for Good Corporate Governance
from the 1CD in recognition of its professional practice of corporate directorship in
line with global principles of good governance. In 2012 and 2013, the BSP awarded
PNB as the Top Commercial Bank in Generating Remittances from Overscas
Filipinos for two years in a row. PNB was also elevated by the BSP as Hall of Fame
Awardce for Best Commercial Bank Respondent on Overseas Filipino Remittances
for having won the award for four straight years (2005-2008).

On February 9, 2013, the Bank concluded its planned merger with Allied Banking
Corporation (ABC), as approved and confirmed by the Board of Dircetors of the Bank
and of ABC on January 22 and January 23, 2013, respectively. The original Plan of
Merger was approved by the affirmative vote of shareholders on June 24, 2008
representing at least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of both banks. The
respective shareholders of the Bank and ARC, representing at least two-thirds of the

outstanding capital stock of both banks, approved the amended terms of the Plan of
Merger of both banks on March 6, 2012.

The Bank undertook long-term fund generating initiatives to support its growth and
expansion plans. PNB redeemed its high cost subordinated notes and replaced these
funds through the issuance of lower cost, long-term negotiable certificates of time
deposits (LTNCDs). On March 6, 2013, PNB exercised its call option and redeemed
the B4.5 billion (7.13%) Subordinated Notes due in 2018 issued by ABC. Likewise on
June 30, 2013, PNB exercised its call option on its R6.0 billion (8.5%) Unsecured
Subordinated Notes due in June 2018. Subsequently, the Bank successfully undertook
two tranches of LTNCD offerings, viz: (1) on August 5, 2013 for BS billion worth of
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LTNCDs at 3% which will mature on February 5, 2019; and (2) on October 21, 2013
for B4 billion worth of LTNCDs at 3.25% which will mature on April 22, 2019.

Recognizing the importance of its branches as the Bank’s primary platform for sales
and service, PNB continued to expand its branch network and improve delivery of
services. It opened three branches in 2013, relocated six branches to more strategic
and accessible locations based on market potential and growth, and renovated 11 other
branches using the new branch design. The Bank deployed additional 34 automated

teller machines (ATMs) nationwide in strategic, mostly off-site, locations with high
pedestrian traffic.

PNB fortified its bid to be a strong player in the consumer loans business, particularly
in its housing and motor vehicle market segments. It launched the PNB Home Flexi
Loan in 2013 wherein a client can borrow against his residential real estate properties
to get cash up to B 10 million to make housing improvements, purchase furniture and
fixtures, travel abroad or even acquire another property. The Bank also offered low
promo rates for PNB Home Loans received during the months of May to July.
Furthermore, PNB offered a promo financing tie-up with Chevrolet that featured free
chattel mortgage fee and free 3-year LTO registration in the last quarter of 2013,

To boost its credit card business, PNB launched the Jewelmer Joailletie Platinum
MasterCard in May 2013. In linc with the Bank’s integration initiatives, PNB also
rebranded the PNB and ABC Core Credit Cards and launched these in October 2013.

PNB remained at the forefront of debt capital markets, as the Bank led 7 corporate
finance deals in excess of £75 billion in the industries of power, infrastructure and
real estate. As PNB continued to originate and deliver structured solutions to large
corporates, the Bank was involved in a total of 13 big ticket deals in the aggregate
amount of & 140-billion.

PNB was actively involved in 3 Public-Private Partnership (PPP) projects that were
rolled out in 2013, As testament to thc Bank’s commitment (o nation building, the
Bank supported the bid of leading conglomerates for the NAIA Expressway and
Public School Infrastructure Project for Regions 1 to 4 and CAR. Ultimately, the Bank
led the 86.7B syndication for the Public School Infrastructure Projects in
CALABARZON, as well as the 87.5B syndication for the NAIA Expressway Project.

PNB further strengthened its distinct franchise over the Global Filipino market
segment, It maintained the widest network of overseas branches and offices serving as
primary contact point for overscas Filipinos. The Bank has expanded its reach even
further into non-traditional contact channels in the form of parmer agent agreements
and distribution through convenience stores and other similar retail outlets. PNB
continued to innovate its remittance products and services with the launch of Phone
Remit, a 24/7 toll free phone remittance platform servicing the Europe and US
market. The Bank also launched the PNB Web Remit in the last quarter of 2013 that
enables customers to conduct online remittance transactions anywhere and anytime,
The Bank continued to make headway in deepening its relationship with its Global
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Filipino customers by offering other products and services such as personal, home and
auto loans, including credit cards, PNB has a strong affinity with the Global Filipino
market and continues to enrich the lives of Filipinos worldwide,

Merger Developments

On April 30, 2008, the respective Board of Directors of PNB and Allied Banking
Corporation passed resolutions approving the plan to merge the two banks. The plan
of merger was subsequently approved on June 24, 2008 by the affirmative vote of
PNB and Allied Bank's respective shareholders representing at least two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock of each bank. The banks submitted the Plan of Merger to the
BSP on July 30, 2008,

In December 2008, the merger, which was expected to have been completed by the
end of 2008, encountered delays due to the requirement on ABC to divest its 27.78%
equity sharc in Oceanic Bank, a commercial bank based in California, USA, in
compliance with U8 banking regulations,

PNB and Allied Bank’s respective Boards of Directors passed a resolution in October
2011 approving the exccution of a Voting Trust Agreement among PNB, Oceanic
Holding (BVI) Ltd, and Mr. Walter Mix II, the nominated trustee. The agreement
placed all sharcs of the holding company that directly owned Oceanic Bank in a trust
to be sold to third parties. Allied Bank owned 27,.78% of Oceanic Holding (BVI) Ltd.
which in tum owned Oceanic Bank Holding, Inc., the parent company of QOceanic
Bank in San Francisco, California, U.5,A, PNB, as successor-in-interest of Oceanic
Bank upon merger, assumed all rights and responsibilities under the Agreement. The
US Fedcral Reserve Board subsequently approved the Voting Trust Agreement in
order to facilitate the merger of PNB and ABC in a manner that addressed US
regulatory concems,

On March 6, 2012, PNB and Allied Bank separately held Special Stockholders’
Meetings approving amended terms in the Plan of Merger of the two banks. In order
to secure all necessary approvals from the regulators, the banks submitted their
Amended Plan of Merger to the BSP and the PDIC on March 26, 2012 and to the SEC
on April 12, 2012,

On March 27, 2012, the trustee of the shareholders of Oceanic Holding (BVT) Litd.
entercd into a definitive agreement with FNB Bancorp (FNBG), the parent company
of First National Bank of North California, whereby the former agreed to sell to
FNBG all of the outstanding stocks of Occanic Bank Holding, Inc., the parent
company of Oceanic Bank.

On July 25, 2012, the PDIC granted its conscnt to the Merger of PNB and Allied
Bank, with PNB as the surviving entity, pursuant to Sec. 2lc of R.A. 3591, as
amended (PDIC Charter), subject to certain conditions, This was followed by the
advice from the BSP approving the Plan and Articles of Merger on August 13, 2012,
subject also to certain conditions.
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On January 17, 2013, the SEC approved the Amended Plan and Articles of Merger.

Having already gained all necessary regulatory approvals to proceed with the merger,
the Board of Directors of PNB and Allied Bank, in separate Special Board Meetings
held on January 22, 2013 and January 23, 2013, respectively, set the effective date of

the merger on February 9, 2013, Thus, on February 9, 2013, PNB and Allied Bank
merged into one bank.

With the merger, PNB is now the fourth largest private commercial bank in terms of

assets based on the Bank’s published Statement of Condition as of December 31,
2013,

Recent Developments

Stock Rights Offering and Share Offering

The Bank has recently successfully completed its Stock Rights Offering (Offer) of
162,931,262 common sharcs (Rights Shares) with a par value of B 40.00 per share at a
price of B 71.00 each. The Rights Shares were offered to all cligible sharcholders of
the Bank at the proportion of fifieen (15) Rights Shares for every one hundred (100)
common shares held as of the record date of January 16, 2014. The offer period was
from January 27, 2014 to February 3, 2014,

A total of 33,218,348 Rights Shares were sourced from the cxisting authorized but
unissued capital stock and, as such, were already issued and listed with the Philippine
Stock Exchange. This is an exempt transaction under Section 10,1 of the Securities
Regulation Code as confirmed by the SEC.

The remaining 129,712,914 Rights Shares will be sourced from an increase in
authorized capital stock of the Bank, which the Bank will apply for with the SEC after
receipt of the endorsement of the BSP, The listing of the said shares will be
accordingly announced as soon as the SEC approves the increase in the Bank’s
authorized capital stock,

The Offer was oversubscribed and raised gross proceeds of B 11.6 billion. The Offer
strengthens the Bank's capital position under the Basel I standards, which took effect
on January 1, 2014,

Equity Investment in PNB General Insurers Co.. lnc,

On February 28, 2014, the PNB Board of Directors approved the P600 million equity
investment in PNB Gen, a 100% -owned subsidiary of PNI3 Holdings Corp. PNB
Holdings Corp. in turn is 100% owned by PNB. The said equity investment was
likewise approved by the B&P on April 15, 2014, Payment by PNB of this investment
will be implemented upon SEC approval,
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Increase in Equity Investment in ACRB

On November 22, 2013, the BOD of the Parent Company approved and confirmed the
increase in equity investment of the Parent Company in ACB by way of purchase of
the remaining equity holdings of natural person investors. The increase in equity
investment in ACB is in relation to ACB’s application of Chinese Yuan (CNY)
license with the Chinese Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC). The CBRC
requires foreign banks applying for CNY license to be wholly owned by financial
institutions. The Parent Company has yet to request for BSP’s approval on the
proposed increase in equity investment in ACB,

Additional Capital Infusion in ASB, Sale of the Parent Company’s Consumer Loans
to ASB and Closure of PNB ItalySpA

The BOD of the Parent Company approved and confirmed the following on its
meeting on December 20, 2013:

(1) Infusion of additional equity to ASB amounting o B10.0 billion which will be
used to build and refocus the Group’s consumer lending business. The infusion of
additional equity to ASB has yet to be approved by the BSP.

(2) Sale of consumer loans of the Parent Company with carrying valuc amounting to B
6.0 billion 10 ASB on a without recourse basis.

(3) Closurc of PNB Italy SpA and shifting to an agent-arrangement to conlinue
remittance business in Italy.

B. Business Description
1. Products and Services

PNB , through its Head Office and 656 domestic branches/offices and 80 overseas
branches, representative offices, remittance centers and subsidiaries, provides a full
range of banking and financial services to large corporate, middle-market, small and
medinm enterprises (SMEs) and retail customers, including OFWs, as well as to the
Philippine National Government, national government agencies (NGAs), local
government units (LGUsz) and government owned and controlled corporations
(GOCCs) in the Philippines. PNB’s principal commercial banking activities include
deposit-taking, lending, trade financing, bills discounting, fund transfers/remittance
servicing, asset management, treasury operations, and comprehensive trust, retail
banking and other related financial services.

Its banking activities are undertaken through the lollowing groups within the Bank:

Institutional Banking Group
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The Bank's Institutional Banking Group is responsible for credit relationships with
large corporate, middle-market and SMEs, as well as with the Government and
government-related agencies and financial institutions.

Retail Banking Group

The Retail Banking Group (RBGQG) principally focuses on retail deposit products {(i.e.,
current accounts, savings accounts, time deposit and other accounts) and services.
While the focal point is the generation of low-cost funds for the Bank’s operations,
the RBG also concentrates on the cross-selling of other bank products and scrvices to

its customers by transforming its domestic branch distribution channels into a sales-
focused organization.

Consumer Finance Group
The Consumer Finance Group provides multi-purpose personal loans, home mortgage
loans, motor vehicle financing and credit card services to the Bank’s retail clients.

Global Filipino Banking Group

The Global Filipino Banking Group covers the Bank’s overseas offices which
essentially provide convenicnt and safe remittance services to numerous OFWs
abroad and full banking services in selected jurisdictions. PNB has the largest
overseas network among Philippine banks with 80 branches, representative offices,
remittance centers and subsidiaries in the United States of America (USA), Canada,
Europe, the Middle East and Asia. PNB also mainlains corrcspondent relationships
with 1,120 other banks and financial institutions worldwide,

Treasury Group

The Treasury Group is principally responsible for managing the Bank’s funding and
liquidity requirements as well as its investment and trading portfolio. The Treasury
Group engages the treasury operations of the Bank and its subsidiaries. It also
monitors PNB's compliance with the reserve requirements and guidelines of the BSP.
It furthcr cngages in inter-bank lending/borrowing, investment in peso and foreign
exchange denominated bonds and securities, currency trading, equities trading and
investment in structured products.

Trust Banking Group

Through its Trust Banking Group (TBG), PNB provides a wide range of personal and
corporate trust and fiduciary banking products and services. Personal trust products
and services for customers include living trust accounts, educational trust, estate
planning, guardianship, insurance trust and investment management. Corporate trust
services and products include trusteeship, securitization, investment portfolio
management, administration of employee benefits, pension and retirement plans, and
trust indenture services for local corporations. The TBG’s agency services inchude
acting as bond registrar, collecting and paying agent, loan facility agent, escrow agent,
share transfer agent and domestic receiving bank.

Credit Management Group

The Credit Management Group is primarily responsible for providing credit
management services in the form of credit rating and scoring, financial evaluation and
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credit risk assessment, credit policy formulation, credit investigation and appraisal and
risk asset acceptance criteria development, [t focuses on sound credit underwriting and
monitoring guidelines and practices to ensure a healthy loan portfolio for the Bank.

Remedial Management Group

The Remedial Management Group is primarily responsible for managing problem
accounts and reducing the non-performing loans of the Bank, 1t determines and
formulates the appropriate settlement plan for each work-out account for its
immediate resolution.

Special Asset Management Group
The main objective of the Special Assets Management Group is the disposal and/or

lease of the Bank’s real and other properties acquired (ROPA) and bank-owned
properties.

2. Competition

In the Philippines, the Bank faces competition in all its principal areas of business,
from both Philippine and foreign banks, as well as finance companies, mutual funds
and investment banks, The compctition that the Bank faces from both domestic and
foreign banks was in part a result of the liberalization of the banking industry by the
National Government in 1994 which allowed the entry of more foreign banks and the
recent mergers and consolidations in the banking industry. As of December 31, 2013,
there were 36 universal and commercial banks in the Philippines, of which 17 are
private domestic banks, 3 are government banks and 16 are branches or subsidiaries of
foreign banks. In some instances, sore compctitor banks have greater financial
resources, wider networks and greater market share. These banks may also offer a
wider range of commercial banking services and products, have larger lending limits
and stronger balance sheets than the Bank. To maintain its market position in the
industry, the Bank offers diverse products and services, invests in technology,
leverages on the synergies within the Tan Group of Companies and with its

government customers, as well as builds on relationships with the Bank’s other key
customers,

The Bank also faces competition in its operations overseas. In particular, the Bank’s
stronghold in the remittance business in 16 countries in North America, Europe, the
Middle East and Asia is being challenged by competitor banks and non-banks with
remittance business.

As of 31 December 2013, based on banks’ published statement of condition, the Bank

ranks 4th in terms of total assets among the five leading domestic commercial banks
| in the Philippines.
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(2 Billions) As of 31 December 2013

Total Loans .
Consolidated Total Total & Total

Assets Capital Receivables Deposits
BDO Unibank, Inc.* 1,672.8 164.4 922.6 1,345.3
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Co.* 1,378.6 142.7 6111 1,016.3
Bank of the Philippine Islands* 1,1954 105.8 635.2 088.6
Philippine National Bank* 618.1 23.9 274.3 462.4
Rizal Commercial Banking Corp.* 421.9 44 8 238.0 297.9

¥Sowrce: 17-A Disclosures with the PSE

3. Revenue by Geographical Location

PNB and its subsidiarics (hereinafter referred to as the “Group™) offer a wide range of
tinancial services in the Philippincs. In addition, the Group provides remittance
services in the USA, Canada, Asia, the Middle East and Europe. The following shows
the percentage distribution of the consolidated revenues for the past four (4) years:

2013 2012 2011

Philippines 093%% 93% 91%

Asia (excluding the Philippines)/ 4% 3% 4%,

Middle East

Canada and USA 2% 3% 4%

United Kingdom & Other 1% 1% 1%
European Union Countries

Total 100% 100% 100%

4, New Products and Services
The Bank launched the following products and services in 2013:

o Enhanced Internet Banking System

PNB’s Internet Banking service offers a sccure and convenient way for PNB
clicnts to do routine banking transactions right in the comfort of their own homes.
Users can monitor account balances, transfer funds to family and friends, pay bills,
schedule payments and fund transfers in advance and program recurring
transactions, order checkbooks, view their statement of account online, and get
email notifications to monitor their transactions. The facility has also been
enhanced to include online savings account, opening for individual accounts, as
well as SMS alerts for fund transfers or bills payments made.

o PNB Web Remit
PNB Web Remit offers fast and safe means for clients to remit to their loved ones
using the Internet. Using the PNB Web Remit portal www.pnbwebremit.com,
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customers can enroll and automatically make a remittance transaction via cash
pick-up, or credit o a PNB account or another bank account. The facility also
features the PNB Remittance Tracker, where clients can know the status of their

remittance by just clicking the track remittance button and encoding the reference
number,

© Healthy Ka Pinoy (HKP) Emergency Card
The Healthy Ka Pinoy (HKP) Health Emergency Card is an affordable insurance
product by PNB Life (insurance provider) and Eastwest Healthcare (hospital
network and emergency services provider). For an annual premium of only
B750.00, clients can receive coverage of 820,000.00 in Emergency Hospital Care
for Accident and Sickness; £100,000.00 in- Accidental Death, Dismemberment
and Disability benefits; and B20,000.00 in Accidental Burial Benefit per year.

o PNB UITF Online_

The PNB UITF Online is the Bank’s electronic banking platform that allows PNB
account holders to perform investment transactions conveniently and securely
using the Intemet. Through PNB UITF Ounline, clients can make direct
investments, subscribe to an Auto Investment Plan (AIP), make additional
participations, make full and partial redemptions, enroll an existing UITF
participation, view their consolidated UITF portfolio, and generate an electronic
copy of their Confirmation of Participation and Participating Trust Agreement.

o PNB Auto Invest Plan
The PNB Auto Invest Plan (AIP) is an investment facility which allows PNB
account holders to regularly set aside a portion of their savings for automatic
investment to a PNB Unit Investment Trust Fund (UYTF) of their preference once
it reaches the required threshold amount. PNB AIP provides potentially higher

returns than traditional savings deposit, and customers can start investing for as
little as 8100 or USD10,

5. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of busincss, the Bank has loans and other credit
accommodations and guarantees granted to its subsidiarics, affiliates, and “Directors,
Officers, Stockholders and Related Interests™ (DOSRI). These loans and other related
party transactions are made substantially on the same terms as other individuals and
businesses of comparable risk. The individual ceiling of the total outstanding loans,
other credit accommodations and guarantees to each of the Bank’s DOSRI shall be
limited to an amount equivalent to their respective unencumbered deposits and book
value of their paid-in capital contribution in the Bank, provided, however, that
unsecured loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees to each of the Bank’
DOSRI individuals shall not cxceed 30% of their respective total loans, other credit
accommodations and guarantees, In the aggregate, DOSRI loans should not exceed
15% of the Bank’s total portfolio or 100% of its net worth, whichever is lower. As of
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December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Bank is in compliance with such
regulations.

Information related o transactions with related parties and with certain DOSRI is
shown under Note 32 of the Audited Financial Statements of the Bank and

Subsidiaries and Exhibit [V of the Supplementary Schedules Required by SRC Rule
68 in Annex E.

The Board Oversight Related Party Transactions (RPT) Committee (BORC) was
created to assist the Board in performing its oversight function in monitoring and
ensuring transparency to climinate potential conflicts of interest of management,
board members and shareholders,

The BORC is composed of at least six (6) regular members which include three (3)
independent directors; the Chairman of the Risk Oversight Committee (ROC); and
two (2) non-voting members (the Chief Audit Executive, a non-voting member and
the Chief Compliance Officer), and Secretariat. The Chairman of the Committee is an
Independent Director and appointed by the Board.

6. Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises, Concessions and Royalty
Agreements

The Bank’s operations are not dependent on any patents, tradcmarks, copyrights,
franchises, concessions, and royalty agreements.

7. Government Approval of Principal Products or Services

Generally, e-banking products and services require BSP approval. New deposit
products requirc notification to the BSP, The Bank has complied with the
aforementioned BSP requirements.

8. Estimate of Amount Spent for Research and Development Activities

‘The Bank provides adequate budget for the development of new products and services
which includes hardware and system development, continuous education and market

research, Estimated amount spent for 2013, 2012 and 2011 totaled £363.0 million,
£219.2 million and B223.3 million, respectively.



9. Number of Employees

The total employees of the Bank as of December 31, 2013 is 8,634 wherein 3,541 are
classified as Bank officers and 5,093 as rank and file employees, brokendown as
follows:

Officers: Total
Vice President and up 140
Senior Assistant Vice President to Assistant Manager 3,401

Rank and File 5,093

Total 8,034

The Bank shall continue to pursue selective and purposive hiring strictly based on
business requirements, The Bank anticipates gradual reduction in the number of
employees in the support group based on identified milestones.

With regard to the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), the Bank's regular rank
and file employees are represented by two (2) existing unions under the merged bank,
namely: Allied Employee Union (ABEU) and Philnabank Employees Association
(PEMA).

‘The Bank has not suffered any strikes, and the Management of the Bank considers its
relations with its employees and the unions as harmonious and mutually beneficial.

10. Risk Management

In Fecbruary 9, 2013, ABC and PNB implemented the BSP- and SEC-approved
merger. The process of harmonizing began in 2008 when the respective Board of

Directors of PNB and ABC passed resolutions approving the plan to merge the two
banks.

Under the Bank’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework, all the risk-taking

business units of the Bank, including its subsidiarics and affiliates, shall perform
comprchensive assessments of all material risks.

In ling with the integration of the ICAAP and risk management processes, PNB

currently monitors 14 Material Rigks (three for Pillar 1 and eleven for Pillar 2). These
material risks arc as follows:

Pillar 1 Risks:

1. Credit Risk (includes Counterparty and Country Risks)
2, Market Risk
3. Operational Risk

Pillar 2 Risks:
4. Compliance Risk (includes Regulatory Risk)
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5. Credit Concentration Risk

6. Human Resource Risk

7. Information Technology Risk (includes Information Security Risk)
8. Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book (IRRBB)

Liquidity Risk

10. Legal Risk

11. Customer Franchise/ Reputational Risk

12. Strategic Business Risk

13. Post-Merger Integration Risk

14. Acquircd Asset Disposal Risk

e

Pillar 1 Risk Weighted Assets are computed based on the guidelines set forth in BSP
Circular No, 538 using the Standard Approach for Credit and Market Risks and Basic

Indicator Approach for Operational Risks, Discussions that follow below are for
Pillar 1 Risks:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk to eamings or capital that arises from an obligor/s, customer/s or
counterparty/ics failure to perform and meet the terms of its contract. It arises any time
bank funds are extended, committed, invested, or otherwise exposed through actual or

implied contractual agreements, whether reflected on or off the balance sheet (BSP
Circular No. 510, dated February 03, 20006).

Counterparty Risks: Counterparty risk is the potential exposurc a party will bear if
the other party to any financial contract will be unable to fulfill its obligations under
the contractl’s specifications. Counterparty risk can be divided into two types: pre-
settlement risk (PSR) and settlement risk (SR).

Country Risks: Country risk refers to uncertaintics arising from economic, social and
political conditions of a country which may cause obligors in that country to be unable
or unwilling to fulfill their external obligations.

1. Credit Policies and Procedures

All credit risk policies issued by the regulatory bodies (i.e., BSP, SEC, PDIC, BIR,
¢t¢.) automatically form part of the Bank’s hoard-approved risk policies. These
risk policies reflect the Bank’s lending profile and focus on:

o the risk tolerance and/or risk appetite
¢ the required return on asset that the Bank expects to achicve
= the adequacy of capital for credit risk

2. Credit Risk Functional Organization
The credit risk functional organization of the Bank conforms to BSP regulations.
This ensures that the risk management function is independent of the business
line, In order to maintain a system of “checks and balances”, the Bank observes
three (3) primary functions involved in the credit risk management process,
namely:
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» risk-taking personnel
» risk management funciion
+ the compliance function

The risk-taking personnel are governed by a code of conduct for account officers

and related stakeholders set to ensure maintenance of the integrity of the Bank’s
credit risk management culture.

The approving authorities arc clearly defined in the Board-approved Manual of
Signing Authority (MSA),

. Credit Limit Structure

The Bank adopts a credit limit structure (regulatory and internal limits) as a
quantitative measure of the risk tolerance duly approved by the Board. Breaches in
the limits are monitored via the monthly credit dashboard reported to the Risk
Oversight Committee,

Stringent Credit Evaluation

Repayment capacity of prospective borrowers is evaluated using an effective
internal rigk rating model for corporate and commercial accounts with asset size of
over 15 million and appropriate credit scoring program for small accounts with
assct size of B15 million and below and consumer loans. These models are
validated to determine predictive ability.

Reporting System

An effcetive management information system (MIS) is in place and, at a
minimum, has the capacity to capture accurate credit risk exposure/position of the
Bank in real time. A monthly credit dashboard is used as the reporting tool for
appropriate and timely risk management process.

Remedial Management System
A work-out system for managing problem credits is in place. Among others, these

are renewals, extension of payment, restructuring, take-out of loans by other
banks, and regular review of the sufficiency of valuation reserves.

. Event-driven Stress Testing

Techniques are conducted to determine the payment capacity of affected
borrowers’ accounts. A Rapid Portfolio Review Program is in place to quickly
identify possible problem credits on account of evolving events, both domestic
and global. Results of the stress testing show minimum impact and have no
material effect on the Bank’s NPL ratio and capital adequacy ratio (CAR).

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from adverse movements in
factors that affect the market value of financial instruments, products and transactions

67



in an institution’s overall portfolio, both on and off balance sheet and contingent
financial contracts. Market risk arises from market-making, dealing and position-

taking in the interest rate, foreign exchange, equity, and commodities markets (BSP
Circulur No. 544, Series of 2006).

1.

Price Risk in the Trading Portfolio

The Bank’s trading positions are sensitive to changes in the market prices and
rates, PNB is subject to trading market risk in its position-taking activities for
fixed income, foreign exchange and equity markets, To calculate the risks in the
trading pertfolio, the Bank employs the Valuc-at-Risk (VAR) methodology with
99% confidence level and a one (1} day holding period (equities and FX VAR) to
a ten (10) day holding period for fixed income VAR.

VAR limits have been established annually and exposures against the VAR limits
are monitored on a daily basis. The VAR figures are back-lested against actual
(interest rates) and hypothetical profit and loss figures (FX and equities) to
validate the robustness of the VAR model.

The Bank also employs the stop-loss monitoring tools to monitor the exposure in
the price risks. Stop-loss limits are set up to prevent actual losses resulting from
mark-to-market. To complement the VAR measure, the Bank performs stress

testing and scenario analysis wherein the trading porifolios are valued under
several market scenarios.

Structural Market Rigk

structural interest rate risk arises from mismatches in the interest profile of the
Bank’s assets and liabilitics. To monitor the structural interest rate risk, the Bank
uses a repricing gap report wherein the repricing characteristics of its balance
sheet positions arc analyzed to come up with a repricing gap per tenor bucket. The
total repricing gap covering the one-year period is multiplied by the assumed
change in interest rates based on observed volatility at 99% confidence level to
obtain an approximation of the change in net interest carnings. Limits have been
set on the tolerable level of Farnings-at-Risk (EAR), Compliance with the limits is
monitored regularly. The Bank has also monitored its long-term exposure in

interest rates which outlines the long-term assets and long-term liabilities
according to next repricing date

Liguidity and Funding Risk

Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings
ot capital arising from the parent company’s inability to mect its obligations when
they fall due. Liquidity obligations arise from withdrawal of deposits, extension of
credit, working capital requirements and repayment of other obligations. The Bank
seeks to manage its liquidity through active management of liabilities, regular
analysis of the availability of liquid asset portfolios as well as regular testing of the
availability of money market lines and repurchase facilities aimed to address any
unexpected liquidity situations. The tools used for monitoring liquidity include
gap analysis of maturities of relevant assets and liabilities reflected in the

i



maximum cumulative outflow (MCO) report, as well as an analysis of sufficiency
of liquid assets over deposit liabilities and regular monitoring of concentration
risks in deposits by tracking accounts with large balances. The MCO focuses on a
12-month period wherein the 12-month cumulative outflow is compared to the
acceptable MCO limit set by the Bank.

Operational Risk

1. People Risk ‘

In most reference books and articles, it is mentioned that the most dynamic of all
sources of operational risk factors is the people risk factor. Internal controls are
often blamed for operational breakdowns, whereas the truc cause of many
operational losses can be traced to people failures. Every Chief Executive Officer
has argued that people are the most important resource, yet the difficulty in
measuring and modeling people risk has often led management to shy away from
the problem when it comes to evaluating this aspect of operational risk,

In PNB, operational losses may be attributed to human error which can be brought
about by inadequate training and management. This issue is being addressed
through formal means (continuously conducting trainings) or informal means
(monthly meetings and discussing issues at hand). These trainings also address the
issue of relying on key performers instead of cross-training each team member.

Further, there is the risk of “non-fit” personnel being “forced” to occupy positions
they are not qualified for. Annual evaluation and the implementation of balanced

scorecards are used to ensure that ill-fitted personnel are rc-trained, re-tooled or
re-skilled to equip them better,

2. Process Risk

In financial institutions, most processes are designed with audited fail-safe
features and checking proccdures. Since processes interact with other risky
variables - the external environment, business strategy and people - it is difficult to
sound the all-clear. However, processes can make the institution vulnerable in
many ways. To address this risk, the Bank has documented policies and
procedures duly approved by the Board. The Internal Audit Group, as well as the
various officers tasked with the review function, regularly monitors the
implementation of these documented policies and procedures.

3. Business Stratery Risk

Strategic Risk can arise when the dircction/strategy of a bank can lead to non-
achievement of business targets. This results from a new focus of a business sector
without consolidating it with the Bank’s overall business plan and strategy. At
PNB, strategy risk is managed through cach business sector performing “actual vs,
targets” sessions with and reporting to the Board of Directors through regular
management profitability reporting sessions. In addition, coordination between
business sectors is done through regular meetings by the Senior Management
Team to ensure that overall business targets are continually revisited.
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4. Business Environment Risk
Banks tend to have the least control over this source of operational risk yet it still
needs to be managed. Business environment risk can arise from unanticipated
legislative changes such as consumer affairs, physical threats such as bank
robberies, terrorists’ attacks, natural disasters and regulatory required financial
report change, new or otherwise.

New competitive threats such as faster delivery channels, new products, new
entrants and the ever-increasing rationalization of the banking industry are driving
banks to become much more nimble-footed. The flexibility required to remain in
the game leads some banks to take shortcuts that eventually expose them to some
new source of operational risk.

At PNB, we have beeome fully involved and engaged in the Product Management
Business Framework where old and new products alike are monitored by assigned
product managers who coordinate with the various business sector heads in
achieving the Bank's business plan, Further, a Product Committee composed of
senior management has been created and meets regularly lo ensure that business
environment is closely monitored as to competition and delivery channels and that
overall service standards are kept at acceptable levels.

5. Business Continuity Risk
The Bank recognizes that risks relating to natural and man-made disasters as well
as the possibility of terrorist activitics arc possible. Business Continuity Risk is
defined as any event that has a negative impact on the bank operations which

could result in operational interruption, loss of or damage to critical infrastructure
and the like.

The Bank has formulated the Business Continvity Plan (BCP) both on a
enterprise-widc level as well as business unit level with the objective to define the
critical procedures to be followed to rccover critical functions on an acceptable
limited basis in the event of abnormal or emergency conditions and other crisis.
This means that the plan should provide provisions to:
Ensure safety and security of all personnel, customers and vital Bank records;
Ensure that there will be minimal disruption in operations,
* Minimize financial loss through lost business opportunities or assets
deterioration; and
» Ensure a timely resumption to normal operation,

The Bank’s BCP is tested at least on an annual basis with the following activities
involved:

+ DBusiness Impact Analysis
# Call Tree Test

» Table Top Test

* Alternate Site Test
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Regulatory Capital Requirements under BASEL IT — Pillar 1

The Bank's total regulatory requirements as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

“Total Credit risk-Weighted Assets

327,919,714
Total Market risk-Weighted Assets 9,337,189
Total Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 40,938,779
Total Risk-Weighted Assets 378,195,682
PNB’s Risk-based Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.68%

Credit Risk —Weighted Assets

The Bank still adopts the standardized approach in quantifying the risk weighted
assets, Credit risk exposures are risk weighted based on third party credit assessments
of Fitch, Moody’s, Standard & Poors and PhilRating agencies. The ratings of these
agencies are mapped in accordance with the BSP. Following are the consolidated
credit exposures of the Bank and the corresponding risk weights:

Cash & Cash ltems 10940 10,539 401
Due from BEP 153,271 153,27
1
Due from Other Banks 17,143 6,377 3337 7,429
Finuncial Asset at FVPI, 2 2
Available for Sale 60,367 30,025 3182 11,172 16,488
Unquoted Debt Securitics &.30% 4,120 5,188
Loans & Receivables 228,296 6,868 13,418 20,657 184,05 3,296
7
Sales Contracts Receivable 3519 2,564 955
Real & Orther Propertics Acquired 15,552 15,552
Other Assets 34,507 34,507
Taotal On Bulance Sheet Asset 533,405 193,83 16,828 27927 20,657 249,167 24,991
3
Rigk Weighted Asset - On-Balanee Sheet 319,475 D 3,366 13,964 15493 249167 37485
Total Off-Balance Sheet Asset 14,468 171 172 4,662 693 4,950 /]
Total Risk Weiphted Off-Balance Sheet Assct 7,435 0 M b k) 3] 4,950 0

*Net of specific provision and risk mitlganis
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Market Risk -Weighted Assets

» For market risk, the Bank’s regulatory capital requirements uses the Standardized
Approach (“TSA™) under which a general market risk charge for trading portfolio
is calculated based on the instrument’s coupon and remaining maturity with risk
weights ranging from 0% for items with very low market risk (i.e., tenor of less
than 30days) to a high of 12.5% for high risk-items (i.c., tenor greater than 20
years). Further, capital requirements for specific risk are also calculated for
exposures with risk weights ranging from 0% to 8% depending on the issuer’s
credit rating,

Capital Requirements by Market Risk Type under Standardized Approach

Interest Rate Exposures 1™ 200.627 T 250784 2,507 836
Foreign Exchange Exposures 506.741 633,426 495,090
Equity Exposures 39.607 49,509 6,334,263
Total 746.975 933.719 0,337.189

The following are the Bank’s exposure with assigned risk weights held for
trading portfolio:

Interest Rate Exposurcs
Specific Risk

* Specific Risk from the Held for Trading Portfolio is £43.296M. ROPs compose
51% of the portfolio with risk weight from 1,0% and 1.6%, 45% in peso

government bonds with zero risk weight and 6% are unrated corporate bonds
which attracts 8.00% risk weight.

PHP-denominated debt accueitics issued by 1,441,747
the Philippioe Mational Government (MG)
umd BSP

- - T Ad 47

FCY-denominated debt securitics issued by - 24997 | 210155 | 1445.776
tbe Philippine NG/ISP
Dbt securities/derivatives with credit vating - . 35707 - 35,707
of AAA 1o BBB-issued by olher entities

- ¢ 1665924

Subtotal 1.441.747 9947 210.155 | 1,481.483 218.320 + 3.36]1.702
Specific Risk Capital Charpe for Credit . -
Default Swaps
SPECIFIC RISK CAPITAL CHARGE FOR - 0.025 2102 23704 17.466 43206
DEBT SECURITIES AN DEBT
TIERIVATIVES
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General Market Risk ~Peso

* The Bank's exposure to Peso General Market Risk is B60.182M, contributed
mostly by Debt Securitics with average remaining maturity ranging from 5 to 10
years with risk weight at 3,25% to 3.75%. The Bank’s portfolio under the over 20
years’ time band attracts 6% risk weight or £18.643M representing 21% of the
total Peso General Market Risk.

Currency: PESO

PART [V.1d GENERAL MARKET RISK, {(Amounts in #0.000 million)

Fone Times Buands Individwal Positions Risk Weight Weighted Positions
Coupon 3% or more Coupon 1css than 3% Toval
Long Short Long short
1 month or less I month or less 1.534 0.00% - -
Qver 1 month 1o 3 months Over 1 month o 3 months - 0.20% -
] Cver 3 months o 6 months Over 3 months to 6 manths 0.024 0.40% -
Over 6 months to 12 months Over & months 1o 12 months 12,498 0.70% 0.087 -
Over | year 10 2 years Over 1.0 year to 1.9 years 25.631 1.25% 0,320 -
2 Over 2 years o 3 years Over 1.9 years to 2.8 years 50,357 1.75% 0-3%1 -
Over 3 years to 4 years Qver 2.8 yoars 10 3.6 years 2778 2.25% 0,513 -
Orver 4 yeare to 5 years Over 3.6 years 10 4.3 yeors 9.434 2.753% 0.259 —:
Owver 5 years to 7 years Over 4,3 years o 5.7 years 407.539 325% 13,245 -
Over 7 years to 10 years Chver 5.7 yeurs 1o 1.3 vears 434 965 1.75% 16311
Qver 10 years o 15 years Over 7.3 years to 9.3 years 90,947 4.50% 4,092 -
? Over 15 yeara to 20 years Over 9.3 years 10 106 years 111,032 5.25% 5.829 -
Qver 20 years Over 10.6 years to 12 yeara HOTIT7 6.00% 18.643 -
Over 12 years 10 20 yeurs £.00% - -
Over 20 years 12.50% - -
Tetal 1.477.455 60,182 -
Overall Met Open Pogition 60.182 -
Vertical Disallowince -
Horizontal Disallowance -
TOTAL GENERAL MARKET RISK CAPITAL CHARGE 60182 -
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General Market Risk - USD

« The Bank's exposure on General Market Risk of the dollar denominated HFT
portfolio is P96.801M caused by debt securitics, forward contracts and dollar-

denominated

intercst rate swaps.

Approximately 82% of dollar-denominated

debt securities have an average remaining maturity ranging from 5 years to over
20 years, thus attracting a risk weight of 3.25% to 6%. On the other hand, the IRS
attracts risk weight of 3.25% under the “Over 5 to 7 years” bucket while the
Bank's forward contracts have less than one year remaining maturity thus,
attracting a risk weight of less than 1%.

FART IV, 1d (ENERAL MARKET RISK {(Amounts in P0.000 million)

Currency: UKD

Maturity Methed 3/

Times Bande

Individual Pasitions

Debt Securities &

Weighted Pasitinns

Fone uiLie hterest Rate Derivatives Total Ri‘xk
Coupun 3% or more Coupen less tham 3% Debt Derivatives Weight
T.ong Short Lang Short Long Short Long Shott
| manth or less 1 month or less 9997 1LUBD.S14 | 1473098 | 11,090,511 | 1,473,098 | Q.00% - -
Cver 1 inomth to 3 months Crver | month to 3 months - 1420187 TA26.187 -| v 4552
I Lver 3 months o 6 months (ver 3 months to & months 1,876.845 1,870.843 - 0.40% 7.507
Over 6 woths 10 12 months | Over 6 months to {2 months - 221,975 - 221.075 - 0.70% 1.554
{Iver t yearto 2 years Over 1,0 year to 1,9 years 210,155 - - - 125% 2.627
2 Over 2 years to 3 yoars Over 1Y yoars 10 2.8 yeary 4013 - 1.75% 1.645 -
Cver 3 years o 4 years {rver 2.8 years to 3.6 years 25445 - - - 225% 0.573 -
Over 4 years (o § years Oiver 3.6 years 10 4.3 yeurs . - - L.75% - -
Qver § years to 7 years Crverd 3 vears to 5,7 years 170453 1432086 | L444.295 1622530 | 1,444,295 | 3.15% 52733 | 46.940
Over Tyears to 10 years Over 5.7 years to 7.3 years 417 - 417.258 - A75% 15,647 -
3 Over L years to 15 years Over 7.3 years to 0.3 years 224,347 - 234347 - 4.50% 10,0596
(hver 15 years tor 20 years Over 9.3 years to 10,6 years 285461 - - 285,461 - 5284 14.987
Ovet 20 yeary Over 10,6 years iy 12 years 447,118 - - 447,118 - 6.00% 26.827
Over 12 years to 20 years - - - 8.00%
Over 20 years . - 12,50% -
Tutal 1,884 248 17,037,607 | 2917393 [ 18941855 2917.33 139047 [ 46.940
Overall Net Open Posttion 42,107
Yertical Disallowance 4.694
Honizontal Disallowsnee "-—
TOUTAL GENERAL MARKET RISK. CAFITAL C1IARCE 46,801
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General Market Risk - AUD

» The Bank's exposure on General Market Risk-AUD is at 20.261M, representing
forward contracts under the “Over 1 months to 6 months” category.

Cumrency: AUD
Maturity Method 1/
Zon Times Bands Individual Positions Risk Weighred
e Coupon 3% or | Coupon less than Debt Intcrest Rate Tolal Weig Fositions
more 3% Secutilies & Derivatives ht
Dbt
Derivatives
Long | Shor | Long Short Long Short Long | Short
1
1 1 month or less | | month or less - - 886.850 | 11.000 ) 886,850 | 11.00 | 0.00 - -
1] %
Cwver 1 month Over | month o 3 - - 43,359 - 43.539 - 0,20 | 0.087
to 3 months monihs &
Over 3 months | Over 3 months to - - 43,539 - 43,539 - 040 | 0,174
10 6 months & months o4
Total - - 973,928 1 11.000 973.928 1.0 0.261
[\
Orverall Net Open Position 0,261
Vertical Dizallowance -
Horizontal Disallowance -
TOTAL GENMERAL MAERKET RISK 0,261
CAPITAL CHARGE

General Market Risk - HKD

» The Bank's exposurc on General Market Risk-HKD is minimally at £0.087M,
representing forward contracts under the “Over 1 month to 3 months™ category.

Currency: HKD
Maturity Mcthod 1/
Zom Times Bands Individual Positions Risk Weighted
c Coupon 3% ot | Cuoupon less than Dcbt Interest Rate Total Weigh Positions
more 3% Secunitics & Derivatives i
Drebt
Darivatives
Long T Shor | Long Short | Long Short Long | Short
t
1 I month or lgss | 1 month or less - - - B70.853 - 370.853 | 0.00% - -
Over | month Over 1 month to 3 - - u 43,544 - 43544 | 0.20% - 0.087
r 3 months months
Tolal - - - 914,397 - 914,397 - - 0.087
Overall Net Open Pogition - 0.087
Vertical Disallowance - -
Horizontal Disallowance - .
TOTAL GENERAL MAREKET RISK - 0.087
CAFPITAL CHARGE
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Equity Exposures

* The Bank's exposure to Equity Risk attracts an adjusted capital charge of
8495.09M or risk-weighted equity exposures of B495.09M. The Bank’s holdings
are in the form of common stocks traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange thus it
attracts an 8% risk weight both for specific and general market risk.

PART 14.2. EQUITY EXPOSURES (Amounts in #),000 million)
Stock
Item Nature of Item Positions | Markets Total
Philippines
Long 247545  247.545
Al Common Stocks
Short
Long 247.545 247.545
AlD TOTAL (SUM of A1 1o A.9)
Short
B. Gross {leng plus shott) positions (A.10) 247345 247.545
C. Risk Weights 8%
D, Specific rizk capital (B. times C,) 19.504 19,804
E. Net long or short positions 247545 247.545
F. Risk Weights &% 8%
G. General market risk capital charges (E. timmes F.) 19.804 19,804
H. Total Capital Charge For Equity Exposures (sum of D, and ) 39.607
L. Adjusted Capital Charge For Equity Exposures (H, times 125%) 49,509
J. TOTAL RISK-WEIGHTED EQUITY EXPOSURES (1. X 10) 495,090
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Foreign Exchange Exposures

e The Bank's exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk attracts an adjusted capital charge
of 8633.426M based on 8% risk weight. The exposure arises mostly from FX
assets and FX liabilities in USD/PHP. The Bank also holds Third Currencies such
as Euro, JPY, CHF, GBP, EUR, CAD, AUD, $GD and other currencies.

Fan [V, 3 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURESR

| Closing Rate USD/PHP:

44,398
In Million USD Equivalent In Million
Pesos
Net Lony(?’hon) ?osmm Net Delwa- “Fotal Net ‘Total Net
Item Nature of tem Currency {excluding options) Weighted Lot': J(Sh ory| N
Banks | Subsidiaries |Positionsof| ™, St ™| {Shor)
A liates X Options Position
1 2 3 4-1+2+3 3
A0 | Sutn of net long positions 6,334,262
AT | Sum of net short positions {42.53%)
3. | Overall net open positions 6,334,263
Risk Weight %
Total Capital Chatge For Foreign Exchunpe Exposures 506,741
(B. times C.) b
LC. |Adjusted Capital Charge For Foreign Exchange 631,476
Exposures (L. times 125%) '
F. |Tetal Risk-Weighted Foretpn  Exchunpe Exposures,
Excluding Incremental Risk-Weighted Foreigh Exchange 6334263
Exposures Arising From NDF Transactions (E. limes 10)
G | Incremental Risk-Weighted Foreign Exchanpe Exposures
Arsing From NDF ‘Itansactions (Part 1V.3a, ltem F)
H. | Total Risk-Weighted Foreign Exchange Exposures {Sum
of F. and G.} 6,334,263

Operational Risk — Weighted Assets

The Bank adopted the Basic Indicator Approach in quantifying the risk-weighted
assets for Operational Risk. Under the Basic Indicator Approach, the Bank is required
to hold capital for operational risk equal to the average over the previous three years
of a fixed percentage (15% for this approach) of positive annual gross income (figurcs
in respect of any year in which annual gross income was negative or zero are

excluded).
2010 22,498 508 3,374.776
2011 19.969.805 2,905.471
2012 (last year) 23,033,734 3,455,060
Average for 3 years 3,275.102
Adjusted Capital Charge Average x 125% 4,093,878
Total Operational Risk weighted Asset 40,938.779
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C. Business Development/Description of Significant Subsidiaries

PNB, through its subsidiaries, engages in a number of diversified financial and related
businesses such as remittance servicing, non-life insurance, investment banking, stock
brokerage, leasing, and other related services.

The following represent the Bank’s significant subsidiaries;

Domestic Subsidiaries:

PNB Capital and Investment Corporation (PNB Capital), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Bank, is an investment house with a non-quasi-banking license. It
was incorporated on July 30, 1997 and commenced operations on October 08 in the
same ycar. Its principal business is to provide investment banking services which
include debt and equity underwriting, private placements, loan arrangements, loan
syndications, project financing, and general financial advisory services, among others.
PNB Capital is authorized to buy and sell, for its own account, sccurities issued by
private corporations and the Philippine Government. Based on its audited financial
statements for the year 2013, fees from investment banking services accounted for
approximately 93% of revenues, while the remaining 7% consisted primarily of

interest income from interest-bearing securities, special deposit accounts (8DAs), and
peso time deposit.

PNB Capital distributes its structured and packaged debt and equity securities by
tapping banks, trust companies, insurance companics, retail investors, brokerage
houses, funds, and other cntities that invest in such securities. It is licensed to operate
as an investment house by the SEC with the Certificate of Registration No. 01-2008-
00234, It renewed its license on November 29, 2013,

Investment banking is a highly regulated industry. Regulatory agencies overseeing
PNB Capital include the BSP, SEC, and BIR, as well as several affiliates, support
units and regulatory commissions of these entitics.

The primary risks in the business include underwriting risk, reputational risk, and
liability risk. Underwriting risk pertains to the risk of unacceptance by the market of
seeurities being offered and underwritien by PNB Capital. PNB Capital would have 10
purchase the securities it offers for its own account in this case. Reputational risk
arises from the possibility that PNB Capital may not be able to close mandated deals
as committed. Liability risk arises from being held liable for any losses incurred by the
client due to non-performance of committed duties, or gross negligence.

These risks are addressed by;

s cnsuring that the staff is well-trained and capable, at the functional and technical
level, to provide the services offered by PNB Capital
* understanding the clients’ specific needs and goals
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* clarifying and documenting all goals, methodologies, deliverables, timetables, and
fees before commencing on a project or engagement, and including several
indemnity clauses to protect PNB Capital from being held liable for actions and
situations beyond its control. These indemnity clauses are revised and improved
upon after each engagement, as and when new protection clauses are identified

& all transactions are properly documented and approved by the Investment
Committee and/or Board of Directors.

As of December 31, 2013, the total assets of PNB Capital amounted to B560.3
million, while total capital was R548.8 million. For the year ended December 31,
2013, net income was £117.1 million.

PNB Holdings Corporation (PHC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, was
established on May 20, 1920 as Philippine Exchange Co,, Inc, The SEC approved the
extension of the corporate life of PNB Holdings for another fifty (50) years effective
May 20, 1970, In 1991, it was converted into a holding company and was used as a
vehicle for the Bank to go into the insurance business.

As of December 31, 2013, PHC had an authorized capital of £500.0 million or
5,000,000 shares at £100 par value per sharc. As of December 31, 2013, the total
paid-up capital of PHC was B255.1 million and additional paid-in capital was B3.6
million, while total assets and total capital were #333.3 million and R330.5 million,
respectively, and net income was B3.2 million (determined on a parent only basis and
based on unaudited financial statements),

s PNB General Insurers Co., Inc. (PNB Gen) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
PNB Holdings Corporation established in 1991. It is a non-life insurance company
that offers fire and allied perils, marine, motor car, aviation, surety, engineering,
accident insurance and other specialized lines. PNB Gen is a dynamic company
providing and contimmously developing a complete range of highly innovative
products that will provide total protection to its customers at competitive terms. It
started operations with an initial paid-up capital of £13 million. To date, PNB
Gen’s paid-up capital is £312.6 million, one of the highest in the industry. As of
December 31, 2013, the total assets and total capital of PNB Gen were at 87,7
billion and £433.7 million, rcspectively.

For the period ended December 31, 2013, PNB Gen incurred a net loss of R868.4
million compared to a net income of £68.4 million in the previous year. The net
loss incurred in 2013 was due primarily to claims losses because of typhoons
Maring , Santi and Yolanda as well as the earthquake in Bohol.

PNB Gen’s compliance risk involves the risk of legal and regulatory sanctions,
financial loss, and damage to the reputation of the company as a result of failure to
comply with all applicable laws, regulations, codes of conduct and standards of
good practice. PNB Gen developed its own compliance program in recognition of
itz duty to adhcre to relevant regulations based on a culture of accountability and
transparency. PNB Gen is committed to put in place the appropriate processes to
ensure a common understanding of and compliance with insurance laws and
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existing rules and regulations, through a contituing training and education
program, and enhanced monitoring and enforcement.

PNB Securities, Inc, (PNBSec), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, was

incorporated on January 18, 1991. PNBSec is engaged solely in the stock brokerage
business,

It ranked 45™ among the 134 active members of the Philippine $tock Exchange with a
0.19% market share in terms of value turn-over as of December 31, 2013, The areas of
competition have been identified as comrmission rate and quality of service. PNBSec's
main sourcc of income is the commission earned from its stock brokerage business,
which accounted for 42.6% of its total revenues in 2013 with a client base of close to
7,000 customer accounts. The gain on sale of Available for Sale Investments for the
same year contributed 33.5% of total revenucs, while Trading Gains from its
Proprictary Trading Account and interest revenues on Fixed Income Investments and
Deposit with Banks accounted for almost 11.4% and 6.6%, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, Total Assets was B294.3 million while Total Equity was
£172.8 million with Paid-Up Capital of 2100.0 million. Net Income for the year
ended December 31, 2013 was B23.5 million. Return on Average Equity is 12.2% and

Return on Average Assets (excluding the unscttled receivables and payables from buy
and sell transactions) is 11.0%,

PNB Securities® strength lics in the brand name of PNB and its branch network
nationwide. The newly merged PNB (with ABC) is a universal bank with consolidated
resources of up to B618.1 billion as of December 31, 2013,

Inherent to all engaged in the stock brokerage business, PNB Securities is primarily
exposed to the following risks: scttlement risk, operations risk, compliance and
regulatory risks, and reputation risk. To address, identify, assess and manage these
risks, PNB Securities submits monthly to the Securities and Exchange Commission
(S5EC) the required Risk Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) Report, which essentially
measures the firm’s Net Liquid Capital. Further, a Risk Manual is being followed and

observed that conforms to the stringent internal control standards of its parent
company, PNB.

PNB Forex, Inc. (PFI) (inactive), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank which was
incorporated on October 13, 1994 ag a trading company, was engaged in the buying
and selling of foreign currencies in the spot market for its own account and on behalf
of others, The company temporarily ceased its operations in foreign currency trading
as of January 1, 2006. It derives 100% of its revenues from interest income earned
from the cash/funds held by the corporation. On December 16, 2013, the PFI's Board
of Directors approved the dissolution of the company. Last March 17, 2014, the Office
of the City Treasurer of Pasay City approved the company's application for retirement
of business. The company is now applying for tax clearance with the Bureau of
Internal Revenue.
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Japan-PNB l.easing and Finance Corporation (JPNB Leasing), formerly PF
Leasing and Finance Corporation, was incorporated on April 24, 1996 under the
auspices of the Provident Fund of the Bank. PT Leasing was largely inactive until it
was used as the vehicle for the joint venture between the Bank (60%), IBJ Leasing Co
Ltd., Tokyo (35%), and Industrial Bank of Japan, now called Mizuho Corporate Bank
(5%). The corporate name was changed to Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance

Corporation and the joint venture company commcenced operations as such in
February 1998,

Effective January 31, 2011, PNB increased its equity interest in JPNB Leasing from
60% to 90%. The Bank’s additional holdings were acquired from minority partners,
IBJ Leasing Co., Ltd. (IBJL) and Mizuho Corporate Bank, which divested their 25%
and 5% equity interests, respectively. IBJL remains as an active joint venture pariner
with a 10% equity interest.

JPNB Leasing operates as a financing company under Republic Act No. 8556 (the
amended Finance Company Act). Its major activities are financial leasc (direct lease,
sale-leaseback, lcase-sublease and foreign currency leasing), operating lease (through
wholly-owned subsidiary, JPNB Rentals), term loans (for productive capital
cxpenditures secured by chatte] mortgage), receivable discounting (purchase of short-
term trade receivables and installment papers with chattel mortgage security).

Majority of the principal products or services came from peso leases and loans. The

leasing and lending activities of JPNB Leasing are in the domestic and foreign
markets.

As of December 31, 2013, JPNB Leasing had an authorized capital of 8150.0 million,
represented by 1,500,000 shares with a par valuc of B100 per share, which are fully
subscribed and paid up, As of December 31, 2013, total assets and total equity stood
at B3.3 billion and B578.2 million, respectively. Its net income for the year ended
December 2013 was B88.3 million.

» Japan-PNB Equipment Rentals Corporation (JPNB Rental) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation, which in turn is 90%
owned by PNR. Tt was incorporated in the Philippines on July 3, 2008 az a rental
company and started commercial operations on the same date. 1t is engaged in the
business of renting all kinds of real and personal properties,

As of December 31, 2013, JPNB Rental had paid-up capital of P6.2 million and
total capital of B19.2 million. Total assets as of the same period stood at £178.8
million. Net income for the period ended December 31, 2013 was 810.5 million
compared to a £0.7 million net loss in the previous year.

Bulawan Mining Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, was

incorporated in the Philippines on March 12, 1985, It is authorized to cxplore and
develop land for mining claims and sell and disposc such mining claims.
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PNB Management and Development Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Bank, was incorporated in the Philippines on Fcbruary 6, 1989 primarily to own,
acquire, hold, purchase, receive, sell, lease, exchange, mortgage, dispose of, manage,
develop, improve, subdivide, or otherwise deal in real estate property, of any type
and/or kind of an interest therein, as well as build, erect, construct, alter, maintain, or
operate any subdivisions, buildings and/or improvements. It is also authorized to
explore and develop land mining claims and to sell/disposc such mining claims.

Allied Savings Bank (ASB) traces its roots from First Malayan Development Bank
which ABC bought in 1986 to reinforce its presence in the countryside. In January 17,
1996, it was renamed First Allied Savings Bank following the grant of license to
operate as a savings bank. It was in the same year that the Monetary Board of the BSP
granted a foreign currency deposit license to ASB. Another name change to Allied
Savings Bank followed in 1998 to further establish its association with ABC.

ASB closed the ycar 2013 with total resources of & 10.9 billion, up 160% from the
previous year largely due to an increase in its deposit portfolio by 215% or B 6.7
Billion, Total deposits closed the year with £9.9 billion, the butk of which, or §2%,
were in low cost funds maintained in regular savings and checking accounts. Its
flagship product, Angat Savings — a tier-based passhook savings account with pre-set
monthly withdrawal transaction limits, continued to attract new customers and fresh
funds given its compctitive pricing versus other banks’ equivalent product lines,
Angat Savings had B1.7 billion in deposit portfolio. Before the year ended, ASB
launched its own Cash Card positioned for those segments of the market demanding
for a no maintaining balance account required for payroll, transfer of funds for
allowancces, and even remittances,

Total loan portfolio registered 82.3 billion by the end of 2013 and was relatively flat
year-on-year but certainly much improved by 58% when compared to the threc-year
ago level of B1.5 billion. Over the years, lending to corporatc and middle/SME
markets accounted for 83% of ASB’s loan portfolio given the present infrastructure
and make-up of the branches and loan acquisition units.

ASB posted an unaudited net income of 29,7 million in 2013, Its net interest income
of B239.8 million was up year-on-year by 31% while pre-tax profits improved by 80%
to close at £36 million. Return-on-equity stood at 1% which is expected to
significantly improve with the planned transformation and initiatives moving into
2014, ASB’s capital adequacy ratio (CAR) of 26% is well above the minimum
required by the BSP. ASB ended the year with a network of 27 branches spread across
Metro Manila, Southern & Northern Tagalog Regions, Bicol, Western Visayas and
Northern Mindanao.

Before the year 2013 ended, the business plan to transform Allied Savings Bank into a
strong consumer bank arm of PNB was put in place. The recommendation for the
infusion of additional capital/equity of B10 billion in ASB was approved by both PNB
and ASB Board of Directors last December 2013. This followed the earlier approval
of the increase in authorized capital stock of ASB to B15 billion; the 3-year business
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plan; and the change of name to PNB Savings Bank, all of which are subject to
regulatory clearances and approvals, The financial plan for the savings bank is for it to

reach £40 billion in loans, B20 billion in deposits, and expand to 100 branches in the
next 3 years,

Work on setting up the required consumer organization infrastructure and the
creation/alignment of consumer loan products, namely, Home Loan, Home-Flexi
Loan, Motor Vehicle, CTS Financing, and Multi-Purpose Loans, was set in motion. In
the first two months of 2014, ASB would have fully implemented the purchase of B6
billion worth of consumer loan receivables from PNB in line with the overall
conversion/transformation plan, This purchase will increase ASB’s earning assets and
improve accrual income which is needed to temper the ctfect of the potential ingreasc
in operating expenses upon the transfer of the present consumer organization of PNB

to the savings bank. Likewise, it will help support the planned expansion of its
branches and network.

PNB Life Insurance Inc. (PNB Life), becamc a majority-owned (80%) subsidiary of
PNB by virtue of the merger between PNB and ABC in February 2013. PNB Life
traces its roots 10 New York Life Insurance Philippines, Inc. (NYLIP), the Philippine
subsidiary of US-based New York Life Intcrnational, LLC. NYLIP commenced
operations in the Philippines in August 2001.

In May 2008, NYLIP changed its corporate name 1o PNB Lifc to reflect the change in
ownership and in anticipation of the merger of ABC and PNB. This change in
branding demonstrates the new owners” commitment to the Philippine life insurance
market and its dynamism and growth prospects.

The merger of ABC and PNB further strengthened the bancassurance partnership with
PNB Life which benefited from the resulting synergy and increased operational
efficiency. This positive development set the stage for the introduction to the Bank
clients competitive investment-linked insurance products designed to meet changing
client needs for complete financial solutions.

To widen the reach of PNB Life to Filipino families in all regions of the country, PNB
Life opened Regional Business Centers (RBCs) in San Fernando City, La Union to
cover Northem Luzon; San Fernando City, Pampanga to serve Central Luzon; Naga
City to serve Southern Luzon; Zamboanga City to serve Northern Mindanao: and
lloilo City to serve Western Visayas, These new RBCs improved market penetration
in every region. Existing offices in Chinatown (Binondo), in Cebu City and in Davao
City were refurbished and rebranded.

Ranked among the top 10 life insurance companies in the Philippines, PNB Lifc is a
leading provider of Variable Life Products, complemented by its full line of individual
and group life protection offerings. All its products and services are designed to meet
the lifetime financial planning, wealth accumulation, and protection needs of every
Filipino. PNB Lite is truly “Providing New Beginnings in Your Life” as it vigorously
aims to be the dominant provider of financial security to Filipinos worldwide.
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PNB Life today is a 100% Filipino owned and managed company with Dr, Lucio Tan
as Chairman and Esther Tan as President and Vice-Chairperson.

Allied Leasing and Finance Corporation (ALFC) became a majority-owned (57%)
subsidiary of PNB by virtue of the merger between PNB and ABC in February 2013.
It was incorporated on December 29, 1978, The company is authorized by the SEC to
operate as a financing company in accordance the provisions of R.A 5980, as
amended by R.A, 8856, otherwise known as the F inancing Company Act, It started
operations on June 25, 1980. On October 16, 1996, the authorized capital was
increased to 8500 million divided into 5 million shares with £100.00 par valuc per

share, As of December 31, 2013, ALFC’s paid-up capital amounted to R152.50
million.

Foreign Subsidiaries:

PNB International Investments Corporation (PNB 11C), tormerly Century Bank
Holding Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, is a U.S. non-bank
holding company incorporated in California on December 21, 1979. It changed its
name to PNB Interational Investment Corporation on December 1, 1999,

PNB [IC owns PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. (PNB RCI) which was incorporated
in California on October 19, 1990. PNB RCI is a company engaged in the business of
transmitting money to the Philippines. As of December 31, 2013, PNB RCI had 20
branches in 9 states. PNB RCI owns PNB RCI Holding Company, Ltd. which was
incorporated in California on August 18, 1999 and PNB Remittance Company,
Nevada (PNB RCN) which was incorporated in Nevada on June 12, 2009. PNB RCN
is engaged in the business of transmitting money to the Philippincs. PNB RCI Holding
Company, Ltd. is the holding company for PNB Remittance Company Canada
(PNB RCC). PNB RCC is also a money transfer company incorporated in Canada on
April 26, 2000. PNB RCC has 8 branches in Canada as of year-end 2013,

PNB RCl is regulated by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and the Department of
Financial Institutions of the State of California and other state regulators of financial
institutions while PNBRCN is regulatcd by the Nevada Department of Business and
Industry — Division of Financial Institutions. PNB RCC is regulated by the Office of
the Superintendent of Financial Institutions of Canada and Financial Transactions and
Reports Analysis Centre of Canada.

PNB IIC does not actively compcte for business, being only a holding company. PNB
RCIL, PNB RCN and PNB RCC have numerous competitors, including local U.S.
banks and Philippine bank affiliates doing business in North America, as well as other

money transfer companies such as Western Union, Money Gram, Lucky Money and
LBC. ‘
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PNB (Europe) Ple (PNBE) was originally set up as a PNB London Branch in 1976,
In 1997, it was converted into PNB (Europe) Ple, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Bank, incorporated in the United Kingdom with a full banking license. It is also
authorized to provide cross-border services to 18 member states of the European
Economic Area (EEA). In 2007, PNBE opened its branch in Paris, France, where it is
engaged in remittance services. PNB Europe Pl is regulated by the Financial Conduct

Authority and authorized and regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority, PNBE
Paris branch is governed by the Banque de France.

The major competitors of PNBE are Metro Remittance UK Ltd., Bank of the
Philippine Islands (Europe) Plc, BDO, Peso Express (RCBC), Philrem, I-Remit, CBN,
and Money Gram, Competition in Paris consists of BPI (tie-up with Banque D
Escompte), Money Gram, and RIA.

Allied Bank Philippines (UK) Plc. (ABUK), became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
PNB by virtue of the merger between PNB and ABC)in February 2013. ABUK
tormally commenced operations in 1992 after functioning as ABC's representalive
office in the 1970s and as a branch in the mid-1980s. ABUK was the first Philippine
private coramercial bank in London to be granted the status of licensed deposit taker
by the Bank of England under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. It is
being regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and is authorized and
regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) (previously the Financial
Services Authority). ABUK mainly operates to facilitate trade between the Philippines
and the United Kingdom, scrvice the banking rcquirements of the growing Filipino
population in the United Kingdom and other European countries, and promote foreign
investments to the Philippines, It has remittance partner banks in Germany, Ireland
and Luxcmbourg, Its main business are remittances, deposit taking (GBP and USD
savings accounts), passporting, advice and confirmation of letters of credit (LC)
opened by ABC in favor of beneficiarics located in the UK, and, when nominated,
ABUK acts as paying and reimbursing bank for LCs opened by ABC. ABUK was
merged with PNB (Europe) effective April 2, 2014,

PNB Italy, SpA, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, was incorporated in 1994 as
a Financial Intermediary (FI). On July 17, 2012, PNB Italy’s license was converted
into a Payment Institution. Tt is authorized to do money transfer services. Its main
office is located in Rome and it has a branch sitwated in Milan. Tt also has 19

individual agents and 2 remittance partners in Isracl and Netherlands. PNB Italy is
rcgulated by the Banca d’Italia (Bank of Italy).

On December 20, 2013, the Board of Directors approved the closure of PNB laly
SpA (PISPA) and the shifting of the business to an agent-arrangement to continue
remittance operations in Italy. PNB ltaly SpA was closed on February 28, 2014,

PNB Global Remittance & Financial Co. (HK) Limited (PNB Global), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Bank, is registered with the Registrar of Companies in Hong
Kong. On July 1, 2010, PNB Global took the remittance business of PNB Remittance
Center, Ltd. with the former as the surviving entity. It now operates as a moncy lender
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and remittance company, As of December 31, 2013, PNB Global maintains six (6)

offices in Hong Kong. Its remittance business is regulated by the Customs and Excise
Department.

Effective August 2012, PNB Global launched its tie-up arrangement with Western
Union, strengthening its cash pick-up services throughout the Philippines.

Allied Commercial Bank (ACB) became a majority-owned commercial bank
subsidiary of PNB by virtuc of the merger between PNB and ABC in February 2013,

ACB is the former Xiamen Commercial Bank, the name change having been effected

in August 2001. It obtained its commercial banking license in July 1993 and opened
for business in October 1993,

ACB maintains its head office in Xiamen, in Fujian Province, a southcastern
commercial city of China, Xiamen is one of the four original special cconomic zones
to open up to the outside world in the carly eighties in what is now considered in
history as China’s greatest modcrn day reform initiatives. Xiamen was also home to a
good number of ascendants of Chinese-Filipinos,

In 2003, ACB opened a branch in Chongging, a southwestern industrial city in the
province of Sichuan. Tt is one of China’s four chartered cities and is considered the
gateway to western China. 1t is a hub for industry, commerce, transport and culture.

The commercial banking license granted to ACB allows it to offer full banking
services in foreign currency to resident and non-resident foreign enterprises, non-
resident natural persons including compatriots from Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

It also allows ACB to service foreign trade and loan requirements of enterprises
owned by local residents.

Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (ABCHKL), became a
majority-owned (51%) commercial bank subsidiary of PNB by virtue of the merger
between PNB and ABC in February 2013. ABCHKL is a private limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong in 1978, is licensed as a restricted license bank under the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. ABCHKL was ABC's first majority-owned overseas
subsidiary. Due to the merger, PNB now owns 51% of ABCHKL. It provides a full
range of commercial banking services predominantly in Hong Kong, which include
lending and trade financing, documentary credits, participation in loans syndications
and other risks, deposit taking, money market and foreign cxchange operations,
money exchange, investment and corporate services. ABCHKL's core reverues
primarily comprise of interest income from its lending activitics complemented with
fees and commissions from other fee-based services. ABCHKL has a wholly owned
subsidiary, ACR Nominees Limited, a privatc limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong which provides management and corporate services to its customers, It also
holds and operates one branch office in Tsimshatsui, Kowloon. In addition to its
normal banking services, ABCHKL acts and is licensed as an insurance agent. Its
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main businesses are property mortgage loans, trade finance, deposits (not less than
HK$500,000), remittances, foreign exchange and secretarial and nominee services.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

PNB’s corporate headquarters, the PNB Financial Center, is housed in a sprawling
modern eleven (11)-storey building complete with all amenitics, located at a well-
developed reclaimed area of 99,999 square meters of land on the southwest side of
Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City, Metro Manila, bounded on the west by the President

Diosdado P. Macapagal Boulevard and on the north by the World Trade Center
building,

The PNB Financial Center is located in a property where bustling cultural, financial
and tourism activities converge. It also houses PNB’s domestic subsidiaries. Some
offices are presently leased to various companies/private offices. The said property is
in good condition and is not subject o liens and encumbrances,

Please Refer to Exhibit 1 for the list of Bank-owned properties as of 31 December
2013,

The Bank leases the premises occupicd by some of its branches, Leasc contracts are
generally for periods ranging from 1 to 25 years and are renewable upon mutual
agreement of both parties under certain terms and conditions.

Please refer to Exhibit 11 for the list of the Bank’s branches that arc under lease
as of 31 December 2013.

The Bank does not have any current plans to acquire any property within the next
twelve (12) months,
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Bank and some of its subsidiaries or affiliates are parties to various legal
proceedings which arosc in the ordinary course of operations. None of such legal
proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, are expected to have a material
adverse effect on the Bank and its subsidiaries or affiliates or their financial condition,
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MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDENDS

ON COMMON EQUITY AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

All issued PNB common shares are listed and traded on the Philippine Stock

Exchange, Inc. The high and low sales prices of PNB Shares for each quarter for the
last three (3) fiscal years are;

2011 2012
High Low High Low
Jan — Mar 64,25 42.05 75.95 56.25
Apr - Jun 68.60 56,00 77.80 67.40
Jul - Sep 65.20 41,00 76,55 68.75
Oct - Dee 60.00 43,00 96.20 70.20

«013

_ High
107.60
117.04)
91.00
99.00

The trading price of each PNB common share as of December 27, 2013 was BR6.25.

Holders

Low
8740
75.95
63,00
71.60

There were 30,790 and 30,809 shareholders of common stock as of January 31, 2013
and February 9, 2013, respectively. The top twenty (20) holders of common shares,
the number of shares held, and the percentage to total shares outstanding held by each
as of 31 January 2013 arc as follows:

BEFORE THE MERGER
(As of January 31, 2013)

MNumber of Shares

stockholders Percentage

i | PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipine) 101,288,487 15.2946940037
2 | PCD Nominee Corporation (Non-Filiping) 70,312,124 10.6172227418
3 | Leadway Holdings, Ine, 46,495 880 7.0200387204
4 | Pioneer Holdings Equities, Inc. 24,386,295 3.0823624594 |
5 | Multiple Star Holdings, Corporation 21,925,853 33108324975
6 | Donfar Management Ltd. 21,890,077 3.3054302746
7 | Utlermost Success, Lid. 21,523,715 3.2301091332
8 Mavelstone Int'l Ltd. 21,055,186 31793606410
9 | Kenrock Holdings Corporation 18,522,961 2.7969913521
10 | Fil-Care Holdings, Inc. 18,119.076 2.7360041885
11 | Fairlink Holdings Corporation 17,945,960 2.7098634460
12 | Purple Crystal Holdings, Inc. 17,374,238 26235326757
13 | Kentron Holdings & Equitics Corporation 17,343,270 2.6188364672
14 | Fragile Touch Investment, Ltd. 16,157,859 2.4398578549
15 | Pan Asia Securities Corporation 15,622 881 2.3590754767
16 | Ivory Holdings, Inc, 14,780,714 2.2319071576
17 | Ailmark Holdings Corporation 14,754,256 2.2279119650
18 | Profound Holdings, Inc. 12,987,043 1.9610604892
19 | Fast Return Enterprises, Ltd. 12,926,481 19519155479
20 | Merit Holdings & Equities Corporation 12,377,119 1.8689611670
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Applying the Exchange Ratio, the number of common shareholders was expected to
increase to 30,809 as of 9 February 2013. As of 31 December 2013, there were
30,524 common shareholders, The top twenty (20) holders of common shares, the

number of shares held, and the percentage to total shares outstanding held by each as
031 December 2013 are as follows:

AFTER. THE MERGER
{As of 31 December 2013)
Number of Shares

No. Stockholders Percentage

1 PCD Nominee Corporation (Filiping) 08,840,521 0.0995907916
2 Key Landmark [hvestments, Ltd, 04,483,360 8.7352812409
3 PCD Neminee Corporation (Non-Filipino) 76,098,504 70058842188
4. Tme Success Profits Lid, 58,389,760 53755576867
5. Caravan Moldings Corpaoration 58,389,760 53755576867
6. Solar Holdings Corporation 58,389,760 53735576867
7 Prima Equities & Investments Corporation 51,091,040 4.7036120759
8, Leadway Holdings, Ine. 46,495,880 42805670915
9, Infinity Equities, Ine. 43,792,320 4.0316682650
10. | Pioneer Holdings Equitics, Inc, 24,386,295 22450841356
11. | Multiple Star Holdings Corparation 21,925,853 20185677700
12. | Donfar Management Ltd, 21,890,077 20152741111
13, | Littermost Success, Ltd, 21,523,715 1.9815455932
14, | Mavelstone Intl Litd. 21,055,186 19384112376
15, | Kenrock Holdings Corporation 18,522,961 1.7052860876
16. | Fil-Care Holdings, Inc. 18,119,076 1.6681030761
17. | Fairlink Holdings Corpuration 17,945,960 16521654349
18. | Purple Crystal Holdings, Inc. 17,374,238 1.5995307847
19. | Kentron Holdings & Exuitics Corporation 17,343.270) 15966797665
20, | Fragile Touch Investment, Ltd. 16,157,859 1.4875468429

Generally, there was a reduction on the ownership percentage of the stockholders of
the bank as a result of the issuance of the additional PNB common shares.

(i) Before the issuance of additional shares, the bank had 3 stockholders owning more
than 5% of the bank’s capital stock, two of whom were the PCD Nominee

Corporation. After the issuance, the stockholders who owned more than 5% of the
bank’s capital stock increased to 6.

(ii)The directors own only minimal sharcs of stock in the bank. The percentage of
ownership of Director Lucio Tan, however, has incrcased from 10 common shares

to 12,907,060 (or 1.1882673537%) due to his Allied Bank commen sharcs which
were convetted to PNB common shares.

(1i1)All directors and officers as a group also own minimal shares of stock in the bank.
From 0.0254221273% as of January 31, 2013, the group (including the additional
directors and Allied Bank Senior Officers as a result of the merger of PNB and

Allied Bank) owned 1.2096864475% of the total capital stock of the bank as of
February 28, 2013.
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(iv) As a result of the issnance of additional shares, the percentage owned by foreign
stockholders had increased by almost 5% from 24.77805% in January 31, 2013 to
29.88311% as of February 28, 2013. The public ownership, on the other hand, has
decreased from 31.15% in January 31, 2013 to 18.99% in February 28, 2013,

Dividends

The Bank has not declared any cash dividends on its common shares for the fiscal
years 2011, 2012 and 2013.

The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is contingent on its ability to set aside unrestricted
retained carnings for dividend distribution, In addition, the Bank’s declaration of
dividends, including computation of unrestricted retained earnings, is subject to
compliance with certain rules and regulations prescribed by the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP) as provided under the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB).

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, including Recent Issuance of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

There are no securities of PNB sold by it within the past three (3) years which werg
not registered under the SRC.  The new shares issued pursuant to the Merger are the
subject of the instant Offering.

With respect to the absorbed company, Allied Bank, it did not have any recent sales of
unregistered or exempt securities nor recent issues of sccurities constituting exempt
transactions in the last three (3) years.

The Bank has recently successfully completed its Stock Rights Offering (Offer) of
162,931,262 common shares (Rights Shares) with a par value of 40.00 per share at a
price of B71.00 cach. The Rights Shares were offered to all eligible shareholders of
the Bank at the proportion of fiftcen (15) Rights Shares for cvery one hundred (100)
common shares held as of the record date of January 16, 2014, The offer period was
trom January 27, 2014 to February 3, 2014.

A total of 33,218,348 Rights Shares were sourced from the existing authorized but
unissued capital stock and, as such, were already issued and listed with the Philippine
Stock Exchange. This is an exempt transaction under Section 10.1 of the Securities
Regulation Code as confirmed by the SEC.

The remaining 129,712,914 Rights Shares will be sourced from an increase in
authorized capital stock of the Bank, which the Bank will apply for with the SEC after
receipt of the endorsement of the BSP. The listing of the said shares will be
accordingly announced as soon as the SEC approves the increase in the Bank’s
authorized capital stock,
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The Offer was oversubscribed and raised gross proceeds of B11.6 billion. The Offer

strengthens the Bank’s capital position under the Basel 111 standards, which took effect
on January 1, 2014.

Computation of Public Ownership

As of December 31, 2013, PNB's Public Ownership Level was at 31.15% which is
above the minimum ten percent {10%) public ownership requirement for a listed

company, in compliance with the requirement of the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE).

Applying the Exchange Ratio, the public ownership level as of 31 December 2013
was at 19.24 %, still above the minimum public ownership requirement of the PSE.

As of March 31, 2014, PNB’s Public Ownership Level is 23.36% which is above the
minimum percentage of ten percent (10%) public ownership requirement for a listed
company, in compliance with the requirement of the Philippine Stock Exchange

(PSE).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The financial statements of PNB and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) have been
prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS),

First-Time Adoption of PFRS

The financial statements (FS) for the year ended December 31, 2012 arc the first FS
the Group has prepared in accordance with PFRS. For periods up to and including the
year ended December 31, 2011, the Group prepared its financial statements in

accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles in the Philippines for banks
(Philippine GAAT for banks).

Accordingly, the Group has prepared financial statements which comply with PFRS
applicable for periods ending on or afier December 31, 2012, together with the
comparative periods as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, as
described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The Group applied PFRS
1, First-Time Adoption of PFRS, in preparing the accompanying financial statements.
In preparing thesc financial statements, the Group’s opening statement of financial
position was prepared as of January 1, 2010, the Group's date of transition to PFRS.

Philippine GAAP for banks mainly differs from PFRS on the reclassification as
permitted by the BSP for prudential regulation and the SEC for financial reporting
purposes, of certain investments in Republic of the Philippines (ROP) credit-linked
notcs that were permitted to be reclassified out of Financial Assets at FEVPL or AFS
investments to Loans and Receivables or HTM investments without bifurcating the
embedded derivatives from the host instrument. Prior to the adoption of PFRS, HTM
investrments of the Group include investments in ROP credit-linked notes where the
related embedded derivatives have not been bifurcated.

Upon the adoption of PFRS, the Group bifurcated the credit derivatives embedded in
ROP credit-linked notes classified as HTM Investments as required by Philippine
Accounting  Standards (PAS) 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The effect of this adjustment resulted in the recognition of a derivative
asset (included in Financial Assets at FVPL) amounting to R64.0 million and
derivative liability (included in Financial Liability at FVPL) amounting to B16.2
million, decrease in HTM Investments and increase in Surplus amounting to B12.5
million and B35.4 million, respectively, as of January 1, 2010.

In 2011, the Parent Company divided the credit derivatives when it reclassified the
HTM investments to AFS investments. Had PNB bifurcated the embedded
detivatives prior to the reclassification date of the HTM investments to AFS
investments, net unrealized gain on AFS investments in 2011 should have been
reduced by P 30.5 million. The transition from Philippine GAAP for banks to PFRS
has not had a material impact on the statements of cash flows.
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Estimates under PFRS at transition date

The estimates as at January 1, 2010 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Philippine GAAP for banks.

Exemptions from other PFRSs

Under PFRS 1, an entity may elect to use one or more exemptions contained in PFRS
1 which are meant to ease the burden of first-time adoption that might otherwise occur

when applying all PFRSs fully retrospectively. The following cxemptions were
applicable to the Group:

¢ Employee benefits

PFRS 1 permits entities to recognizc all actuarial gains and losses at the date of
transition to PFRS in the opening statement of financial position retained eamings.
This election is available regardless of which policy the entity chooscs for
recognition of actuarial gains and losses after first time adoption (use of a

“corridor” approach). However, past service costs arc not covered by this
exemption,

At transition date, the Group has not applied this exemption.

e  Cumulative translation difference

There is an exemption from calculating the cumulative translation differences on
the translation of the net assets of foreign subsidiaries at the date of transition. If

clected, the cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations are
deemed to be zero at the transition date.

At transition date, the Group has not applied this exemption,

Prior Period Adjustments

Sale of Non-Performing Assets 10 Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) companies

To take advantage of incentives under Republic Act (RA) No. 9182, The Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) Act of 2002, and at the same time improve its chances of
recovering from its non-performing assets (NPAs), PNB sold certain NPAs to SPV
companies. In accordance with regulatory accounting policies (RAP) prescribed by the
BSP for banks and financial institutions availing of the provisions of RA No. 9182,
the losses from the sale of the NPAs to the $PV companies were defcrred and are
being amortized over a ten-year period. As of January 1, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the
deferred losses from the sale of NPAs o SPV companics amounted to P 2.6 billion, B
3.1 billion and B 3.7 billion, respectively,
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In 2006 and 2007, PNB sold Opal Portfolio Investments (SPV-AMC), Inc. (OPII) and
certain NPAs, under a transaction that qualified and was approved by the BSP, as a
legal true sale. The losses from the sale of the NPAs were again deferred by PNB. As
of January 1, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the deferred losses from the sale of the NPAs to
OPII amounted to £ 2.1 billion, B 2.5 billion and B 2.8 hillion, respectively.

In 2012, PNB restated its 2011 and 2010 financial statements to recognize the losses
from the sale of NPAs to SPVs in the years the NPAs were sold as required by PFRS.

Consolidation of Opal Portfolio Investments (SPV-AMC), Inc.

As discussed above, PNB sold OPIl and certain NPAs, under a transaction that
qualified and was approved by the BSP, as a legal true sale. OPII holds the NPAs
sold by PNB. Under Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) No. 12, Consolidation
of Special Purpose Entity (SPE), control over a SPE may exist even in cascs where an
entity owns little or none of the SPE’s equity, such as when an enlity retains majority
of the residual risks related to the $PE on its asscts in order to obtain bencfits from its
activities. In accordance with SIC 12, the accounts of OPII should have been

consolidated into the Group’s accounts. Prior to 2012, the accounts of OPII were not
consolidated.

In 2012, the Group restated its 2011 and 2010 financial statements to consolidate the
accounts of OPIL. The consolidation of the accounts of OPII into the Group accounts
resulted in an increase in other asscts, other liabilities and non-controlling interests by
P 514.0 million, P 29.6 million and £ 484.4 million as of January 1, 2012; B 493.1
million, B 86.6 million and B 406,5 million as of January 1, 2011; and P 1.3 billion, B
1.3 billion and (B 39.7 million) as of January 1, 2010, respectively. Other income,
other expense, provision for income tax and income attributable to non-controlling
interests increased by B 762.8 million, B 109.2 million, ® 33.0 million and P 77.9
million in 2011 and P 9423 million, B 95.5 million, B 157.6 million and P 446.2
million in 2010, respectively.
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The following summarizes the specific impact of the first time adoption of PFRS and

the prior period adjustments.

Other Financial

Statement Hem January 1
Surplus (Deficit) - Consolidated Affected 2012 2011 2010¢
As previously reported 6,947,384 3,091 554 425365
To recognize fair value changes of credit
derivatives embedded in credit linked Financial Assets
notes at FVPL. - 85,621 35,353
To reverse gain from reclassification of
credit linked notes from HTM Unrealized gain
investments to AFS investments on AFS 30,476 — —
As restated but before prior period
adjustments 6,077,860 3,177,175 460,718
To write-off deferred losses on NPAs soldto Other Asscts -
OPIl Deferred Charges  (2,141,919) (2,466,434) {(2,774,663)
To write-off deferred losses on NPAs soldto  Other Asscts -
other SPV companies Deferred Charges  (2,589,728)  (3,125,611)  (3,661,494)
2,246,213 (2,414,870)  (5,97543D)
Other Financial
Statement Item January |
Surplus (Deficit) - Parent Company Affected 2012 2011 2010
As previously reported 5,107,645 1,206,080 (1,553,712}
Torecognize fair value changes of credit
derivatives embedded in credit linked Financial Asscts
notes at FVPL - 85,621 35353
To reverse gain from reclassification of
eredit linked notes from HTM Unrealized gain
investments to AFS investments on AFS 30,476 — -
As restated but before prior period
adjustments 5,138,101 1,291,701 (1,518,359)
To write-off deferred losses on NPAs soldto Other Assots -
OPII Decferred Charges  (2,141,919) (2,466,434)  (2,774,663)
To write-off deferred losses on NPAs soldto Other Assets -
other SPV companies Deforred Charges (2,589,728)  (3,125,611)  (3.661,494)
406,474 {4,300,344)  (7,954.516)
. Consolidated Parent Company
Net lncome 2011 2010 2011 2010
As previously reported 3,872,552 2,691,728 3,909,834 2,764,942
To recognize fair value changes of eredit
derivatives embedded in credit linked
notes (55,148) 50,268 (55,145) 50,268
As restated but before prier period
adjustments 3,817,407 2,741,996 3,854,689 2,815,210
To reverse amortization of deferred losses £60,398 f44.112 560,308 844,112
To recognize net income of SFV companies 77,887 446,179 — -
As restated 4,755,692 4,032,287 4,715,087 3,659,322
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Note: For Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures effective as of January 1,

2013, please refer to page 3 of the PNB March 31, 2013 Audited Financial Statements
attached hereto,

1. Financial Condition

The following are the discussions on the consolidated financial condition and results
of operations of the Group based on the Audited Financial Statements as of and for
the interim financial statements ended December 31, 2013,

December 2013 vs. December 2012

¢ The Group’s consolidated assets expanded to B618.1 billion as of December 31,
2013, P287.9 billion or 87.2% higher compared to R330.2 billion total assets
reported by the Bank as of December 31, 2012. The increase is inclusive of some
£198.2 billion assetsof the former Allied Banking Corporation (ABC) at fair
values of February 9, 2013, the effective date of merger. Changes (more than 5%)
in assets were registered in the following accounts:

Cash and Due from Banks of the merged Bank totalled £179.9 billion, 284.4%
or P133.1 billion, higher compared o the December 31, 2012 level of P46.8
billion. The increase came from Deposits with the BSP which grew by P116.0
billion while the increases in Cash and Other Cash Ttems and Due from Other
Banks accounts of B6.2 billion and B10.8 billion respectively, pertains mainly
to ABC accounts which were brought in to the merged Bank,

Interbank loans Reccivable is at P8.4 billion as of December 31, 2013 or an
decrease of 27.0% compared to the December 2012 level of £11.5 hillion due
mainly to lower interbank lending transactions to various banks in 2013,

Securities Held Under Agreements to Resell as of December 2012 of P18.3
billion represents lending transactions of the Bank with the BSP,

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss at B11.7 billion, grew by
£7.7 billion, from P4,0 billion accounted for by the R7.1 billion Segregated
fund assets designated as financial asset at FVPL. This account refers to the
considerations from unit-linked insurance contracts rcecived by PNB Life
Insurance, Inc, (PNB LIT) in designated funds. Scgregated fund assets and the
corresponding segregated fund liabilities are designated as financial assets and
liabilities at FVPL and are evaluated at fair valuc basis in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy.

Available for Sale Investments went up to 280.3 billion in December 2013,
B13.3 billion or 19.9% higher than the P67.0 billion level in December 2012

considering net acquisition of various securities as well as AFS securitics
holdings of the former ABC.
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- Loans and Receivables now stood at P274.3 billion, from R144.2 billion in
December attributable mainly to the 92.3 billion total loans bronght in by the
former ABC to the merged Bank, of which more than 80% are corporate

accounts, New loan releases to various corporate borrowers also contributed to
the increase in Loans and Receivables.

- Investment Propertics was P21.5 billion, up by B6.0 billion from the P15.5
billion reported in December 2012. This came from the B5.7 billion ROPA
accounts of the former ABC.

- Property and Equipment (PPE) amounted to £22.6 billion in December 2013,
an increasc of B6.1 billion from the December 2012 level of R16.5 billion on
account of the merged PPE accounts of former ABC.

- Investment in Associale had a zero balance as of December 31, 2013
compared to the P2.4 billion as of 31 December 2012 primarily due to the
increase in ownership of PNB in Allied Commercial Bank (ACB) from 39% to
90% after the merger. Since ACB became a subsidiary, the investment of PNB
in ACB was consolidated line-by-line in the financial statements. Moreover,
the £5.0 million remaining investment in an associate as of December 31,
2013 was included under Other Assets.

- The £13.4 billion Goedwill as of December 31, 2013 represents the difference
between the fair value of the identificd ABC net assets and liabilities at the
time of the merger and the market value of the 423.962 million PNB sharcs
issued in line with the merger.

- Of the P2.4 billion Intangible Assets, £2.0 billion represents customer
relationship and core deposits acquired by the Group through business
combination, These intangible assets are initially measured at their fair value
at the date of acquisition. The fair value of these intangible assets reflects
expectations about the probability that the expected future economic benefits
embodied in the asset will flow to the Group.

- Other Assets and Deferred Tax Assets amounted to B34 billion and PO.3
billion as of December 31, 2013 compared to 1.8 billion and 21.8 billion as

of 31 December 2012, respectively with the increase mainly coming from the
other asset accounts of the former ABC.

The total consolidated liabilities of the merged bank increased by P242.5 billion
trom B291.7 billion as of December 31, 2012 to P534.2 billion as of December 31,
2013, Major changes in liability accounts were as follows:

- Deposit Liabilities of the merged Bank increased by £221.5 billion from
2240.9 billion to P462.4 billion in December 2013 attributed to ABC deposit
balances. Demand, Savings and Time deposits increased by 297.2 billion,
P92.7 billion and 31.6 billion, respectively.
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Financial Liabilities at FVPL increased by R1.6 billion to £8.1 billion in
December 2013 from B6.5 billion as of December 2012. The increase was
primarily due to the P7.3 billion segregated fund liabilities from ABC
subsidiary PNB Life partly offset by the redemption of the P6.0 billion
subordinated notes issued on June 19, 2009. The subordinated note and
segregated fund liabilities are part of a group of financial instruments that are
managed on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management and investment strategy,

Bills and Acceptances Payable increased by 20.1 billion, from 213.1 billion in
December 2012 to P13.2 billion in December 2013 on account of new
availments,

Accrued Expenscs and Other Liabilitics also increased from $3.9 billion and
£17.3 billion, respectively in December 2012 to 25.5 billion and £35.0 billion,
respectively in December 2013. Increase in Other Liabilitics of B17.7 billion
came mainly from the other liabilities of the former ABC.

* The consolidated equity now stood at P83.9 billion as of December 31, 2013, up
by P45.4 billion from P38.5 billion as of December 31, 2012. The increase in
capital accounis was accounted for by the following:

£41 .4 billion market value of 423,962,500 PNB common shares issued in line
with the PNB-ABC merger

B3.2 billion net income for the year ended December 31, 2013
P3.0 billion increasc in the non-controlling interest
P1.3 billion increase in the accumulated translation adjustment account

partly offset by:

P4 6 billion mark-to-market loss on AFS

P0.5 billion additional actuarial losscs taken up in compliance with PAS 19,
B0.3 billion revaluation loss on Land and Building

2012 vs. 2011
» The Group’s consolidatcd assets expanded to 2330.2 billion as of December 31,
2012, P18.6 billion or 6.0% higher compared to 2311.6 billion as of December

31, 2011. Significant changes (more than 5%) in assets were registered in the
following accounts:

Loans and Receivables grew a respectable 14.8% or P18.6 billion, from
P125.6 billion to P1442 billion, attributable mainly to new loan releases
during the period.

Available for Sale Investments increased by R14.7 billion, from 252.3 billion
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to P67.0 billion, attributed mainly to purchases of government sccurities.

Investment Properties decreased, from P18.5 billion to 15,5 billion, primarily
due to sale of foreclosed properties and provision for loss on a certain property
which was destroyed by fire.

Due from Other Banks decreased by P2.4 billion, from B6.4 billion to P4.0
billion.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss was lower by B2.9
billion, from £6.9 billion to £4.0 billion, attributed mainly to the sale of various
investment securities.

Interbank Loans Receivable decreased by B5.6 billion, from P17.1 billion to
B11.5 billion, in view of lower interbank lending.

Other Assets increased by 0.6 billion, from 21,6 billion to B2.2 billion

The consolidated liabilities increased by P14.0 billion from B277.7 billion as of
December 31, 2011 to P291.7 billion as of December 31, 2012, Major changes in
liability accounts were as follows:

Deposit Liabilities increased by £3.4 billion, from P237.5 billion to 22409
billion, attributed mainly to the P8.1 billion increase in savings deposit, partly
offset by the P1.7 billion and P3.1 billion reductions in demand and time
deposits.

Bills and Acceptances Payable increased by P4.6 billion, from P8.5 billion (o

£13.1 billion, mainly due to BSP rediscounting and various borrowings from
other banks.

subordinated Debt increased by 23.5 billion, from 26.4 billion to £9.9 billion.
On May 9, 2012, the Bank issued P3.5 billion worth of Unsecured

Subordinated Notes to finance assel growth and strengthen the Bank’s capital
base.

Other liabilities increased by £2.6 billion, from R14.7 billion to 217.3 billion,
mainly due to the accrual of provision for loss on certain court cases,

additional insurance liability of the Bank's subsidiary PNB Gen. Insurers, and
increment in accounts payable,

The consolidated equity stood at £38.5 billion as of December 31, 2012, up by
P4 7 billion from £33.8 billion, as of December 31, 2011, The increase in capital
accounts was mainly accounted for by the P4.7 billion nct income for the year
ended December 31, 2012. As mentioned in item 1 above, Surplus as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are already net of SPV losses

previously being deferred in accordance with the SPV Law.
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2,

Results of Operations

2013 vs, 2012

The Group’s net income reached P5.2 billion for the year ended December 31,
2013, £0.5 billion or 10.6% higher than the 4.7 billion net income reported for
the same period last year. The figure would have been much higher if not for the

P865.5 million acerual on casualty losses (¢.g. for typhoon Yolanda/Santi and for the
Bohol earthquake) taken up in the later part of 2013.

Net interest income amounted to 213.7 billion in December 2013, exceeding by
£6.7 billion the net interest income for the same period Jast year of 7.0 billion.
Interest income was up by P7.1 billion, from B11.4 billion to R18.5 billion.

Interest expense is however also higher at P4.7 billion or by 20.3 billion from
P4.4 billion last year.

Net service fees and commission income improved to B2.4 billion in December
2013 compared to £1.9 billion reported for the same period last year,

Fee-based and other income increased by 20.6 billion to £8.4 biilion for the year
ended December 31, 2013, from £7.8 billion for the same period last year, The
increase came from Net gain on sale or exchange of assct and Miscellaneous
income which was higher by 20.2 billion and £1.2 billion, respectively and was

partially offset by decrease in Trading and investment securities gain by P0.8
billion.

Administrative and other operating expenses totaled R18.2 billion, 7.2 billion
more than last year's P11.0 billion, Increases were registered in Compensation
and Fringe benefits by P2.3 billion, Taxes and licenses by R0.7 billion and Other
Miscellaneous expenses by R2.9 billion. Occupancy and equipment-related costs

and Depreciation and amortization also increased by B0.5 billion and R0.8 billion,
respectively.

Provision for income tax was at £1.2 billion and £0.9 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively with the increase primarily duc to
higher taxable revenues during the current period.

2012 vs. 2011

The Group posted a P4.7 billion consolidated net income for the year ended
December 31, 2012, 2.2% higher than the P4.6 billion net income for the same
period last year.

Net interest income stood at 7.0 billion in 2012, slightly lower by £0.2 billion
compared to the net interest incorue for the same period last year. Interest income
declined by P1.1 billion, from P12.5 billion to B11.4 billion. Interest expensc
decreased by P0.9 billion, from B5.3 billion to 4.4 billion.
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®  Net service fees and commission income was slightly lower at 1.9 billion in
2012 compared to P2.1 billion reported for the same period last year.

» Fee-based and other income increased by P0.5 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 to P7.8 billion, from P7.3 billion for the same period last
year. The increase came from gains on Trading and investment securities which
expanded by P1.8 billion, from P3.6 billion to 5.4 billion, mainly attributed to
gain on sale/redemption of Available for Sale Securities.

*  Administrative and other operating expenses was lower by 20.2 billion, from
B11.2 billion to £11.0 billion.

*  Provision for income tax was at P0.9 billion and £0.8 billion for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Key Performance Indicators

1. Capital Adequacy

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Parent Company’s capital management is to ensure it
complics with externally imposed capital requircments and maintains sirong credit
ratings and healthy capital ratios in order 10 support its business and to maximize
shareholders’ value.

The Parent Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities, Tn
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Parent Company may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital structure, or issue capital

securities, No changes were madc in the objectives, policies and processes from the
previous periods,

The Bank and its individual regulatory operations have complied with all externally
imposed capital requirements throughout the period.

Regulato ualifving Capital

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Parent Company’s
compliance with regulatory requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the
Parent Company’s “unimpaired capital” (regulatory net worth) reported to the BSE,
which is determined on the basis of regulatory policies, which differ from PFRS in
SOME respects.

In addition, the risk-based capital ratio of a bank, expressed as a percentage of
qualifying capital to risk-weighted asscts, should not be less than 10.00% for both
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solo basis (head office and branches) and consolidated basis (parent bank and
subsidiaries engaged in financial allied undertakings but excluding insurance
companies). Qualifying capital and risk-weighted asscts are computed based on BSP
regulations. Risk-weighted assets consists of total assets less cash on hand, due from
BSP, loans covered by hold-out on or assignment of deposits, loans or acceptances
under letters of credit 1o the extent covered by margin deposits and other non-risk
items determined by the Monetary Board (MB) of the BSP,

In 2002, the BSP approved the booking and recognition of additional appraisal
increment of 8431.8 million on properties in detcrmining the capital adequacy ratio,
On the samc year, the BSP also approved the booking of translation adjustment of
P1.6 billion represcnting the increase in peso value of the investment in foreign
subsidiaries for purposes of the quasi-reorganization and rehabilitation of the Parent
Company, provided that the same shall be excluded for dividend purposes.

The regulatory qualifying capital of the Bank consists of Tier 1 (Core) and Tier 2
(Supplementary) capital. Core Tier 1 capital consists of paid-up common stock,
additional paid in capilal, retained earnings (including current year profit) and
cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments less required deductions such as
unsecured credit accommodations to DOSRI and deferred income tax. For Tier 2
Capital, Upper Tier 2 includes appraisal increment reserves on bank premises and
general loan loss provision while Lower Tier 2 includes the unsecured subordinated
debt to the extent of 50% of Tier 1 Capital.

Under BSP Circular No. 360, cffective July 1, 2003, the capital-to-risk assets ratio
(CAR) is to be inclusive of a market risk charge. In August 2006, the BSP issued
Circular No, 538 which contains the implementing guidelines for the revised nisk-
based capital adequacy framework to conform to Basel II reccommendations, Under
the revised framework, capital requirements for operational risk, credit derivatives and
securitization exposures arc to be included in the calculation of the Parent Company’s
capital adequacy. The revised framewok also prescribes a more granular mapping of
external credit ratings to the capital requirements and recognizes more types of
financial collateral and guarantees as credit risk mitigants. Changes in the credit risk
weights of various assets such as foreign cumrency denominated exposures to the
Philippine National Government, non-performing exposures and ROPA, were also
made. Exposures shall be risk-weighted based on third party credit assessment of the
individual exposure given by eligible external credit assessment institutions. Credit
risk-weights range from 0.00% to 150.00% depending on the type of exposure and/or
credit assessment of the obligor. The new guidclines took effect last July 1, 2007.

The Group’s consolidated capital adequacy ratio combined credit, market and
operational risks computed based on BSP Circular No. 538 were 19.7%, 18.1% and
21.7% as of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, improving and well
above the minimum 10% requirement of BSP. The following table sets the regulatory

capital as reported to BSP as at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 (amounts in
billions):
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR)

Ag of the Periods Indicated

Congolidated Solo
HTE] FIOF3 2011 W13 iz 2011

Tier | (core) Capital §1,927.249 29.950.780 M, 546,588 79,100.512 30,744,150 35,173,686
Common stock 43448337 26,489,837 26,480 K37 43,443,337 26,489,837 26,489.837
Additional Paid in Capital 26,499.90% 2031272 1037272 26,499,909 1,037.272 20371272
Retrined Eaminps 0,568.295 22TR793 6,513.204 o.002.417 2,278.793 6,31 5,204
Cumulative Forgign Currency Trasslation {200.578) (9U9.161) (340,611 149.%49 (61.752) 333373
Undivided profits - . - - .
Misority mterest in sybsidiary financial allied
undentakings which are less than wholly-owned
(for consalignted bagis) 2,620,286 54,039 40886 - -

Deductions from Tier | Capital 19,715.452 3442213 4,045,702 19,385.053 3,345,648 39Toio
Unsecured DOSRI 54.051 87,181 T17.882 34,051 87.181 717,882
Deferred income tax 3,390.944 1355032 3,327.820 3,566,545 3,238,467 3,259.128
Cigodwill 15, 764.457 15,764.457

Crross Tier | Capital 62,211.797 26,508.567 30,500,386 39,715.45% 27 398,502 3, 196.676

Upper Tier 2 Capital 2,903.298 1,452,380 2,134.202 2,792,410 1442 058 2,061,340
Appraisal lncrement Reserve, Bank Premisce 291.725 91,725 291.725 91,725 01025 291,725
nuth. by MB
General Joan loas provision (limited to 1,00%
credif risk-weighted agscta comiputed per Part 2611373 1,161.155 1,342,477 2500685 1,150,333 1,769.615%
11, Item B.}

Lower Tier 2 Capitsl (limited to 30% of Tier 1 2,953.65) 13,254.284 12,931,643 9.933.651 13.,604.25] 12,931.643

Capital)

Unagcured Subordinated Debt 9953651 16,134,386 12,931.643 9.953.651 16,134 886 12,931.643
Total Tier 2 Capital 12,856,049 14,707,16d 15,065,545 12,746.061 15,141,309 14,992 983
Crmss Tier 2 Capital (limited to 100% of Tier | 12,336,049 14,707 1 64 15,065,845 12,746.061 15,141,309 14,992 983
Capital)

Dreductions from Qualifying Capital 623.123 3,122,668 159.4K3 14,735,834 9.472.213 6,511,277

Total yualifying capital T 445,623 34,043,063 45,407,248 59,715,686 33067508 39678382

The risk-weighted assets of the Group and Parent Company a3 of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are a5 follows:
Risk-weighted on:

Batance sheet asser: G ATA RS54 180,263.4146 180,331.138 292,664,636 172,427.340 173,521.304
0% 3,363,382 3,346.152 2,752,834 2,438,801 3316012 2,573.701
50% 13963631 AN 5,383.404 12821113 3453812 5.374.547
75% 15,492,672 3,500,654 LA04.005 15,028,768 3.500.684 2,504,073
100% 24%,165915 140,882,358 137,279.005 2125933829 133200840 130,796,580
150% 37.487.054 28,641,092 32431710 36442125 28,537 992 32.272.40]

Off-Ralance sheet assots: 7,835,140 2462837 2,680.680 7,224 489 20134627 124317
20% 34,38 74.208 . 24,381 74208 -
30% 2,331,258 1,782.022 B.734 2,331.258 1,782.022 R.734
T5% 519.572 - - 19,572 - -
100% 4,049,929 606.607 2,671,946 4330378 157,397 2215583
150% - . - - -

Total Coumterparty Risk-Weighted Assets in the

Banking Book (Derivatives and Repo-style 599,806 473881 1019.17) 594,806 673681 1,019,170

Tran=agtions)

Taotal Counterparty Risk-Weighted Assets in the

Trading Book {Derivativez and Repo-style 9014 198,574 106,664 - 198,574 106664

“Teamsagtions)

‘Tonal Risk-Weighted Amount of Credit Linked

Motes i Uy Bunking Book . - - . - .

Taotal Risk-Weighted Securitizatinn Exposurea - - - - - -

Genernl loan loss provigion (in excess of the amaunt

pettuitied t be inchided in Upper Tier 2) - - 1§7.732 - - 250.3RS

Tatal Credit Risk Weiphted Assets 327919714 133,598.708 184,0159.920 300,488,931 175313422 176,711.070

Markel Risk Weighted Assets 2.337.18%9 3,255,203 3,992,160 1.H28,952 3,241,655 38637680

Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 40,938.779% 23.385.190 21,633, 20 36,178.156 20,306,580 14,5 58,040

Total Risk Weighted Assats 378,195,681 210,239,191 209,690,970 340,496.038 198,861,657 2044132870

Capital Ratios

Tier 1 capitnl ratia 16,367% 11.866% L4.508% 15.374% 1.396% 13.961%

Tict 2 capital rativ A37% 6.253% YALY: 1.580% 5230 5 R65%

CAR 1 0.684% 18.11%% 21.654% 21,654% 16.628% 19.826%
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As of 31 December 2013, total capital adequacy ratio was_at 19.7% while Tier 1
Capital Ratio was 16.4%.

2. Asset Quality

Non-performing loans (NPL), nct of loans classified as “Loss™ in the latest BSP
Report of Examination which are fully provided with allowance for credit losses, have
been further reduced to B3.8 billion as of year-end 2012, from B4.6 billion and £4.9

billion as of year-end December 2011 and 2010, respectively. As of 31 December
2013 net NPL was B3.5 billion.

3. Profitability

December 31
2013 2012 2011
Return on Average Equity 3.5% 13.1% 14.9%
Return on Average Assets 1.1% 1.5% 1.5%
Net Interest Incormne 3.4% 2.6% 2.9%

Average balances, as referved to below, are determined as the sum of the beginning and ending balances of the
respective stirtement of financial position accourts as of the end of the year divided by two
" For the years ended 2011 - 2013: Net income divided by average wiel equity for the period indleated

? For the years ended 2011 - 2013: Net income divided by average total assets for the period indicated

T For the years ended 3071 — 20 3; Net interest income divided by average inferest-earning assers
Interest-earning assets which mainly consisi of Due from BSP and other banks, Interbank logns and Securitics

purchased under resale agreements. Trading and investment securities, and Receivable from customers, net of
NPLs

4. Liquidity

The ratios of liquid assets to total assets were 45.3%, 44.7% and 46.4% as of 31
December 2013, 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, respectively.

The Bank is in compliance with the liquidity and legal reserve requircments of BSP
for deposit liabilities.

5. Cost Efficiency

The ratios of total operating expenses (excluding provision for impairment and credit
losses) to total operating income were 70.6%, 61.0% and 60.9% for December 2013,
December 2012 and December 2011, respectively.
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Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncertainties

The Bank presently has more than adequate liquid assets to meet known funding
requirements and there are no known trends, demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that will have a material impact on the Bank’s liquidity.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations

In the normal course of business, the Group makes varions commitments and incurs
certain contingent liabilities that are not presemied in the financial statements,
including several suits and claims which remain unsettled. No specific disclosures on
such unsettled assets and claims arc made because any such disclosures would
prejudice the Group’s position with the other parties with whom it is in dispute. Such
cxemption from disclosures iz allowed under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, The Group and its legal counsel believe that any
losses ansing from these contingencies which are not specifically provided for will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.
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Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements or obligations

The following is a summary of various commitments and contingent liabilities of the

Group as of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 at their equivalent peso contractual
amounts;

12/31/2013 12/31/2012 12/31/2011
{In Thousand Pesos)

Trust department accoutts 56,334,549 55,976,479 55,565,213
Standby letters of credit 13,165,263 7,131,779

Deficiency claims receivablg 11,722,138 6,309,340 6,334,950
Credit card lines 11,239 863

Cther credit commitments 974,377 974,377

Inward bills for collection 660,197 140,54% 1,542,449
Shipping guarantees issued 1,481,027 628,422 728,343
Outward bills for cellection 477,220 105,030 123,224
Unused commercial letters of credit 66,664 36,096 85,260
Other contingent accounts 504,525 41,317 41,265
Confirmed export letters of credit 82,513 78,126 5,261
Items held as collateral 64 244 259

Capital Expenditures

The Bank plans to purchase hardware and software requirements needed for the
implementation of new ATM acquisitions & security gadgets, Windows Operaling
Systems upgrades, Cash Management System Enhancement, Mobile Commerce
System and Trust System upgrades among others.

Significant Elements of Income or Loss
Significant elements of net income of the Bank come from its continuing operations.
Seasonal Aspects

There are no seasonal aspects that have material effect on the Bank’s finanecial
condition or results of operations,

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted by the Group are consistent with those of the
previous financial years except that the Group has adopted the following policies:
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs), amendments to Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations cffective last January 1,
2012 and did not have significant impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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New Standards and Interpretations:

PFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (Amendments)

These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and
related arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are
required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with
PAS 32, Thesc disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that are
subject to an enforccable master netting arrangement or ‘similar agreement’,
irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32. The amendments
require entities to disclose, in a tabular format umless another format is more
appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information. This is prescnted
separately for financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the
reporting period:

a. The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial
liabilities;

b. The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when
determining the net amounts prescnted in the statement of financial position;

¢. The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;

d. The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement thal are not otherwise included in (b) above, including;
i.  Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or

all of the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and

ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and

¢. The net amount afier deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.

The amendments to PFRS 7 arc to be retrospectively applicd and are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, The amendments affect
disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PERS 10, Consolidared Financial Statements

PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements, It
also includes the issues raised in SIC 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.
PFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special
purpose entities. The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to
exercise significant judgment to determine which entitics are controlled, and
therefore, arc required to be consolidated by a parcnt, compared with the requirements
that were in PAS 27, The standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013,
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PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC 13, Jointly Controlled
Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11 removes the option to
account for jointly controlled entities using proportionate consolidation, Instead,
jointly controlled entities that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted

for using the equity method. The standard becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013,

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures related to consolidated financial statements
that were previously in PAS 27, as well as all the disclosures that were previously
included in PAS 31 and PAS 28, Investments in Associates. These disclosures relate
to an entity’s intercsts in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. The standard becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,

The adoption of PFRS 12 will affect disclosurcs only and have no impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

PEFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under PFRSs for all fair value
measurements, PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value,
but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair
value is required or permitted. This standard should be applied prospectively as of the
beginning of the annual period in which it is initially applied. Its disclosure
requirements need not be applied in comparative information provided for periods
before initial application of PFRS 13. The standard becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or atter January 1, 2013,

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income or OCI (Amendments)

The amendments to PAS | change the grouping of items presented in OCI. Items that
can be reclassified (or “recycled™ to profit or loss at a future point in time (for
example, upon derecognition or settlement) will be presented separately from items
that will never be recycled. The amendments affect presentation only and have no
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. The amendment becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012, The amendments will

be applied retrospectively and will result to the modification of the presentation of
items of OCI,
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PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised)

Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental changes such as removing the
corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple
clarifications and rewording. The revised standard also requires new disclosures such
as, among others, a sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption,
information on asset-liability matching strategics, duration of the defined benefit
obligation, and disaggregation of plan assets by nature and risk.

The adoption of PAS 19 (Revised) which required restrospective application, resulted
in the restatement of previously reported retirement obligation/asset of the Group.
The adjustment amounts were determined by the Group with the assistance of an
external actuary. The Parcnt Company and certain subsidiaries had chosen to close
‘Surplus’ the net effect of all transition adjustments as at January 1, 2011 (the
transition date) upon retrospective application of PAS 19 (Revised). The Group will
retain the remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income and will not
transter these to other items in equity.

The effects of retroactive application of PAS 19 (Revised) and PFRS 10 arc detailed
below:

December 31, 2012

Effect of Effect of
retroactive retraactive
Agpreviously  spplication of  application of
reported PAS 19R PFFRS51¢__ Reclassificadons As restated
Increase (Decresse)
Statement of financial posidon
Assely
Loans and reeeivables = pet 144,707,509 - - (476,844} 144,230,665
Inveztmient in subizidiaties and an associute 2,905,294 - - (514,039) 2,391,255
Intangihle assets - - - 377,022 022
Investment properties 14,478,348 - - 1,014,678 15,493,026
Other nssets - ngt 2,994 425 429 (816,217) (400,817 1,777,820
Liabilities
Other habilities 16,846,303 450,807 (11,949) - 17,285,251
Equity
Kemensuremnent losses on retirement plan - (781,900) - - {781,5900)
Surplus 6,888,348 331,500 46,219 - 7,266,067
Non-controlling Interests 904,693 22 (B3048T) 54,228
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January 1, 2012

Effect of Effect of
retraactive retroactive
As previously  applicadion of  application of
reported PAS 19R PFRSLL  Reclassiflcatdons Asx restated
Increasze (Decrease)
Statemcot of financial position
Assely
Loans and receivables - net 126,249 035 - - (618,265) 125,630,770
Investment in subisidiaries und an associate 2,901,780 - - (3,062) 2,896,718
Intangiblc asscts - - - 410,357 410,357
Investment propertics 16,100,113 - - 2,419,610 18,519,723
(hther assets - net 3,807,388 (1,216) {514,002) (2,206,240 1,175,930
Linbilities .
Other liabilites 14,015,965 631,915 (29,641} - 14,668,239
Equity -
Remeasurement losses on retitement plan - (1,004,057) - - (1,004,057)
Surplus 2,246,213 320,965 - - 2,567,178
Noo-controlling interests 531,247 (39 (484,361) - 46,847

Other income, other cxpenses, provision for income tax and income attributable to non-
controlling interests decreascd by 989.4 million, 623.3 million and 46.2 million, and 366.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2012,

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the issuance of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements, and PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interesis in Other Entities, what remains of
PAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiarics, jointly controlled cntities, and
associates in the separate financial statements. The adoption of the amended PAS 27
will not have a significant impact on the separate financial statements of the entities in
the Group. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013,

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the issuance of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and PFRS
12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the
equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. The

amendment becomes cffective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013,
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

This interpretation applies to waste removal costs (“stripping costs™) that are incurred
in surface mining activity during the production phase of the mine (“production
stripping costs™). If the benefit from the stripping activity will be realized in the
current period, an entity is requircd to account for the stripping activity costs as part of
the cost of inventory. When the benefit is the improved access to ore, the entity should
recognize these costs as a non-current assct, only if certain criteria are met (“stripping
activity asset”). The stripping activity asset is accounted for as an addition to, or as an
cnhancement of, an existing asset. After initial recognition, the stripping activity asset
13 carried at its cost or revalued amount less depreciation or amortization and less
impairment losses, in the same way as the existing assel of which it is a part. The
Group expects that this interpretation will not have any impact on its financial

position or performance. This intcrpretation becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013,

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to
set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsctting criteria to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments affect presentation only and
have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. The amendments to
PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014.

PK¥RS 9, Financial Instruments

PFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to
the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilitics as defined in PAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Work on impairment of
financial instruments and hedge accounting is still ongoing, with a view to replacing
PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial asscts to be measured at fair
value at initial recognition. A debt financial assct may, if the fair value option (FVQ)
is not invoked, be subscquently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a
business model that has the objective to hold the asscts to collect the contractual cash
flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other debt
instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All equity
financial assets are measured at fair value either through other comprehensive income
(OCI) or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at
fair value through profit or loss. For FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in
OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in QC1
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would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 39
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried
forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the
criteria for using the FVO. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an
effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, the
Group is still evaluating the effects of the adoption of PFRS 9. PFRS 9 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2015.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities
that undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors, The
interpretation requires that revenuc on construction of real estate be recognized only
upon completion, except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be
accounted for under PAS 11 or involves rendering of services in which case revenue
is recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services
with the construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are
transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for based on
stage of completion. The SEC and the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC)
have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of
the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine
real estate industry is completed,

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle) contain non-urgent but
necessary amendments to PFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods

beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and are applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permmitted,

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs

The amendment clarifies that, upon adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized
borrowing costs in accordance with its previous generally accepted accounting
principles, may carry forward, without any adjustment, the amount previously
capitalized in its opening statement of financial position at the date of transition.
Subsequent to the adoption of PFRS, borrowing costs are recognized in accordance
with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs. The amendment does not apply to the Group as it is
not a first-time adopter of PFRS.

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the requirements for
comparative information

The amendments clarify the requirements for comparative information that are
disclosed voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to retrospective application of
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an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in the
financial statements. An entity must include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the minimum required comparative period. The additional comparative period
does not nced to contain a complete set of financial statements. On the other hand,
supporting notes for the third balance sheet (mandatory when there is a retrospective
application of an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification of
items in the financial statements) are not required. The amendments affect disclosures
only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of servicing equipment

The amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by cquipment and servicing
equipment should be recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment and should be recognized as inventory if
otherwise. The amendment will not have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance.

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax effect of distribution to holders
of equity instruments

The amendment clarifies that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders
and to transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with
PAS 12, Income Taxes. The Group expects that this amendment will not have any
impact on its financial position or performance.

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim financial reporting and segment
information for total assets and liabilities

The amendment clarifies that Lhe total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable
segment need to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision maker and there has been a material change from the amount
disclosed in the entity’s previous annual financial statements for that reportable

segment. The amendment affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Group's
financial position or performance.
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CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Bank and its subsidiaries have had no disagreement with the Bank’s auditors on

any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statements disclosure, or
auditing scope procedure.

In compliance with SEC Rule 68, as amended, and BSP Circular 660, Series of 2009,
which require that the external auditor or rotation of the engagement and concurring
partner every five (5) years, Ms, Jancth T. Nufiez, the Partner-in-Charge for the last
five (5) years (2008 to 2012), was be replaced by Ms. Vicky B. Lee-Salas, SGV’s
Leader for Market Group 5 and onc of the more experienced audit partners in the
banking industry.

EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES
Audit and Other Related Fees

The following are the engagement fees billed and paid for cach of the last two fiscal
years for the profcssional services rendered by the Bank’s external auditor:

1. Audit

]

013

¢ P6.0 million engagement tee for the audit of the Bank’s Financial Statement as of

December 31, 2013 (inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses but excluding Value
Added Tax).

L]

012

* P7.5 million engagement fee for the audit of the Bank’s Financial Statement as of

December 31, 2012 (inclusive of ount-of-pocket expenses but excluding value
added tax).

2011

s £6.9] million engagement fee for the andit of the Bank’s Financial Statement as of

December 31, 2011 (inclusive of out-of-pocket cxpenses but excluding value
added tax),

2. Other Related Fees

2013

» P13.3 million engagement fee for the review of Financial Statements as of March
31, 2013 and June 30, 2013 and issuance of comfort letter relative to the issuance
of P5.0 billion Long Term Negotiable Certificates of Time Deposit (LTCND) in
July 2013 and P5.0 billion LTNCD in October 2013.
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* P6.2 million engagement fee for the review of Financial Statements as of March
31,2013 and 2012 relative to the Purchase Price Allocation,

¢ P10.5 million engagement fee for the review of the Financial Stalements and
issuance of comfort letter relative to the Stock Rights Offering of PNB.

* P1.2 million engagement fee for the review of Financial Statements of the Trust
Banking Group for the year 2013

2012

» P0.995 million for the professional services rendered relative to the issuance of
P3.50 billion Subordinated Notes, as Tier 2 Capital in May 2012.

]

011

P3.92 million engagement fee for the review of interim condenscd Financial
Statements (Scptember 30, 2009 and 2010) relative to the issuance of P6.50
billion subordinated notes, as Tier 2 Capital in June 2011,

¢ PL176 million engagement fee for the due diligence review relative to the

issuance of £3.1 billion Long Term Negotiable Certificates of Time Deposit in
November 2011.
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MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS TOGETHER WITH THEIR BUSINESS EXPERIENCE
COVERING AT LEAST THE PAST FIVE (5) YEARS

FLORENCIA G. TARRIELA, 67, Filipino, first elected as a Director on May 29,
2001, has been serving as Chairman of the Board of the Bank since May 24, 2005, and
as Independent Director since May 30, 2006. She also serves as an Independent
Director of PNB Capital and Investment Corporation, PNB Life Insurance, [nc., PNB
(Europe) Plc and LT Group, Inc. She is also a member of the Board of Advisors of
PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. She obtained her Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration degree, Major in Economics, from the University of the Philippines
and her Masters degree in Economics, from the University of California, Los Angeles,
where she topped the Masters Comprehensive Examination. Ms. Tarriela is currently a
columnist for “Business Options” of the Manila Bulletin, She is a Life Sustaining
Member of the Bankers Institute of the Philippines (BATPHIL), and Trustee of Finex
and TSPI Development Corporation. She was formerly an Independent Director of the
Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation, the Philippine Dealing and Exchange
Cormporation and the Philippine Dealing System Holding Corporation. Ms. Tarriela
was also former Undersecretary of Finance, and an alternate Member of the Monetary
Board of the B8P, Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) and the Philippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation (PDIC). She was formerly Deputy Country Head, Managing
Partner and the first Filipino lady Vice President of Citibank N. A., Philippine Branch.
Ms, Tarriela is a co-author of several inspirational books - “Coincidence or Miracle?
Books 1, II, Il (*Blessings in Disguise™), and IV (“Against All 0dds™), and gardening
books - “Oops-Don’t Throw Those Weeds Away!™ and “The Secret is in the Soil”.
She is an environmentalist and practices natural ways of gardening.

FELIX ENRICO R. ALFILER, 64, Filipino, was elected as Independent Director of
the Bank effective January 1, 2012, He completed his undergraduate and graduate
studies in Statistics at the University of the Philippines in 1973 and 1976,
respectively. He undertook various continuing education programs, including
financial analysis and policy, at the IMF Institute of Washington, D.C. in 1981 and on
the restructured electricity industry of the UK in London in 1996. He has published
articles relating to, among others, the globalization of the Philippine financial market,
policy responses to surges in capital inflows and the Philippine debt crisis of 1985. He
is currently an Independent Director of Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation,
Allied Savings Bank, PNB International Investments Corporation and PNB Global
Remittance & Financial Co. (HK) Ltd. where he also sits as Chairman. He is also a
member of the Board of Advisors of PNB Remittance Company (Nevada) and PNB
Remittance Centers, Inc. He previously held various distinguished positions, namely:
Philippine Representative to the World Bank Group Executive Board in Washington,
D.C., Special Assistant to the Philippine Secretary of Finance for International
Operations and Privatization, Director of the BSP, Assistant to the Governor of the
Central Bank of the Philippines, Advisor to the Exccutive Director at the International
Monetary Fund, Associate Director at the Central Bank and Head of the Technical
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Group of the CB Open Market Committec. Mr. Alfiler was also the Monetary Policy
Expert in the Economics Sub-Committee of the 1985-1986 Philippine Debt
Negotiating Team which negotiated with over 400 private international creditors for
the rescheduling of the Philippines’ medium- and long-term foreign debts. In the
private sector, Mr. Alfiler served as Advisor at Lazaro Tiu and Associates, Inc,,
President of Pilgrims (Asia Pacific) Advisors, Ltd., President of the Cement
Manufacturers Association of the Philippines (CeMAP), Board Member of the
Federation of Philippine Industries (FPI), and Vice President of the Philippine
Product Safety and Quality Foundation, Inc. and Convenor for Fair Trade Alliance.

FLORIDO P. CASUELA, 72, Filipino, has been serving as a Director of the Bank
since May 30, 2006. A Certified Public Accountant, he obtained his degrec in
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Major in Accounting, and his
Masters in Business Administration from the University of the Philippines. He took
the Advanced Management Program for Overseas Bankers conducted by the
Philadelphia National Bank in conjunction with the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania. Mr. Casuela was one of the ten (10) awardees of the 200]
Distinguished Alumni Award of the UP College of Business Administration. He is
currently the Chairman of PNB Securities, Inc. and an Independent Dircctor of PNB
Holdings Corporation. He is also a Director of Allied Savings Bank, PNB Global
Remittance & Financial Co. (HK) Ltd., PNB RCI Holdings Co., Inc., PNB
International Investments Corporation, PNB Remittance Company (Canada) and
Surigao Micro Credit Corporation, He is a Senior Consultant of the Bank of Makati,
Inc. and a Director of Sagittarius Mines, Inc. as well as its subsidiaries, namely,
Tampakan Mineral Resources Corporation, PacificRim Land Realty Corporation and
Hillerest, Inc., wherc he is also the Chairman, He is a Trustee of the LBP Countryside
Development Foundation, Inc. He was formerly the President of Maybank
Philippines, Inc. from February 1992 to July 1993, Land Bank of the Philippines from
July 1998 to August 2000, and Surigao Micro Credit Corporation from Junc 2001 to
November 2004, He was formerly a BSP Consultant/Senior Adviser for the Philippine
National Bank and the Chairman of the National Livelihood Support Fund, LBP
Countryside Dcvelopment Foundation, Inc., LBP Insurance Broketage, Inc., LBP
Leasing Corporation, LBP Realty Development Corporation, Masaganang Sakahan,
Inc., LBP Financial Services SpA, and Republic Planters Bank Venture Capital. He
scrved as Vice Chairman of the T.and Bank of the Philippines, People’s Credit
Finance Corporation and Westmont Forex. Mr. Casuela was also a Member of the
Board of Dircctors of the Cotton Development Authority, National Food Authority,
Philippine Crop Insurance Corporation, Asean Finance Corporation, Ltd, {Singapore),
Manila Electric Company, All Asia Capital and Trust Corporation, Petrochemical
Corporation of Asia Pacific, Pacific Cement Corporation, EBECOM Holdings, and
Westmont Securities, Inc.

LEONILO G. CORONEL, 67, Filipino, was elected as a Director of the Bank on
May 28, 2013. He obtained his Bachelor of Arts, Major in Economics degree from
the Ateneo de Manila University in 1967 and finished the Advance Management
Program of the University of Hawaii in 1977. He became a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors in 2002. Presently, he is an Independent Director of
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the following PNB subsidiaries: Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation, Japan-
PNB Rentals Corporation, PNB General Insurers Co., Inc., and PNB Global
Remittance and Financial Co. (HK) Ltd. He is an Independent Director of Megawide
Construction Corporation, DBP-Daiwa Capital Markets Phil., and Electronic Network
Cash Tellers. He is also a Director of Software Ventures International, the Executive
Director of RBB Foundation and a Managing Dirsctor of the BAP-Credit Bureau, Inc,
Prior to his present positions, Mr. Coronel was Executive Direclor of the BAP. He
also previously served as the Treasurer of Philippine Depository & Trust Corporation,
a Director of the Philippine Clearing House Corporation, the Philippine Decaling
System and the Philippine Deposilory & Trust Corporation, a Trustee/Treasurer and
member of the Capital Market Development Council Institute, a member of the
Executive Committee of the Philippine Business for Social Progress and the President
of Cebu Bankers Association, He previously worked with Citibank, Manila for twenty
(20) years, occupying various positions,

REYNALDO A, MACLANG, 75, Filipino, was elected as a Director of the Bank on
February 9, 2013. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Ateneo de Manila
University. He was previously a Dircctor of Allied Banking Corporation (Allied
Bank), PNB Life Insurance, Inc. and Eton Properties, Inc, He is currently a member of
the Board of Directors of Allicd Leasing and Finance Corporation, Allied Savings
Bank, FNB Holdings Corporation, PNB Global Remittance and Financial Co, (HK)
Ltd. and an Independent Director of PNB Securities, Inc. He has been with Allied
Bank since 1977 and was formerly the President of Allied Savings Bank from 1986 to
2001. He then became the President of Allied Bank from 2001 up to 2009. Previous
to that, he was connected with other commercial banks and practiced law.

ESTELITO P. MENDOZA, 84, Filipino, was elected as a Director of the Bank
effective January 1, 2009. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of the Philippines and Master of Laws degree from the Harvard Law
School. A practicing lawyer for more than sixty years, he has been consistently listed
for several years as a “Leading Individual in Dispute Resolution™ among lawyers in
the Philippines in the following directories/journals: “The Asia Legal 5007,
“Chambers of Asia” and “Which Lawyer?” yearbooks. He was also a Professional
Lecturer of law at the University of the Philippines and served as Solicitor General,
Minister of Justice, Member of the Batasang Pambansa and Provincial Governor of
Pampanga. He was the Chairman of the Sixth (Lcgal) Committee, 31* Session of the
UN General Assembly and the Special Committee on the Charter of the United
Nations and the Strengthening of the Role of the Organization. He currently scrves as
a member of the Board of Directors of Philippine Airlines, Inc., San Miguel
Corporation, Meralco, and Petron Corporation, He is a recipient of the Presidential
Medal of Merit as Special Counsel on Marine and Ocean Concerns on June 28, 2010
and he was also awarded by the University of the Philippines Alumni Association
(UPAA) its 2013 “Lifetime Distinguished Achievement Award.”

OMAR BYRON T. MIER, 67, Filipino, was first appointed as the Bank’s President

and Chief Executive Officer on May 25, 2005 up to May 24, 2010. He was
reappointed on February 9, 2013 after serving as Acting President since July 17, 2012.
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He has previously served as Chairman of the Executive Committee and has been a
Director of the Bank since May 25, 2005. Mr. Mier, a Certified Public Accountant,
obtained his degrees in Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Major in
Accounting, and Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University of the
Philippines. He is currently Chair of PNB Capital and Investment Corporation, Japan-
PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation, Japan-PNB Equipment Rentals Corporation,
PNB (Europe) Ple. and PNB International Investments Corporation. He is also a
Director of PNB Forex, Inc., PNB General Insurers Co,, Inc., PNB Securities, Inc.,
PNB Management and Development Corporation, Bulawan Mining Corporation, PNB
Global Remittance and Financial Co. (HK) Ltd., PNB RCI Holdings Co., Ltd., PNB
Remittance Company (Canada) and LGU Guaranty Corporation, He was formerly the
Chairman of Victorias Milling Company, Inc., and a Director of Citra Metro Manila
Tollways Corporation and Credit Information Corporation, Prior to his election as a
member of the Board of the Bank, he served as Executive Vice President and Chief
Credit Officer from August 16, 2002 to April 10, 2005, then was appointed as Acting
President on April 11, 2005. He worked with Citibank N.A. (Manila and Malaysia)
for 24 years where he held the positions of Country Risk Manager/Senior Credit
Officer and Head of the Risk Management Group and World Corporation Group.
Before joining the Bank in 2002, he served as Deputy General Manager & Corporate
Banking Department Head of Deutsche Bank, Manila from 1995 to 2001.

CHRISTOPHER .J. NELSON, 54, British, was elected as a Director of the Bank on
March 21, 2013. He holds Bachelor of Arts and Masters of Arts degrees in History
from Emmanuel College, Cambridge University, UK., and a Diploma in Marketing
from the Institute of Marketing, Cranfield, UK. He is currently a member of the
Board of PNB Holdings Corporation and PNB Global Remittance and Financial Co.
{HK) Ltd. Prior to joining the Bank, he was President of Philip Morris Fortune
Tobacco Corporation, Inc. (PMFTC, Inc.) for 2 years and concurrently Managing
Director of Philip Morris Philippines Manufacturing, Inc., a position he held for 10
years. He has an extensive 31 years of experience in the tobacco business, 25 years of
which werc with Philip Morris International holding various management positions
including Area Director for Saudi Arabia, Kuwait, Gulf Cooperation Council, Yemen,
and Horn of Africa, Mr, Nelson is actively involved in various business and non-profit
organizations that work for the social and economic upliftment of communities. He is
a member of the Board of Trustees of American Chamber Foundation Phils., Inc.,
Philippine Band of Mercy and Tan Yan Kee Foundation, He is also a Dircctor of the
American Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines, Inc. and serves as Adviser to the
Board of the Federation of Philippine Industries.

CECILIO K. PEDRO, 61, Filipino, was clected as Independent Director of the Bank
on February 28, 2014, subject to regulatory approval. He obtaincd his Bachelor of
Sciencc degree in Business Management from the Ateneo de Manila University in
1975 and Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy in Technological Management fom the
Technological University of the Philippines in March 2006. He is the Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ)/President of Lamoiyan Corporation. He is also the Chairman and CEQ
of Pneumatic Equipment Corporation and Action Container, In¢c. and a Director of
CATS Motors. He was formerly the CEO/President of Aluminum Container, Inc.
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from 1977 to 1985. Over the years, Mr. Pedro received various distinguished awards,
namely: Ten Outstanding Young Men in the field of Business Entrepreneurship
(1991), Aurelio Periquet Award on Business Leadership (2003), Ateneo Sports Hall of
Fame (2003), CEO Excel Award (2009), Ozanam Award for service (Ateno de Manila
University - 2004), Entrepreneur of the Year for Social Responsibility (SGV
Foundation - 2005}, Ten Quistanding Manileiios (Office of the Mayeor, City of Manila
- 2005), and PLDT SME Nation and Go Negosyo’s Grand MVP Bossing Award
(2011). He was also recognized by the House of Representative for his Exemplary
Accomplishment in the Promotion of the Welfarc of the Deaf Community on October
16, 2012. Under his leadership as CEQ and President of Lamoiyan Corporation, the
company was acknowledged as the Most Outstanding Toothpaste Manufacturer by the
Consumer’s Union of the Philippines (1990, 1993, 1995, 1996, 1997, 2001 and 2002).
The company was also the 1993 Apolinario Mabini Awardee for Employer of the
Year, was recognized by the Personnel Management Association of the Philippines as
having the Most Outstanding Program for Equal Employment in 1993 and given the
2012 Advocacy Marketing by Philippine Marketing Association, Agora Awards on
October 16, 2012. He is currently involved in various socio-civic organizations. Dr,
Pedro is the Chairman of the Deaf Evangelistic Alliance Foundation, Inc,, Asian
Theological Seminary, and Legazpi Hope Christian School and the Vige Chairman of
Ateneo Scholarship Foundation, He is also the Vice President of the Federation of
Filipino-Chinesc Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Inc. and an Elder of the
United Evangelical Churches of the Philippines. He is a board member of the
Philippine Business for Social Progress, Philippine Secondary School Basketball
Championship, Ten Qutstanding Young Men Foundation, Manila Doctors Hospital,
Asian Marketing Federation and Commanderie d¢ Bordeanx (Philippine Chaptcr).

WASHINGTON Z. SYCIP, 92, American, has been serving as a Direstor of the
Bank since December 8, 1999. He is the founder of SGV Group, the Philippines’
largest professional services firm. He is also one of the founders and Chairman
Emeritus of the Asian Institute of Management; a member of the Board of Overseers
of the Graduate School of Business at Columbia University; Honorary Chairman of
the Euro-Asia Centre of INSEAD in Fontainebleau, France; and Honorary Life
Trustee of The Asia Socicty. He is presently an Independent Director of Belle
Corporation, Lopez Holdings, Commonwealth Foods, Inc., First Philippine Holdings
Com., Highlands Prime, Inc., Philippine Equity Management, Inc., Philippine
Hotelier, Inc., Philamlife, Realty Investment, Inc., the PHINMA Group, Stateland,
Inc. and Century Properties, Inc. He is the Chairman of Cityland Development
Corporation, Lufthansa Technik Philippines, Inc., MacroAsia Corporation, STEAG
State Power, Inc, and State Properties Corporation. He is a member of the Board of
Directors of a number of other major corporations in the Philippines and other parts of
the world. Mr. SyCip has served as President of the International Federation of
Accountants (1982-1985), a member of the International Advisory Board of the
Council on Foreign Relations (1995-2010), Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees
of The Conference Board (2000-2004), and Chairman of the Asia Pacific Advisory
Committee of the New York Stock Exchange (1997-2004). He also served on the
International Boards of the American International Group, AT&T, Australia & New
Zealand Bank, Caterpillar, Chase Manhattan Bank, Owens-Illinois, Pacific Dunlop
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and United Technologies Corporation, among others. He was a member of the Board
of Trustees of Ramon Magsaysay Award Foundation (2005-2008) and Eisenhower
Exchange Fellowship (1999-2010), Among his awards are the Order of Lakandula,
Rank of Grand Cross, conferred by Philippine President Benigno S. Aquino, 1T on
June 30, 2011; Lifetime Achievement Award given by Columbia Business School in
2010 and Asia Society in 2012; Ramon Magsaysay Award for International
Understanding in 1992; the Management Man of the Year given by the Management
Association of the Philippines in 1967; the Officer’s Cross of the Order of Merit given
by the Federal Republic of Germany in 2006; Star of the Order of Merit Conferred by
the Republic of Australia in 1976; and the Officer First Class of the Royal Order of
the Polar Star awarded by H.M. the King of Sweden in 1987.

HARRY C. TAN, 68, Filipino, was appointed as a Director of the Bank on February
9, 2013 after serving as a Director of Allied Banking Corporation since November
1999, He holds a Bachelor of Sciencc degree in Chemical Engineering from Mapua
Institute of Technology. Mr. Tan is currently the Chairman of Director of Bulawan
Mining Corporation and a Director of PNB Management Development Corporation,
Allied Savings Bank, Allied Commercial Bank and Allied Banking Corporation (HK)
Ltd. He is also the President of Century Park Hotel and Landcom Realty Corporation.
He is the Vice Chair of Lucky Travel Corp., and Vice Chairman/Director of Eton
Properties Philippines, Inc., Eton City Inc., and Belton Communities, Inc, He is also
the Vice Chairman/Director/Treasurer of LT Group, Inc. (formerty Tanduay Holdings,
Inc,). He is the Managing Director/Vice Chair of The Charter House Inc. and is a
member of the Board of Directors of various private firms which include Asia
Brewery, Inc., Dominium Realty and Construction Corporation, Progressive Farms,
Inc., Shareholdings Tnc., Himmel Industries, nc,, Tobacco Recyclers Corporation,
Basic Holdings Corporation, Pan Asia Securities Inc., Absolut Distillers, Inc., Allied
Bankers Insurance Corporation, Asian Alcohol Corp, REM Development
Corporation, Tandvay Brands International Inc., Foremost Farms, Inc., Grandspan
Development Corp,, Manufacturing Services and Trade Corporation, Philippine
Airlines, Inc., PAL Holdings, Inc., Philip Morris Fortune Tobacco Corporation, Inc.
(PMFTC), and Tangent Holdings Corporation where he is also the Treasurer. He is
also a Director/Chairman for the Tobacco Board of Fortune Tobacco Corporation.

LUCIO C. TAN, 80, Filipino, has been serving as a Director of the Bank since
December 8, 1999. He studied at Far Eastern University where he earned his degree
in Chemical Engineering. In 2003, he earned the degree of Doctor of Philosophy,
Major in Commerce, from the University of Santo Tomas. From humble origins, Dr.
Tan became the Chairman of Allied Banking Corporation from 1977 to 1999. He is
presently the Chairman and CEO of LT Group, Inc. (formerly Tanduay Holdings,
Inc.), Philippine Airlines, Inc., and PAL Holdings, Inc. He is the Chairman of Asia
Brewery, Inc., Basic Holdings Corporation, Himmel Industries, Inc., Eton Properties
Philippines, Inc., Fortune Tobacco Corporation, Grandspan Development
Corporation, Tanduay Distillers, Inc., PMFTC, Inc., PNB Life Insurance, Inc., Allied
Leasing and Finance Corporation, Allied Commercial Bank and Allied Banking
Corporation (Hong Kong) Ltd, Dr. Tan is also the Chairman/President of Tangent
Holdings Corporation and Lucky Travel Corporation. Despite Dr. Tan’s various
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business pursuits, he continues to share his time and resources with the community. In
1986, he founded the Tan Yan Kee Foundation, Inc., of which he is the Chairman and
President. He is likewise Chairman Emeritus of the Federation of Filipino-Chinese
Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Inc. (FFCCCII). He is also the founder and
Vice Chairman of the Foundation for Upgrading the Standard of Education, Inc.
(FUSE). He is the Adviser/Benefactor of the medical scholarship program of Asia
Brewery, Inc. and Benefactor/Honorary Adviser of other professional and socio-civic
groups. For his outstanding achievements and leadership, Dr. Tan received the
following honorary degrees: Doctor of Humane Letters, University of Guam (Guam,
USA); Doctor of Applied Agriculture, Central Luzon State University (Mufioz, Nueva
Ecija); Doctor of Technology Management, Western Visayas College of Science and
Technology (La Paz, lloilo), Doctor of Science in International Business and
Entrepreneurship, Cavite State University (Cavite); Doctor of Humanities, Western
Mindanao State University (Zamboanga); Doctor of Business Management, St. Paul
University Philippines (Tuguegarao, Cagayan); Doctor of Institutional Development
and Management, Isabela State University (Cauayan, Isabela); Doctor of Humanities,
University of Mindanao (Davao City); Doctor of Business and Industrial Management
Engineering, Central Philippine University (Iloilo City): Doctor of Humanities in
Business and Entrepreneurship, Lycenm-Northwestern University (Dagupan City,
Pangasinan); and Doctor of Humanities, $an Beda College (Manila), He was choscn
as a Lifetime Achievement Awardee by the Dr. Jose P. Rizal Awards for Exccllence,
adopted to the Ancient Order of the Chamorri and designated Ambassador-at-Large of
the U.S. Island-territory of Guam, and conferred the Diploma of Merit by the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam, one of the highcst honors conferred by the Vietnamese
Government on foreign nationals. Dr. Tan was named Outstanding Manilan for the
year 2000 by the City Government of Manila and conferred the UST Medal of
Excellence in 1999, the highest award given by the Pontifical and Royal Universily of
Santo Tomas, Aside from being named Most Distinguished Bicolano Business Icon in
2005, Dr. Tan was also conferred the following awards: “2003 Most Outstanding
Metnber Award” by the Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry (PCCI) in
recognition of his altruism and philanthropy, business acumen, hard work and
perseverance in his numerous business ventures; Award of Distinction by the Cebu
Chamber of Commerce and Industry: Award for Excmplary Civilian Service of the
Philippine Medical Association; Honorary Mayor and Adopted Son of Bacolod City;
and Adopted Son of Cauayan City, Tsabela. He was named Entreprencurial Son of
Zamboanga, awarded as distinguished fcllow during the 25" Conference of the
ASEAN Federation of Engineering Association, and conferred the 2008 achievement
award for service to the chemistry profession during the 10" Eurasia Conference on
Chemical Sciences. In recognition of his achievements, the City of San Francisco,
U.S.A. declared May 11 of each year as Dr, Lucio Tan's Day in the Bay area. The
island-territory of Guam also cclebrates Lucio Tan Day on November 2 of every year.

LUCIO K. TAN, JR., 47, Filipino, has been serving as a Director of the Bank since
September 28, 2007. He obtained his degree in Bachelor of Science in Civil
Engincering (Minors in classical Chinese Mandarin and Mathematics) from the
University of California Davis in 1991, He completed the academic requirements for
his MBA at the J.L. Kellogg School of Management of Northwestern University and
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the School of Business and Management of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2006. He also attended courses in Basic and Intermediate Japanese
Language, He works with MacroAsia Corporation where he held the rank of President
and Chief Executive Officer for 7 years. Mr. Tan is currently the President of Tanduay
Distillers, Inc. He is a member of the Board of Directors of Bulawan Mining
Corporation, PNB Capital and Investment Corporation, PNB Forcx, Inc., PNB
Management and Development Corporation, Allied Commercial Bank, Phillip Morris
Fortune Tobacco Corporation (PMFTC), Inc., Philippine Airlines, Inc., PAL
Holdings, Inc., Air Philippines Corporation, MacroAsia Corporation, LT Group, Inc.
(Tanduay Holdings, Inc.), Allied Bankers Insurance Corporation, Foremost Farms,
Inc. and Eton Properties Phils., Inc., where he is also the OIC. He is an Executive
Director of Dynamic Holdings Limited, and Executive Vice President (EVP) and
Director of Fortune Tobacco Corporation,

MICHAEL G. TAN, 47, Filipino, was elected as a Director of the Bank on February
9,2013. He is the President/Director of LT Group, Inc., the holding firm of the Lucio
Tan Group of Companies. He also served as a Director of Allied Banking
Corporation (ABC) from January 30, 2008 until the ABC’s merger with PNB on
February 9, 2013. He is the Chairman of PNB Holdings Corporation and a Director of
PNRB Forex, Inc., Allied Savings Bank and Allied Banking Corporation (HK) Lid. He
is also the Director/Chiefl Operating Officer of Asia Brewery, Inc. and a member of
the Board of Directors of the following companies: Bulawan Mining Corporation,
PNB Management and Developrment Corporation, Allied Commercial Bank, Abacus
Distnbution Systems Phils., Inc,, Allied Bankers Insurance Corporation, Absolut
Distillers, Inc., Air Philippines Corporation, Philippine Airlines, Inc., Philippine
Airlines (PAL) Foundation, Inc., PAL Holdings, Inc., Lucky Travel Corporation, Eton
Properties Philippines, Inc., Grandway Konstruct, Inc., Eton City, Inc., PMFTC Inc.,
Sharcholdings, Inc., Tangent Holdings Corporation, and Victorias Milling Company,
Inc. He holds a Bachelor of Applied Science in Civil Engineering degrec from the
University of British Columbia, Canada.

DEOGRACIAS N. VISTAN, 69, Filipino, was elected as Independent Director of
the Bank on August 1, 2011. He obtained his AB and BSBA degrees from the De La
Salle University and earned his MBA from Wharton Graduate School, University of
Pennsylvania. A seasoned banker, Mr. Vistan’s extensive banking expericnce
includes being Chair of United Coconut Planters Bank (2003-2004), Vice Chair of
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (2000-2001), and President of Equitable-PCI
Bank (2001-2002), Solidbank Corporation (1992-2000) and Land Bank of the
Philippines (1986-1992). He also scrved as President of FNCB Finance (1979-1980).
Mr. Vistan likewise held various management positions in Citibank Manila, Ccbu and
New York (1968-1986). He is a former Presidential Consultant on Housing (2002-
2003) and President of the Bankers Association of the Philippines (1997-1999). He is
currently an Independent Director of PNB Capital and Investment Corporation, PNB
(Europe) Plg, PNB Intcrnational Investments Corporation, and Lorenzo Shipping
Corporation. He is also a member of the Board of Directors of U-Bix Corporation and
i5 a member of the Board of Advisors of PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. and PNB
Remittance Company (Nevada). He is the Chairman of Creamline Dairy Corporation,
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Landbank Countryside Development Foundation, Inc. and Pinoy Micro Enterprise

Foundation, Inc. He is currently a member of the Board of Trustees of the Ramon
Magsaysay Award Foundation.

DORIS S. TE, 33, Filipino, was appointed as Corporate Secretary of the Bank on
Jannary 20, 2012. She obtained her degree in Bachelor of Science in Business
Management in 2001 and earned her Juris Doctor in 2005 from the Atenco de Manila
University, She began her law career as a Junior Associate in Zambrano & Gruba
Law Offices and in Quiason Makalintal Barot Torres Ibarra & Sison Law Office. She
joined the Bank in 2009. Prior to her appointment, she was Assistant Corporate
Secretary and later Acting Corporate Secretary of the Bank. Presently, she also serves

as a Director and Corporate Secretary of Valuchub, Inc., a family-owned distribution
company.

Board of Advisors:

MANUEL T. GONZALES, 77, Filipino was appointed as Board Advisor of the
Bank on October 1, 2013. At present, Mr. Gonzales is a Director of Allied Leasing
and Finance Corporation and Allied Bankers Insurance Corporation. Previous to this,
he was a Director of Allied Banking Corporation from March 26, 1986 until the PNB-
Allied Banking Corporation merger on February 9, 2013. He has been with Allied
Banking Cormporation since 1977 where he served as Senior Exccutive Vice President
trom 1997 to 2009 and as Executive Vice President from 1981 to 1997. Mr. Gonzalcs
is a graduate of De La Salle University and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Commerce. He continued his postgraduate studies on Master in Arts in Economics at
the Ateneo De Manila University.

WILLIAM T, LIM, 74, Filipino, was appointed as Board Advisor of the Bank on
January 25, 2013. Previous to that, he served as a Consultant of Allied Banking
Corporation on credit matters since 1995, He obtained his Bachelor of Science in
Chemistry from the Adamson University. From 1985 to 1994, he was a Director of
Corporate Apparel, Inc., Concept Clothing, and Frceman Management and
Development Corporation, President of Jas Lordan, Inc. and an importer/distributor of
Chinese, Australian and New Zealand apples. He also worked with Equitable Banking
Corporation for 28 years, rising from the ranks to becoming a Vice President of the
Foreign Department.

PROFILE OF SENIOR OFFICERS TOGETHER WITH THEIR BUSINESS
EXPERIENCE COVERING AT LEAST THE PAST FIVE (5) YEARS:

OMAR BYRON T. MIER, 67, Filipino, was first appointed as the Bank’s President
and Chicl Executive Officer on May 25, 2005 up to May 24, 2010. He was
reappointed on February 9, 2013 after serving as Acting President since July 17, 2012,
He has previously served as Chairman of the Executive Committee and has been a
Director of the Bank since May 25, 2005. Mr. Mier, a Certificd Public Accountant,
obtained his degrees in Bachelor of Sciencc in Business Administration, Major in
Accounting, and Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University of the
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Philippines. He is currently Chair of PNB Capital and Investment Corporation, Japan-
PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation, Japan-PNB Equipment Rentals Corporation,
PNB (Europe) Plc. and FNB International Investments Corporation. He is also a
Director of PNB Forex, Inc., PNB General Insurers Co., Inc., PNB Securities, Inc.,
PNB Management and Development Corporation, Bulawan Mining Corporation, PNB
Global Remittance and Financial Co. (HK) Ltd., PNB RCI Holdings Co., Ltd., PNB
Remittance Company (Canada) and LGU Guaranty Corporation. He was formerly the
Chairman of Victorias Milling Company, Inc. and a Director of Citra Metro Manila
Tollways Corporation and Credit Information Corporation. Prior to his election as a
member of the Board of the Bank, he served as Exccutive Vice President and Chief
Credit Officer from August 16, 2002 to April 10, 2005, then was appointed as Acting
President on April 11, 2005. He worked with Citibank N.A. (Manila and Malaysia)
for 24 years wherc he held the positions of Country Risk Manager/Senior Credit
Officer and Head of the Risk Management Group and World Corporation Group.
Before joining the Bank in 2002, he served as Deputy General Manager & Corporate
Banking Department Head of Deutsche Bank, Manila from 1995 to 2001.

CENON C. AUDENCIAL, JR., 55, Filipino, Executive Vice President, is Head of
the Institutional Banking Group. Before joining the Bank in 2009, he headed the
Institutional and Corporate Bank of ANZ, prior to which he was a Senior Relationship
Manager of Corporate Banking and Unit Head of Global Relationship Banking for
Citibank N.A. He previously served as Vice President and Unit Head of Standard
Chartered Bank’s Relationship Management Group, and was a Relationship Manager
in Citytrust Banking Corporation. Before his 20-year stint as a Relationship Manager,
he was a Credit Analyst for Saudi French Bank and AEA Development Corporation,

Mr. Audencial obtained his Bachelor of Arts in Economics degree from the Ateneo de
Manila University.

HORACIO E. CEBRERO II1, 52, Filipino, Executive Vice President, is Head of the
Treasury Group. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Commerce degree, Major in
Marketing, from the De La Salle University. Prior 10 joining PNB, he was an
Executive Vice President and the Treasurer of EastWest Banking Corporation. He
also held the post of Senior Vice President and Deputy Treasurer of Rizal Commercial
Banking Corporation, Vice President Head of the Foreign Exchange Desk of Citibank
Manila and Vice President/Chief Dcaler of the Treasury Group of Asian Bank
Corporation, He brings with him 30 ycars of experience in the banking industry
starting from Loans and Credit, Branch Banking, Fixed Income Salcs, Trust Banking,
Foreign Exchange and Fixed Income Trading, Portfolic Management and other
Treasury-related activities.

CHRISTOPHER C. DOBLES, 70, Filipino, Exccutive Vice President, is Head of
the Corporate Security Group and designated as the Bank’s Chief Security Officer. He
is also the concurrent Chief Security Officer of Allicd Savings Bank. He serves as the
Chaitman of the Administrative and Investigation Committee, the Committee on
Decorum and Investigation and Member of the Labor Management Committee, PNB
Regular Retirement Board and Promotions Committee A and B. He was also the
former Head of Allied Bank’s Credit Investigation and Appraisal Department and was
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appointed as the Internal Affairs Officer of the Anti Fraud Committee, He was a
member of the Allied Bank’s Senior Management Committee and the Promotions
Committee. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of $to. Tomas
and took up units in Masters in Business from the Ateneo Graduate School. He was a
commissioned officer with the rank of Major in the Philippine Constabulary Reserve
Force. Prior to becoming Bank Security Officer, he held key positions with the Allied
Banking Corporation including Head of the Corporate Affairs. He was with Allied
Bank since 1977 starting as Assistant Manager of the Corporate Affairs and Security
Department. He was a former President of the Bank Security Management
Association (BSMA) and was consistently clected as a member of the Association’s
Board of Director up to present.

JOVENCIO B. HERNANDEZ, 61, Filipino, Executive Vice President, is Head of
the Retail Banking Group. A Certified Public Accountant, he obtained his Bachelor of
Science in Commerce degree, Major in Accounting, from the De La Salle College.
Prior to joining PNB, he was a Senior Vice President and Head of the Consumer
Banking Group of Security Bank and was also Scnior Vice President for Retail
Banking of Union Bank of the Philippines in 2004, Commercial Director of Colgate
Palmolive in 1996, Senior Country Operations Officer of Citibank in 1995, and Group
Product Manager of CFC Corporation and Unilever in 1982 and 1980, respectively,
He was formerly the President of Sccurity Finance in 2004 and First Union Plans in
2003. He was also a Director of SB Forex and Security-Phil Am. He served as
Treasurer, Director and Executive Committee Member of Bancnet in 2004,

RAMON EDUARDO E. ABASOLO, 50, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is
Head of the Flexcube Operations Division. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in
Management Engineering degree from the Ateneo de Manila University. He began his
career in technology in 1985 with Citibank Philippines and worked in Citibank Tokyo
from 1990 to 1998. He served as Country Technology Head for Citibank Philippines
and Country Technology Infrastructure Head for Citibank Indonesia. Before joining
PNB in 2010, he was Sentor Viee President for IT in Banco de Oro.

YOLANDA M. ALBANO, 63, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is Head of the
Bank's Commercial Banking Group. She was previously the First Senior Vice
President and Head of Allicd Bank's Institutional Banking Group, comprised of the
Account Management Division and the Merchant Banking Division. She joined Allied
Bank in 1977, starting off as an Account Officer at the Business Development
Division and moving on as Head of the Credit and Research Depattment, concurrent
Head of the Corporate Affairs Department, Head of the Account Management
Division, and ultimately, Head of the Institutional Banking Division. At present, she is
a member of the Financial Executives Institute of the Philippines (FINEX). She is a
past President of the Bank Marketing Association of the Philippines (BMAP) and the
Credit Management Association of the Philippines (CMAP). She is also a past
President of the College of the Holy Spirit Alumnae Foundation, Ms. Albano
completed her AB-Economics degree in threc (3) years with a Dean's Award for
Academic Excellence from the University of the Philippines.
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ALICE Z. CORDERO, 57, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, was appointed
Chief Compliance Officer of the Bank on June 16, 2010 with oversight on the Parent
Bank including all subsidiaries, affiliates and foreign branches. She is concurrently the
Corporate Governance Executive of the Bank. She obtained her degree of Bachelor of
Science in Business Economics from the University of the Philippines-Diliman, Q.C.
She has earned units in Masters in Business Administration at the Ateneo Graduate
School of Business. Prior to joining the Bank, she was the Chief Compliance Officer
of Allied Banking Corporation (2007-2010). She worked with Citibank N.A - Manila
Branch (1988-2007) for nineteen (19) years and held various senior positions in the
Consumer Banking Group, including Compliance and Control Director (2000-2005)
and concurrent Regional Compliance and Control Director for Philippines and Guam
(2004). Her 31 years of banking experience include working for Allied Banking
Corporation (1979-1983; 2007-2010), First National Bank of Chicago - Manila
Branch (1983-1986), Far East Barnk and Trust Company (1986-1988) and Citibank
N.A. - Manila Branch (1988-2007), holding department head positions in Credit
Policy, Credit & Research Management, Financial Control, Corporate Regulatory
Reporting,  Asset Strategy, Business Development, Risk Management and
Compliance.

SOCORRO D, CORPUS, 62, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is Head of the
Human Resource Group. A graduate of the Assumption College with a Bachelor of
Arts degree, Major in Psychology as well as an Associate in Commercial Science
degree, she has been an HR practitioner for almost 40 years. She started her career
with China Banking Corporation in 1973 as an HR specialist prior to joining the
Allied Banking Corporation in 1977 as an Assistant Manager. Her professional
affiliations include the following: founding member and a Board Member of the
Organization Development Professional Network (ODPN), past President and
member of the Bankers’ Council for People Management, member of the Personnel
Management Association of the Philippines, and the regular Bank representative to
the Banking Industry Tripartite Council.

ZACARIAS E. GALLARDO, IR,, 64, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Head of the Financial Management and
Controllership Group of the Bank on October 1, 2012. Mr. Gallardo, a Certified
Public Accountant, oblained his degree of Bachelor of Science in Commerce (Summa
Cum Laude) from the Far Eastern University in 1969. He has earned units for his
Masters in Business Administration degree at De La Salle College, Bacolod City, He
served the Central Bank of the Philippines for 24 years where he was extensively
exposed 1o all phases of banking. He worked with consultancy firms and published a
reference book on Regulations on Trust and Fiduciary Business and Investment
Management Activitics. He joined Allied Bank in 1996 and served as the bank’s
Controller from 2001 until he joined PNB in 2012. He also headed the Allied Bank’s
ICAAP Core Team and Business Continuity unit,

MIGUEL ANGEL G. GONZALEZ, 55, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is the

Chief Credit Officer and Head of the Credit Management Group. He entered the Bank
in March 2010 as Senior Vice President for Commercial Banking Group. He obtained
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his Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering degrec from the University of the
Philippines and Masters in Business Management degree from Asian Institate of
Management. He started his banking career with Citibank NA in 1984. He then
headed the Branch Banking Group of Land Bank of the Philippines in 1989 then
joined Union Bank of the Philippines in 1994 where he was Senior Vice President and

head of Credit and Market Risk Group. In 2007, he became the Country Manager for
Genpact Services LLC,

RAMON L. LIM, 62, Filipino, is the President and CEQ of PNB Securities, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. A Certificd Public Accountant, he obtained his
Bachelor of Science in Commerce degree, Major in Accounting (Magna Cum Laude),
from the University of San Carlos in April 1971. He completed his Masters in
Business Management at the Asian Institute of Management (AIM) in 1980 as a full
scholar under the Post-graduate Scholarship Program of Citibank Manila where he
worked from 1975 to 1993, He began his overseas postings at Citibank’s Head OQffice
in New York in 1984; next, at its Taipei Branch as Vice President and Deputy
‘Treasurer, and finally, at its Hong Kong Regional Office as Senior Trader and
Currency Fund Manager. He then moved to become the Managing Dircetor of Solid
Pacific Finance Ltd., Hong Kong from 1993 to 1993, and Investment Manager of
MHK Properties and Investment Ltd, HK from 1996 to 1997, He was Treasurer, then
Business Manager of the Trust Group of Union Bank of the Philippines from 1997 1o
2002. He joined the Bank in November 2002 as Deputy Head of the Treasury Group.
He was designated as Head of International and Branch Offices Sector in 2005 and
2006. He was re-assigned back to the Treasury Group as its Head in January 2007
until July 2010. He was designated as the Chief of Staff of thc PNB President from
May 2010 until July 2011, at that time, in concurrent capacity as President and CEO
of PNB Securities, Inc. He has been a Fellow of the Institute of Corporate Directors
since May 2011.

JOHN HOWARD D. MEDINA, 44, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, has been
the Head of the Global Operations Group since 2009. The Group manages the
operations and back-office support units in the Philippines and overseas branches in
the United States, Asia-Pacific and Europe. He is also the Integration Director who
coordinates all efforts to complete the operational merger of PNB with Allied Banking
Corporation. Mr, Medina has a Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering from
the University of the Philippines and an MBA from the Shidler College of Business at
the University of Hawai’i at Manoa. He was an East-West Center Degree Fellow and
the recipient of a full scholarship while at the University of Hawai'i. He also attended
the Handelshejskolen I Arhus (The Aarhus School of Business), Pacific Asian
Management Institute and the European Summer School for Advanced Management
for additional graduate studics. Prior to joining PNB in 2004, he was a pioneer in the
process and technology banking practice in the nineties when he helped transform the
Asian operations of one of the largest multinational banks. He subsequently
established a private consulting practice in the United States, helping set up operations
and technology initiatives of large financial institutions. Mr. Medina also worked
with Union Bank of the Philippines where he conceptualized and implemented
electronic banking products and services.
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EDGARDO T. NALLAS, 56, Filipino, is the President and CEQ of Japan-PNB
Leasing and Finance Corporation (JPNBL) and its subsidiary, Japan-PNB Equipment
Rentals Corporation (JPNBERC). He has 35 years of experience in various areas of
banking particularly in Human Resources Management, Account Management and
Branch Banking. He was formerly the Head of PNB Human Resources Group with
the rank of First Senior Vice President. He obtained his degree in AB Economics
(Accelerated) from the De La Salle University in 1977 and has earned units in Masters
in Business Administration (MBA) from said school, He started his career in Human
Resource in 1977 with PhilBanking Corporation. Prior to PNB, he held various HR
positions at SolidBank Corporation (1992-1995), BA Savings Bank (1997) and
Philippine Bank of Communications (1998-2005).

BENJAMIN 8. OLIVA, 61, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is Head of the
Global Filipino Banking Group (GFBG) which manages PNB’s overseas network of
branches and remittance subsidiaries in Asia, Europe, the Middle East, and North
America and concurrent Director of PNB (Europe) Plc. Mr. Oliva obtained his
Bachelor of Science in Commerce degree, Major in Accounting (Cum Laude), from
the De La Salle University. He started his career with FNCB Finance, Inc. where he
held various junior managerial positions from 1973-1978. He moved to Jardine
Manila Finance in 1978 as Vice President of the Metro Manila Auto Finance. In 1980,
Mr. Oliva started his career as a banker at the State Investmcnt Bank where he was
Head of Corporate Sales Lending Division, In 1981, he moved to PCI Bank and
handled the Corporate Banking. He joined Citibank, NA in 1988, where he exhibited
his expertise in sales and headed different sales divisions (Corporate Banking, Loans,
Cards and Citiphone Banking). He became a Director for various divisions such as
Country Asset Sales, Credit Cards Business, Business Development and Personal
Loans from November 1999 to January 2006. In January 2006, he was hired by
Citibank Savings, Inc. as Director for Personal Loans and moved back to Citibank,
NA as Business Development Dircctor in February 2007. He was rehired by Citibank
Savings, Inc, as its President in December 2007. From June 2009 to July 2011, he
held concurrent positions a3 Commercial Banking Director of Citibank NA and Board
Member of Citibank Savings, Inc. In September 2011, he has been a designate
Consultant for Consumer Banking of United Coconut Planters Bank, Mr. Oliva
Jjoined PNB on September 10, 2012,

AIDA M. PADILLA, 64, Filipino, is First Senior Vice President and Head of the
Remedial Management Division. She is chief swategist for problem and distressed
accounts. A seasoned professional, she rose from the branch banking ranks at the
Philippine Banking Corporation to become Vice President for Marketing of its
Corporate Banking Group. She obtained her Bachelor of Science in Commerce
degree, Major in Accounting, from St. Theresa’s College.

CARMELA A. PAMA, 57, Filipino, First Scnior Vice President, is the Bank’s Chief
Risk Officer. A Certified Public Accountant, she obtained her Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration and Accountancy degree from the University of the
Philippines and Masters in Business Administration degree from the $tem School of
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Business, New York University. She started her banking career with Citibank N.A.
(Phils.) where she held various positions in the areas of Treasury Trading and
Marketing, and Operations and Quality Development. She left Citibank with the rank
of Vice President and moved to Banco Santander to open its operations in the
Philippines. She moved back to Citibank, N.A. (Phils.) in 1996 to head various
operation units. Prior to joining PNB on October 9, 2006, she was a Consulting
Services Practice Manager at Oracle Corporation (Phils.) from 1999 to 2005. Her stint
as CRO of the Bank since October 2006 has developed her proficiency in all facets of
banking operations and has rounded off her skills in enterprise risk management. In
2010, she co-led the implementation of the Bank’s ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy
Asscssment Process) and has successfully institutionalized the process, She has
worked closcly with the Bank’s board level Risk Oversight Committee in the effective
oversight of the various risks faced by the Bank. She has also been closely involved in
the merger/integration activities for PNB and Allied Bank. Her 30 years of corporate
experience has provided her with a well-rounded expertisc in the operations,
technology and risk management areas of the Bank.

EMMANUEL GERMAN V. PLAN 11, 61, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is
Head of the Special Assets Management Group. He holds a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Commerce, Major in Accounting, from the University of Santo Tomas and
took up Masteral Studies at the Letran College. Prior to joining the Bank, he was
Senior Vice President of the Special Assets Group of Allied Banking Corporation. He
concurrently held the position of Senior Vice President of Statc Investment Trust and
State Properties Corporation. He also acted as Managing Director of Bear Stearns
State Asia and Northeast Land Development Corporation. He has exposure in
investment banking, account management, and credit and collection. He has been
involved in acquired assets management and in real estate development since 1997,
Mr. Plan is also into social, religious and charitable undertakings through his active
involvement in different educational and religious foundations like Sambayan Educ.
Foundation, Inc., LSQC Scholarship Foundation, UST-EHSGAA and Magis Deo, to
name a few,

ELFREN ANTONIO 8. SARTE, 54, Filipino, First Senior Vice President, is the
President/ Dircctor of Allied Savings Bank. He used to Head the Consumer Finance
Group and the Consumer Credit and Collection Division of PNBE. He obtained his
Bachelor of Science in Industrial Management Engineering degree, Minor in
Mechanical Engineering, from the De La Salle University. From 1995 to 2010, he was
connected with the Union Bank of the Philippines, holding various positions the latest
of which was First Vice President and Head of Retail Risk Management Division
responsible for the management and approval of consumer loan portfolio such as
Housing Loans, Auto Loans and Credit Cards. He was also concurrent Head of Retail
Collections (2008-2009), From 1983 to 1995, he was the Business Unit Manager of
Credit Information Burcau, Inc. (CIBI). He was also a Rating Analyst with the Credit
Rating Division of CIBL

RAFAEL Z. SISON, JR., 58, Filipino, holds a Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration degree, Major in Management, from the Ateneo de Davao University.
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He was appointed as First Scnior Vice President and Head of the Branch Banking
Group in February 2013 when Allied Bank became Philippine National Bank. He has
an extensive expetience in both Branch Banking sales and operations. He started his
career in the Bank of the Philippine Islands in 1978 and went up the corporate ladder
i various banks with stints at Citytrust Banking Corporation (1987-1994), Solid Bank
(1994-2000), United Overseas Bank (2000), Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
(2000-2002), Chinatrust Commercial Bank Corporation (2002-2006), and Philippine
National Bank (2006-2010), Allied Banking Corporation (2010-2011), Planters
Development Bank (2011), and Allied Banking Corporation (2011-2013),

EMELINE C. CENTENO, 55, Filipino, Senior Vice President, is Head of the
Corporate Planning and Research Division. She obtained her Bachelor of Science in
Statistics degree (Dean’s Lister) and completed the coursework in Master of Arts in
Economics (on scholarship) from the University of the Philippines. She joined PNB
in 1983, rose from the ranks and held various positions at the Department of
Economics and Research, Product Development, Monitoring and Implementation
Division and the Corporate Planning Division before assuming her present position as
Head of the merged Corporate Planning and Research Division. Ms. Centeno was
awarded as one of the Ten Outstanding Employees of the Bank in 1987.

DIOSCORO TEODORICO L. LIM, 58, Filipino, Senior Vice President, is Chief
Audit Executive (CAE) of the Bank. A Certified Public Accountant, he holds a
Bachelor of Science in Commerce degree, Major in Accounting, from the University
of San Carlos-Cebu. He started his carcer in 1976 with SGV as a Stafl Auditor, and
after a year was Field in Charge until 1978 before joining Allied Banking Corporation
In 1979 as a Junior Auditor. He rose from the ranks to become an Audit Officer in
1986, and in 2000, was desighated as Head of the Internal Audit Division until his
appointment as CAE of PNB on February 9, 2013. He also served as Compliance
Officer of Allied Savings Bank (seconded officer) from August 2001 to August 2006,
He is a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) Philippines, Association of

Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE)-Philippines and Philippine Institute of Certified
Public Accountants,

MARIA PAZ D. LIM, 53, Filipino, Senior Vice President, is the Corporate
Treasurer. She obtained her Bachelor of Science in Business Administration degree,
Major in Finance and Marketing, from the University of the Philippines and Master in
Business Administration from the Ateneo de Manila University. She joined PNB on
Tune 23, 1981, rose from the ranks and occupied various officer positions at the
Department of Economics & Research, Budget Office and Corporate Disbursing
Office prior to her present position.

MANUEL C. BAHENA, JR., 51, Filipino, First Vice President, is the Chief Legal
Counscl of the Bank. He joined PNB in 2003 and was appointed as Head of
Documentation and Research Division of the Legal Group in 2009. Before Jjoining
PNB, he was the Corporate Secretary and Vice President of the Legal Department of
Multinational Investment Bancorporation. He also formerly served as Corporate
Secretary and Legal Counscl of various corporations, among which are: the Corporatc
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Partnership for Management in Business, Inc., Orioxy Investment Corporation,
Philippine Islands Corporation for Tourism and Development, Cencorp (Trade, Travel
and Tours), Inc., and Central Bancorporation General Merchants, Inc. He obtained his
Bachelor of Sciencc in Business Administration degree from Lyceum of the

Philippines in 1981 and his Bachelor of Laws degree from Arellano University in
1987,

JOSEPHINE E. JOLEJOLE, 52, Filipino, First Vice President, is the Bank’s
Officer-in-Charge of the Trust Banking Group. She obtained her Bachelor of Science
in Business Economics from the University of the Philippines’ School of Economics.
Likewise, she finished her Bachelor of Laws from University of the Philippines’
College of Law. She has been in the banking industry for 26 years in various fields
such as Account Management for bothCorporate Banking and Retail Banking,
Compliance and Risk Management, Marketing, Portfolio Management and Legal for
Trust. Prior to joining the Bank, she was the Trust Officer and Head of Trust Banking
at Union Bank of the Philippines. She is a member of the Board of Trustees of the
Trust Institute Foundation of the Philippines and a lecturer at the One Year Course on

Trust Operations and Management, a BSP-accredited training program on trust
business, since 2006.

CONSTANTINO T. YAP, 50, Filipino, Vice President, is Head of the Information
Technology Group. He was hired by Allied Banking Corporation on Qctober 1, 2007
as Assistant Vice President for the Special Projects Section of the IT Division. Prior to
Joining Allied Bank, he was the Dean of the College of Engineering and College of
Computer Studies and Systems at the University of the East (Manila campus) from
May 2005 to May 2007, and was the Assistant Dean of the College of Computer
Studies at Lyceum of the Philippines from May 2004 to May 2005. He worked as an
IT Consultant for various call centers and B2B firms from August 2002 to May 2004.
He was the Technical Consultant for the horse racing totalizator project at Manila
Jockey Club and as Vice President for Betting Opcrations at the Philippine Racing
Club from 1996 to 2000. From 1994 to 1996, he helped managed their family's
construction business. Whilc living in the US from 1988 to 1994, he was a computer
telephony programmer and systems analyst that provided promotions and marketing
services running on IVRS (interactive voice response systems) for Phoneworks, Inc.,
American Network Exchange Tnc., and Interactive Telephone Inc. He obtained a
degree of Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical from Pratt Instilute, Brooklyn, New
York, USA in 1984 and earned his Master of Science in Electrical Engineering at
Purdue University, West Lafayette, Indiana, USA in 1986.

JANETTE Y. ABAD SANTOS, 44, Filipino, Vice President, is Acting Head of the
Marketing Services Group. She obtained her Bachelor of Science in Management
Engineering degrce from the Ateneo de Manila University. She started her carcer in
1991 and held various positions in product development, marketing, advertising, and
sales at San Miguel Foods, Inc., Lintas Advertising, Shopping Network, Inc., Shangri-
la Mall, among others, Prior to joining PNB, she also had an entrepreneurial business

on exports worldwide as well as nationwide sales and marketing via TV shopping and
text-on-TV.
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MODETTE INES V. CARINO, 42, Filipino, Vice President, is Acting Head of the
Consumer Finance Group. She obtained her Bachelor of Science in Commerce, Major
in Accounting, from the De La Salle University. She started her career as Marketing
Assistant for Consumer Loans in 1994 and has joined several financial institutions
such as Bank of Southeast Asia, International Exchange Bank and Union Bank. She
was connected with Sccurity Bank as Auto Loans Head to establish consumer loans
business of the bank prior to joining PNB. She was hired by the Bank as Product
Manager for Motor Vehicle Loans and eventually appointed as Head of the 14
Regional Consumer Finance Centers.

Significant Employees

While all employees of the Bank are valued for their contribution to the business, no
person who is not an executive officer, is expected to make a significant contribution
to the business,

Family Relationships

Directors Harry C. Tan and Lucio C. Tan are brothers. Directors Lucio K. Tan, Jr.
and Michael G. Tan are sons of Mr. Lucio C. Tan,

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

Neither the Directors nor any of the Executive Officers have, for a period covering the
past five (5) years, reported:

1. any petition for bankruptcy filed by or against a business with which they are
related as a general partner or executive officer;

1i. any criminal conviction by final judgment or being subject to a pending criminal
proceeding, domestic or foreign other than cascs which arose out of the ordinary
course of business in which they may have been impleaded in their official
capacity;

li. being subject to any order, judgment, or decree of a competent court, domestic or
forcign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or limiting
their involvement in any type of business, sccurities, commodities or banking
activities: and

iv. being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil

action), the Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign
Exchange or other organived trading market or self-regulatory organization, to
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have violated a securities or commodities law or regulation, and the Jjudgment has
not been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

Executive Compensation
(1) Geaeral

Annual compensation of cxecutive officers consists of a 16-month guaranteed cash
emolument. Directors, on the other hand, are entitled to a reasonable per diem for
¢ach Board or Board Committee meeting attended, Total per diem given to the Board

of Directors of the Bank for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013 amounted to P3.970
million, P4.275 million and P17.815 million, respectively.

Other than the above-stated, there are no other arrangements concerning compensation

for services rendered by Dircclors or executive officers to the Bank and its
subsidiaries,
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2) Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation
(In Pesos)
Name and
Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Others Total
a b ¢ (a+b+e)
Omur Byron T. Migr
President/Chicf Executive Officer
Four most highly compensated executive
officers othet than the CEO
l. Chua, Anthony /
Executive Viee President
2. Cebrero, Horacio, L1 E.
Executive Vice President
3. Dobles, Christopher C,
Executive Yiee President
4. Hemandez, Jovencio B.
Execulive Vice President
CEOQ and Four {4) Most Highly Actua) 2012 24,864,276 T.090,083 - 31,834,359
Compensated Fxecutive Officens Actaal 2013 30,364,256 7705873 : 18.070.128
Projectad 36,400,000 9,300,000 - 435,700,000
2014
All other oflicers and directorz (as a Actual 2012 794,199,788 271,592,114 - 1,065,791 902
group unnamed)
Actun] 201 3% 1.573,877,191 516,977,906 - 200,853,097
Projecied 1,88%,600,000 620,400,000 - 2,509,000,000
2014

I/Resigned Effective Sgptember 30, 2013
2/ Ingluding duta of former Atlied Banking Corporation

(3} Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-
Control Arrangements

All executive officers are covered by the Bank’s standard employment contract which
guarantees annual compensation on a 16-month schedule of payment. In accordance
with the Bank’s Amended By-Laws, Article VI, Sce. 6.1, all officers with the rank of
Viee President and up hold office and serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.




{(4) Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

No warrants or options on the Bank’s shares of stock have been issued or given to the
Directors or executive officers as a form of compensation for services rendered.
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Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management.

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners (more than 5%
of any class of voting securities as of 31 December, 2013)

Title of
Class

Name & Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship with
Issuer

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record
Owner

Citizenship

No. of Shares
Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Common

Allmark Holdings
Corporation
- Quezon City -
14,754,256 shares

Sharcholder

Owned and
Controlled by

LT Group, Ing,

Filipino

527,628,036

48.61%

Common

Caravan Holdings
Corporation

- Marikina City -

38,389,760 shares

Sharsholder

Filipino

Comimon

Donfar
Management Ltd.
- Makati City -
21,890,077 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino

Common

Dunmore
Development Corp.
(X-496)

- Makati City -
10,779,000 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino

Comrnon

Fast Return
Enterprises, Lid.
- Makati City -
12,926,481 shares

Shareholder

Filipino
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Title of
Class

Name & Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship with
Issmer

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record
Owner

Citizenship

No. of Shares
Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Common

Fragile Touch
Investment Ltd.
- Makati City -

16,157,859 shares

Shareholder

Owned and
Controlled by

LT Group, Inc.

Filipino

Common

Ivory Holdings, Inc.
- Makati City -
14,780,714 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Kenrock Holdings
Corporation
- Quezon City -
18,522 961 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Key Landmark
Investments, Lid.
- British Virgin
Islands -
94,883,360 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Cotninon

Lecadway
Holdings, Inc.
= Quczon City -
46,495 820 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Mavelstone
International Ltd.
- Makati City -
21,055,186 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino
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Title of
Class

Name & Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship with
Issuer

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record
Owner

Citizenship

No. of Shares
Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Common

Merit Holdings and
Equities Corporation
- Quezon City -
12,377,119 shares

Sharcholder

Owned and
Controlled by

LT Group, Inc.

Filipino

Commeon

Multiple Star
Holdings
Corporation
- Quezon City -
21,925,853 shares

Shareholder

Filipina

Comimon

Pioncer Holdings
Equities, Inc,
- Pasig City -
24,386,295 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Solar Holdings
Corporation
- Pasig City -
58,389,760 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

True Success
Profits, Ltd,
- Britigh Virgin
Islands -
58,389,760 sharcy

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Uttermost
Success, Lid.
- Makati City -
21,523,715 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino
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Title of | Name & Address of Name of Citizenship| No. of Shares Percentage of
Clasy Record Owner and Beneficial Held Ownership
Relationship with Owner and
Issuer Relationship
with Record
Owner
Common All Seasons Realty | Therecordsin | Filipino 198,216,995 18.25%
Corporation the possession of
- Makati City - the Bank show
7,123,387 shares  [that the beneficiall
ownership of
Shareholder these companies
individuals
belongs to the
Common Domingo T. Chua | shareholders of | Filipino
- Quezon City - record of said
210,220 shares companies or to
the individual
Shareholder himself, as the
case may be.'
The Bank has
Common Dreyfuss Mutual not been Filipino
Investments, Inc, adviged
- Pasay City - otherwisc,
7,833,794 shares
Shareholdcr
Common Dynaworld Filipino
Holdings, Inc.
- Pasig City -
8,107,051 shares
Shareholder
Common Fairlink Holdingz Filipino
Corporation
- Makati City -
17,945,960 shares
Sharcholder

Tha companieg issue proxias/special powers of afforney (8FAz) to Mr. Lucio C. Tan as their authorized proxy/attornay-in-

fact to vole thelr shares during stockholders’ mmeelings.  Said proxies/special powers of afiornoy sre renewed by the foregoing
shareholders on B yeer-to-year basgis.
Other than the proxles/SPAs mentioned above, the Bank is nof aware of gny ofher relalionship belween Mr. Ten and the above-
stated companies, Mr, Domingo T, Chua is a brother-in-faw of Mr. Lucio C. Tan.
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Title of
Class

Name & Address of
Record Owner and

Relationship with
Issuer

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record

Owner

Citizenship

No. of Shares

Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Common

Fil-Care
Holdings, Inc.

- Quezon City -
18,119,076 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Commaon

Integrion
Investments, Inc.
- Pasay City -
7,833,794 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino

Communon

Kentron Holdings
and Equities Corp.

- Pasig City -
17,343,270 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Kentwood
Development.
Corporation
- Pagig City -
12,271,396 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Cominon

L.a Vida
Development
Corporation

- Quezon City -
3,587,300 sharcs

Shareholder

Filipino
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Title of
Class

Name & Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship with

Issuer

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record
Owner

Citizenship

No, of Sharcs
Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Common

LaVida
Development
Corporation
ASCHIAZI
- Quezon City -
10,371,574 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino

Common

Local Trade and
Development
Corporation
- Makati City -
5,836,153 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Luys Securities
Co., Inc.
- Makati City -
17,898 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino

Cominon

Mandarin Securities
Corporation
- Makati City -
13,281 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino

Common

Opulent
Land-Owners, Inc.
= Quezon City -
4,105,313 shares
Sharcholder

Filipino
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Title of
Class

Name & Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship with
Issuer

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record
Owner

Citizenship

No. of Shares
Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Common

Power Realty
Development
Corporation
= Quezon City -
589,268 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Profound
Holdings, Inc.
- Mandaluyong City -
12,987,043 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Purple Crystal
Holdings, Ing,
- Mandaluyong City
- 17,374,238 shares

Sharcholder

Filipino

Common

Sateway Holdings &
Equities, Inc,
- Quezon City -
8,577,826 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Socicty Holdings
Corporation
- Quezon City -
12,315,399 shares

Shareholder

Filipino
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Title of
Class

Name & Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship with
Issuer

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record
Owner

Citizenship

No. of Shares
Held

Percentage of
Ownership

Common

Total Holdings
Corporation
- Pasig City -
11,387,186 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Common

Witter Webber
& Schwab
Investment, Inc,
- Pasay City -
7,833,795 shares

Shareholder

Filipino

Cotmmon

Zebra Holdings, Ine.
- Marikina City -
6,432,773 shares

Shareholder

Filipino
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(2) Security Ownership of Management (Individual Directors and Executive

Officers as of December 31, 2013)

Amount and
Title of Name of Beneficial Nature of Percentage of
Class Owner Beneficial Citizenship Ownership
Ownership
Common | Florencia G, Tarriela 2 shares Filipino 0.0000001841
Shares } Chairman B30.00
Independent Director (R)
Felix Enrico R, Alfiler 100 shares Filipino 0.0000092063
Vice Chairman &84,000.00
Independent Direcior (R)
Ormar Byron T. Mier 120,200 shares Filipino 0. 0110660163
President and Chief B4,808,000.00
Executive Officer (R)
Florido P. Casuela 100 shares Filiping 0.0000092063
Director 84 .000.00
(R)
Leonilo G. Coronel 1 share Filipino 0.0000000921
Director P40.00
(R)
Reynaldo A. Maclang 135 shares Filipino (.0000124286
Director $£5,400.00
(R)
Estelito P, Mendoza 1,000 shares Filipino 0.0000920634
Director R140,000.00
(R)
Christopher I. Nelson 100 shares British 0.0000092063
Director £4,000.00
(R)
Washington Z. 8yCip 34,010 shares American 0.0031310750
Director #1,360,400.00
(R)
Harry C. Tan 230 shares Filipino 0.0000211746
Director I'9,200.00
(R}
Lucio C. Tan 12,907,060 shares Filipino 1.1882673537
Director P516,282,400.00
(R)
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Amount and
Title of Name of Beneficial Nature of Percentage of
Class Owner Beneficial Citizenship Ownership
Ownership
Common | Lucio K. Tan, Jr, 2,000 shares Filipino 0.0001841267
Shares | Director BR0,000.00
(R)
Michael G. Tan 15,350 shares Filipino 0.0014131726
Director £614,000.00
R}
Deogracias N. Vistan 100 shares Filipino 0.0000092063
Independent Director £4,000.00
(R)
Sub-total 13,080,388 shares 1.2042245123
#523,215,520.00
(R)
All Directors & Executive 13,136,672 shares 1.20940620661
Officers as a Group 8525.466,880.00
3]

(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

There are no voting trust holders of 5% or more of PNB shares.

(4) Changes in Control

On Febrary 9, 2013, the Bank concluded its planned merger with Allied Banking
Corporation (ABC) as approved and confirmed by the Board of Directors of the Bank

and of ABC on Janvary 22 and January 23, 2013, respectively. The original Plan of
Merger was approved by the affirmative vote of sharcholders representing at least
two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of ABC and the Bank, respectively, on June
24, 2008. The respective sharcholders of the Bank and ABC, representing at least two-
thirds of the outstanding capital stock of both banks, approved the amended terms of
the Plan of Merger of both banks on March 6, 2012.

On March 26, 2012, the Bank submitted to the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and
Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC) applications for consent to the
merger, On April 12, 2012, the application for the merger was filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC). On July 25, 2012, the Bank received notice that
the PDIC had given its consent to the merger, Likewise, on August 2, 2012, the
Monetary Board of the BSP issued a resolution giving its consent to the merger,
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Finally, on January 17, 2013, the SEC granted its approval to the merger. In addition,
with respect to ABC’s overseas subsidiaries, the Bank has also filed notices in relation
to the merger with various relevant foreign regulatory agencies and, as of January 17,
2013, had received all necessary approvals to effectuate the merger.

As of December 31, 2013, the merged Bank had a combined distribution network of
656 branches and offices, and 854 ATMs nationwide. Based on the December 31,
2013 figures, the merged Bank was the fourth largest private domestic bank in the
Philippines in terms of local branches and the fourth largest in terms of consolidated
total assets (B606.1 billion), nct loans and receivables (B258.2 billion) and deposits
(£454.0 billion). In addition, it has the widest international footprint among Philippine
banks spanning Asia, Europe, the Middle East and North America.

The Bank has recently successfully completed its Stock Rights Offering (Offer) of
162,931,262 common shares (Rights Shares) with a par value of # 40,00 per sharc at a
price of B 71.00 each. The Rights Shares were offered to all eligible sharcholders of
the Bank at the proportion of fifteen (15) Rights Sharcs for every one hundred (100)
common shares held as of the record date of January 16, 2014, The offer period was
from January 27, 2014 to February 3, 2014,

A total of 33,218,348 Rights Shares were sourced from the existing authorized but
unissued capital stock and, as such, were already issued and listed with the Philippine
Stock Exchange. This is an exempt transaction under Section 10.1 of the Sccurities
Regulation Code as confirmed by the SEC.

The remaining 129,712,914 Rights Shares will be sourced from an increase in
authorized capital stock of the Bank, which the Bank will apply for with the SEC after
receipt of the endorsement of the BSP. The listing of the said shares will be
accordingly announced as soon as the SEC approves the increase in the Bank’s
authorized capital stock.

The Otfer was oversubscribed and raised gross procecds of B 11.6 billion. The Offer
strengthens the Bank’s capital position under the Basel 11l standards, which took effect
on Janwary 1, 2014,

(d) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has loans and other transactions with its
subsidiaries and affiliates, and with certain Directors, Officers, Stockholders and
Related Interests (DOSRI). Under the Bank’s policy, these loans and other
transactions are made substantially on the samc terms as with other individuals and
businesses of comparable risks. Of the amount of direct credit accommodations to
each of the Bank’s DOSRI, 70.00% must be secured and should not exceed the
amount of their respective deposits and book value of their respective investments in
the Bank. In the aggregate, DOSRI loans generally should not exceed the Bank’s
equity or 15.00% of the Bank’s total loan portfolio, whichever is lower. As of
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December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Bank was in
compliance with such regulations,
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Information related to transactions with related parties and with certain directors,
officers, stockholders and related interests (DOSRI) is shown under Note 32 of the
Audited Financial Statements of the Bank and subsidiaries, as replicated hereunder:

1. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Parent Company has loans and other
transactions with its subsidiaries and affiliates, and with certain Directors, Officers,
Stockholders and Related Interests (DOSRI), Under the Parent Company’s policy,
these loans and other transactions are made substantially on the same terms as with
other individuals and businesses of comparable risks. The amount of direct credit
accommodations to each of the Parent Company’s DOSRI, 70.00% of which must
be secured, should not exceed the amount of their respective deposits and book
value of their respective investments in the Parent Company.

Ii the aggrepate, DOSRI loans generally should not exceed the Parent Company’s
equity or 15.00% of the Parent Company’s total loan portfolio, whichever is lower,
As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Parcnt Company was in
compliance with such regulations.

The information relating to the DOSRI loans of the Group follows:

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Total Outstanding DOSRI Accounts 3,557,857 2,650,526
Percent of DOSRI accounts granted prior to

effectivity of BSP Circular No. 423 to iotal

loans 1.40% 2.03%
Percent of DOSRI accounts granted after effectivity

of BSP Circular No. 423 to total lpans 1.40% 2.03%
Percent of DOSRI accounts to total loans 1.40% 2.03%
Percent of unsecured DOSRI accounts to total

DOSRI accounts 1.52% 3.29%
Parcent of past due DOSRI aceounts to total DOSRI

accounts (L00%% 0.00%
Percent of nonaceruing DOSRI accounts to total

DOSRI accounts 0.00% 0.00%

In accordance with existing BSP regulations, the reported DOSRI performing
loans exclude loans extended to certain borrowers before these borrowers became
DOSRI,

On January 31, 2007, BSP Circular No. 560 was issued providing the rules and
regulations that govern loans, other credit accomnmodations and guarantees granted
to subsidiaries and affiliates of banks and quasi-banks. Under the said Circular,
total outstanding exposurcs to cach of the bank’s subsidiaries and affiliates shall
not exceed 10.00% of a bank’s net worth, the unsecured portion of which shall not
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exceed 5.00% of such net worth. Further, the total outstanding exposures to
subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed 20.00% of the net worth of the lending
bank. BSP Circular No. 560 is effective on February 15, 2007.

Details on significant related party transactions of the Group follow (transactions
with subsidiaries have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements).
Transactions reported under subsidiaries represent companies where the Parent
Company has control. Transactions reported under other related parties represent

companies which are under common control.

As of Deecmber 31, 2013

Amount/  Outstandin
Category Volumg Balgnece Nature, Terms and Conditions
Subsidiaries
Receivables from customers 600,000 Revalving credit lines with fixed annual interest rte
0f 4.25% and maturity torms of less than 90 days
Unsecured, P600.0 million with no impainment
Accounts receivable 56,236  Advances to finance deficit in pension linbility,
remittance cover and additional working capital
Non-interest bearing; unsecured: payable on demand
Deposit liabilities 4.673.993  With annual rates eanging from 0.1% (o 3.0% and
maturity terms ranging from 30 duys to one (1) yeur
Bills payuble 2,340,53%  Foreign currency-denominated bills payable wich
fixed annual intersst rate of 1.03% and maturity term
of 180 duys; unsecured; No colluteral
Accrued intorest payable 11,421 Interest on deposil liabilities and bills payable
Duc to other hanks Clearing uccounts for funding and settlement of
178,614 reimitlances
Due ftom other banks 435,055 With annual fixed interest rates ranging from 0.01%
10 4.30% including time with maturities of up to
90 days
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Intgrest income 21,695 Interest income on receivable from customens
Interest expense 32,715 Interest expense on deposit liabilitics and bills
payable
Other income 19,485 Rental income frorn three-year leaseagreement, with
annual escalation rate of 10%
Onher expense 1,188 Share in wiilities expense
Securitics transactions:
Purchasies 1,676,109 Outright purchase of securnitics
Halcs 2,664,615 Outright sale of securities
Trading gains 169,021 Guin from sale of invesiment securities
Loun relcases 4,038,000 Loan drawdowns
Loan colleclions 4,002,000 Settlemnent of loans and interest
Met deposits 4,123,696 Met deposits for the period
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Category

As of December 31, 2013

Amount/ Outstanding
Volume Balance Nature, Terms and Conditons

Affiliates
Receivable from customers*

Sales contract receivables

Accrued interesl receivables

4,627,954 USD Term Loan with repricing interesi rates ranging
trom 3.75% w0 4.79% and maturity from three (3) to
scven (7) years; Secured — 3.7 billion and unsecured —
1.3 billion; without impairment
Collaterals include bank deposits hold-out,
government securitics, real estates and chatiel
martgages

105,750 Arising from sale of investment property; non-
interest bearing loan payable within one year,with no
impuirment.

10,193 Accrued interest of regeivables from customers

{Forward)
As of December 31, 2013
Amount/  Outstanding
Category Volume Baiance Naturg, Terms and Conditions

lills payahle
Deposit liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Dug from other banks

40,034 Foreign currency
4,926,421 With annual interest rales ranging from (,38% to
1.73% and maturity terms ranging from 30 days
Loy ome (1) year
1,417 Interest on deposit liabililies und bills payable

148,864 With annual fixed intetest rates runging from
0.01% to 4.50% including time with maturities
of up 1o 90 days and savings with interesl rate of
13.00%

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Inigrest income 186,041 Interest ingome on receivable from cusiomers
Interest expense 27,153 Interest expense on deposit liabilitics
Rental income 25,380 Rental income from 10-year agreement with annual
escilution rate of 5% starting on the sixth ycar of the
lease term
Rental cxpense 7111 Monthly rent payments to related parties with terms
ranging fom 24 10 240 months
Other ingome 33104 Gain from sale of investment property
Other expense 2,784 Expense on prolessional fecs on service agreement
Securilies transactions:
Purchases 11,959 458 Outright purchase of scourities
Sales 1,748,599 Chuinight zalc of securities
Tradinyg gains 77,800 Gain from sale of mvestment sccurities
Loun reteascs 3,425,380 Loan drawdowns
Loan collections 7,273,098 Scttlement of loans and interest
Nel deposits 1,653,446 Nel Deposits for the peariod
K¢y Management
Personnel
Loat to ofTigers 18,554 Housing loans to senior officers;

Loan rcleases
Loan collections

4,880 Loan drawdowns
4,004 Scttlement of loans and injerest

Other Related Parties
Receivabls from customers

Net lpan collections

372,437 Loans with inlerest ratcs ranging from 0.5% to
16.5% und maturity terms ranging from one (1)
month to 25 years; Collateral includes bunk deposit
+  hold-out, real estate und chattcl mortgages
34,153 Met loan collections for the perod

* Amount includes P2.51hillicn receivable lrom customers booked in PNB-Makali (formerly, ABC). Loan amount

before any loan releases and callections during the year amounts to P5,78 billion,
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As of December 31, 2012

Amount/  Outstanding

Category Volume Balance Mature, Terns and Conditions
Subsidiaries
Receivables from 564,000  Revolving credit lines with fixed annual interest
customers rate of 4,25% and maturity terms of less than 31
days
Unsecured - 5640 miilion with no impairment
Accounls receivable 106,458 Advances to finance deficit in pension liability,

remittance cover and additional working capital
MNon-interest bearing, unsecured, payable on

demand
Accrued interest receivable 1,026  Interest on reccivables from customers
Deprosit ligbilitics 552,297  With annual rates ranging from 0.10% to 3.00%
and malunty terms ranging from 30 days to one (1)
year
Rills payable 863,579  Foreign currency-denominated bills payable with

fixext annual interest rate of 1.03% and maturity
term of 180 days; wnsccured

Acerued inlerest payable 3473 Interest on deposit liabilities and bills payable
Dug 10 banks 205480 Clearing accounts for funding and sertlement of
remitlances
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Year Ended December 31, 2012

Amount/  OQutstanding
Category Volume Balunce Nature, Terms and Conditions
Intersst income 28,271 Interest income on receivable from customers
Interest expense 12,772 Interest expense on deposit liabilities and bills
payable
Other income 7.615 Rental income with lease term of three (3) years and
annual cscalation rate of 10.00%
Other cxpense 2,004 Share in utilities expense
Loan relenses 6,932,000 Loan drawdawns
Loan collections 6,368,000 Settlement of loans and interest
Nel withdrawals 394,082 Nel withdrawals for the period
Az of December 31, 2012
Amount/  Qutstanding
Cutegory Voluine Balance Mature, Terms and Conditions
Other Related Parties
Receivable froim customers 2,695,221 Loans with interest rates ranging from 0,50% to
16.50% and maturity terms ranging from one (1)
month o 25 years.
Secured - 2.8 billion and unsccured - 0.1 billion;
with no impainment
Collateral includes bank deposit hold-out, real cstate
und chattel morigages
Sales Contracl Receivubles 105,750  Arising from sale of investment property
Title will be mansferred upon full payment
Mon-interest bearing loan payable within one year
Secured - 103,8 million; with no impairment
Collateral pertains to investment properly sold
Accrued iterest 1,647
receivables Interest on receivables from customers
Bills payable 554,175 Foreign currency-denominated bills payable with
fixed annual interest rate of 1.77% and maturity
term of 181 days, no collateral
Deposil liakilities 1,272,976 With annual mles ranging from 0.33% to 1,73% and
maturity terms ranging from 30 days Lo one (1) year
Due from other banks 196,977  Includes savings deposits with interest rate of 0,13%
Investrient secunties 270,212 52,443,860 shares of stock clasgificd as AFS
investments with allowance for impairment loss of
270.0 million,
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Amount/  Qutslanding
Category Volume Balance Nature, Terms and Conditions
Interest incomne 154,464 Interest income on receivable from customers
Profit from asset sold 39,005 Gain from sale of investment property
Interest expense 10,626 Interest expense on deposil liabilities
Orher income 16,830 Rental income with lease term of 10 vears from
Movember 1, 2007 to Qctober 31, 2017 and annual
escalation rate of 5.00% starting sixth vear of the
lease term
Securities transachions:
Purchases 16,431,445 Outright purchise o secunties
Hales 11,884,060 QOutright sale of securities
Trading guins 19,017 Gain from sale of investmenl securities
Loan releases 3,201,345 Loan drawdowns
Loan collections 5,184,248 Settlement of loana and interest
Met deposits 619,016 MNet deposits for the period
Key Management
Fersonnel
Loan to officers 17,683 Housing loans to seniar officers; Securcd and
wnimpaired
Loan releases 4,116 Loan drawdowns
Loan collections 3,606 Settlement of loans and intercst
Other Related Partles
Receivable from cusiomens 406,590  Loans with interest rates ranging from 0.5% to

16.5% and maturity lerms ranging fiotn one (1)
month to 23 years; Collateral includes bank deposit
hold-out, real estate and chattel mortgages
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Net loan ¢ tions 1,895 Net loag collections for the period

The related party transactions shall be settled in cash. There are no provisions for
credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 in relation to
amounts from related parties.

The compensation of the key manégement personnel follows:

Year Ended
December 2013 December
2012
Short-term employee benefits 366,873 135,347
Post-employment benefits 47,381 19,642
414,254 154,989

The Parent Company and EPPI signed two JVA for the development of two
properties under ‘Real estate under joint venture (JV) agreement’ by the Parent
Company with book values of 1.2 billion. These two projects are among the
Parent Company’s strategies in reducing its non-performing assets,

The Parent Company contributed the aforementioned properties into the TV as
approved by BSP. EPPI, on the other hand, contributed its resources and technical
cxpertise for the completion of the said JV. The Parent Company is prohibited to
contribute funds for the development of the JV. Hence, there are no receivables
from each party with respect to the JV. Income from the sale of the properties
under the JV will be shared by the Parent Company and EPP! in accordance with

the terms of the JVA. This JVA does not fall as joint venture arrangement under
PFRS 11.

Transactions with Retirement Plans
Management of the retirement funds of the Group is handled by the Parent
Company’s Trust Banking Group (TBG). The fair valucs and carrying values of

the funds amounted to 1.9 billion and 1.3 billion, respectively, as of December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012,

Relevant information on Funds’ assets/liabilities as of December 31, 2013 and

December 31, 2012 and income/expense for the year ended December 31, 2013
and December 31, 2012 are as follows:

December 31, December
2013 31,2012

Investment securities:
Held for trading 675,665 712,275
Available-for-sale 613,517 212,437
Held-to-manurity - 68,000
Deposits with other banks 364,626 263,830
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Deposits with PNB 23,126 50,792
- Loans and other receivables 316,088 37,807
Total Fund Assets 1,993,022 1,345,741
Trust Fees Payable - 754
Accrued ¢xpense 655 -
Due to BIR, 560 -
Total Fund Liabilities 1,215 754
Fund Income December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Interest income 64,555 20,738
Trading gain 1,193 -
Dividend income 1,698 -
Unrealized gains on HFT (PNB) -37,211 271,049
(iains on sale of investment securities - 72
30,235 291,859

Fund Expense
Trust fees 3,217 2442
Taxes 1,418 -
Other expenses 3.491 270
: 8,126 2712

As of Deccmber 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the retirement fund of the
Group inchade 7,833,795 shares of PNB classified under HFT. No limitations and
restrictions are provided and voting rights over these sharcs are exercised by a
trust officer or any of its designated alternate officer of TBG.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, AFS and HTM investments
include government and privale debt securities and various funds. Deposits with
other banks pertain to Special Deposit Accounts (SDA) placement with BSP,
Loans and other receivables include accrued interest amounting (o P0.03 million
and P0.04 million as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and income
include interest on deposit with PNB amounting to P1.6 million and P1.0 million
for the year ended December, 2013 and 2012, respectively, for the Group.
Investments are approved by an authorized fund manager or officer of TBG

Other fund managed by TBG

The TBG manages the sinking fund established by PSC to secure ils borrowings
with the Parent Company. As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the
sinking fund amounted to P5.3 billion and P52 billion, respectively (see Note 9).
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The information relating to the DOSRI loans of the Group pertaining to years
2011-2013 are as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
Drecember 31 December 31, Décemnber 31, December 31 December 31, Docomber 31,
mil 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Total Outstanding DOSRI Accounls 3,557 857 2,650,524 4,916,441 3,557,857 2,650,526 4,916,441
Percent of DOSRT accounts

granted prior to effectivity
of BSP Circutar Mo, 423

to total Ioans 1.40% 2.03% 4.34% 1,45% 2.04% 4.36%
Percent of DOSRKI accounts

granted after elfectivity of
BSP Circular No. 423 to

total loans 1.40% 2.03% 4.34% 1.45% 2.04% 4.36%
Percent of DOSRI uccounts to

total lpans 1.40% 2.03% 4,34% 1.45% 2.04% 4.36%
Pereenit of unsecured DOSRI

accounts 1o total DOSRI

accounts 1.52% 329% 14.60% L52% 329% 14.60%
Percent of past due DOSRI

accounts (o tatal DOSRI

accounts GE0% 0.00% 0L00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of non-aceruing DOSEL
accoutits 1o total DOSRI

BOCOUTIER 0.00% 0.00% (.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

In accordance with existing BSP regulations, the reported DOSRI petforming

loans exclude loans extended to certain borrowers before these borrowers became
DOSRI.

Details on significant related party transactions of the Group and the Parent
Company follow (transactions with subsidiaries have been eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements). Transactions reported under subsidiaries
represent companies where the Parent Company has control. Transactions reported
under other related parties represent companies which are under common control,

As of December 31, 2013
Amount/  Qutstandin
Category Volume Balgnce Nature, Terms and Conditions
Subsidiaries
Receivables from customets 600,000  Revolving credit lines with fixed annual interest rate

of 4.25% and malurily terme of less than 90 days
Unsequred, P60 million with no impairment
Accounts receivable 56,236  Advances to finance deficit in pension liability,
temnillance cover and additional working capital
Non-interest bearing; unsecured; puyable on demand

Deposit Labilities 4,675,993 With annual rates ranging from (,1% to 3.0% and
matutity lerms runging from 30 days to one (1) year
Billz payable 1,340,539  Foreign currency-denominated bills payahle with

fixcd annual interest rate of 1.03% and maturity term
of 180 days; unsecured; No collateral

Accrucd interest payable 11,421 Intersst on deposit Habilities and bills payable
Due to othet banks Clearing accounts for funding and scttlement of
178,614  remittances
Due from other banks 435,055  With annual fixed interest rales ranging from (L01%
0 4,50% including time with mamrnitics of up to
90 days

Year Ended December 31, 2013

[nterest income 21,695 [nilerest income on receivable from customers
[nterest expense 32,715 Interest expense on deposit liabilities and bills
payable
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Other income 19,485 Rental income from three-year leaseagreement, with
annual escalation rate ol 10%
Other expense 2,188 Shate in utilitics cxpense
Securitics rAnsactions:
Purchases 2,676,109 COutright purchase of securities
Sales 2,664,615 Quitright sale of sccurities
Trading gains 169,021 Cin from sale of investment securities
Loan releases 4,038,000 Loan drawdowns
Loan collcctions 4,002,000 Settlement of loans and interest
Net deposits 4,123,696 Met deposits for the period
As of Decemher 31, 2012
Amount/ Outstanding
Category Volume Balance Nature, Terms and Conditions
Affiliates
Receivable from customers* 4,627,954 USD Term Loan with repricing interest rates ranging
from 3,75% to 4.79% and maturity from three (3) to
seven {7) years;Sceured — 3.7 billion and unsecured —
1.3 billion; without impairtnent
Collaterals inglude bank deposits hold-out,
government securities, real estates and chatiel
mortgapes
Sales contract receivables 105,750 Arising [rom sale of investment property; non-
intercst bearing loan payable within une year,with no
impairinent
Accrued interest receivables 10,193 Accrued interest of reeeivables from customers

{Forward)
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Ay of December 31, 2013

Amount/ Outstanding
Category Yolume Balance Nature, Terms and Conditions
1ills payable 40,034 Foreign cuttency
Deposit liabilities 4,926,423 With annual intcrest rates ranging from 0.38% to
1.73% and maturity terms ranging from 30 days
to onc (1) year
Accrued interest payable 1,417 Interest on deposit liabilities and bills payable
Due from other banks 148,864 With annual fixed interest rates ranging from
0.0i% 10 4.50% including time with maturities
of up to 90 days and savings with interest mte of
13.00%
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Interest income 186,041 Interest income on receivable from customets
Interest expense 27,153 Tnterest expense on deposil habilities
Rental income 15,380 Rental income from 10-year agreement with annual
escalation mte of 3% starting on the sixth year of the
lease term
Rental expense 7,111 Monthly rent payments to related pacties with lerms
ranging from 24 to 240 months
Other ingome 33104 Gain from sale of invesimenl property
Orther expense 2,784 Expense on professional fees on service agreement
Secutities ransactions:
Purchases 11,959,458 Oulrighl purchase of securities
Sales 1,748,599 Outright sale of scouritics
Trading pains 77,800 Gain from sale of investment securities
Loan relcases 3,425,380 Loan drawdowns
Loan collections 7,273,098 Settlement of loanz and interest
Nel deposits 3,653,446 Nat Deposits for the period
Key Management
Persannel
Loan to officers 18,554 Housing loans to senior officems;
Loan releases 4,880 Loan drawdowns
Loan collections 4,19 Settlement of loans and interest
Other Related Parties
Receivable from customers 372,437 Loans with intcrost rates ranging from 0.5% 1o
16.5% and malurily terms ranging from one (1}
month to 23 years; Collatcral includcs bank deposit
hold-out, real estate and chatiel morigages
Net_loan collections 34,153 [4at loan_collections for the period

*Amount includes P2 51 billion receivable from customers booked in PNB-Makati {formerly, ABC). Loan amount

befiore any loan celeazes and collections during (he year amounis to P5.78 billian,

December 31, 2012
Amount/ Outsianding
Category Volume Balance Nature, Terms and Conditions
Subsidiaries
Receivables from 564,000 Rcvolving credit lines with fixed annual interest rate
customers of 4,25% and matrity ierms of lcss than 31 days
Unsecured - 564.0 million with no impairment
No colluternl
Accounts receivahle 106,458  Advances to finance deficit in pension Liability,
remitlance cover and additional working capital
Mon-interest bearing, unsecured, pavable on demand
Accrued interest receivable 1,026  Intcrest on receivables rom cusiomers
Deposit habilities 552,297  With annual ratcs ranging from 0.1% to 3.0% and
maturity terms ranging from 30 days to one (1) year
Bills Payuble 863,579 Foreign curtency-denominated bills payable with
fixed annual interest rate of 1.03% and matunty term
ol 180 days; unsecured
Mo collateral
Accrued interest pavable 3,473 Interest on deposit liabilities and bills payable
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Duc to Banks 205480  Clearing accounts for funding and setilement of
remittances
Interest income: 28,271 Interest income on receivable from gustomers
Interest expense 12,772 Interest expense on deposit labilities and bills
payable
Oiher income 7.615 Rental income with lease term of three (3) years and
annual escalation ratc of 10%
Other expense 2,004 Share in utilities expense
Loan releases 6,932,000 Loan drawdowns
Loan collections 6,968,000 Settlement of loans and interest
Met withdrawals 394,082 Met withdrawals for the period
Other Related Partics
Receivable from customers 2,695,221 Loans wilh interest rates ranging from 0.5% to
16.5% and maturity tetms ranging from onc (1)
month 10 25 years,
Secured - 2.8 billion and unsecured - 0,07 billion;
with no impairment
Collateral includes bank deposit hold-out, real cstate
and chattel morigages
Sales Comract Roceivables 195,750 From sale of investment property
Title will be transferred upon [ull payment
Non-interest bearing loan payable within one year
Secured - 1054 million; with to impairment
Collateral pertaing 1 investment property sold
Acerued interest 1,647
receivables Interest on teceivables from customers
Bills payable 834,175 Foreign currency-denominated bills payable with
fixed annual interest rate of 1,77% and maturity term
of 181 days, no collateral
Deposit liabilities 1,272,976 Wilh annual rates ranging from 0.38% 10 1.73% and
maturity terms ranging froimn 30 days 1o one (1) year
Due from other banks 196,977  Includes savings deposits with interest rate of 0.13%
Investment sceuritics 270,212 52,443,860 shares of stock classificd as AFS
investments with allowance for impairment loss of
270.0 million,
Intgrest income 154,464 Interest ingome on reecivable from customers
Profit from asset sold 30,005 Gain from sale of investmenl property
(Forward)
December 31, 2012
Amount! Quistanding
Category Volume Balance Nature, Terms and Conditions
Interest cxpensc 10,626 Tnterest expense on deposit liabilities
Other income 16,830 Rental income with lease term of 10 years from
November 1, 2007 to October 31, 2017 and annual
exsealation rate of 5% starting sixth year of the lcase
term
Seeuritics ransactions:
Purchases 16,431,445 Outright purchase of securilies
Sales 11,884,060 Oulright sale of seeuritics
Trading pains 19,017 Gain from sale of investment securities
Loan releases 3,201,345 Loan drawdowns
Loan collectiony 5,184,248 Settlement of loans and interest
Met deposits #1916 Met depogity lor the period
Key Management
Personnel
Loan Lo ofhcers 17,683 Housing loans to senior oflicers: Secured and
unimpaired
Loan releages 4116 Lowm drawdowns
Loan collections . 3.606 Settlement of loans and interest
Other Related Parties
Reccivable from customers 406,590 Loans with interesl rales ranging from 0,5% to
16.5% and malurity terms runging from one {1}
month to 25 vears; Collateral includes bank deposit
hold-out, real estate and chattel mortgages
[gt loan collections 1,895 Met loan collections for the period
December 31, 2011
Category Amount/  Outstanding Mauture, Terms and Conditions
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Volume Balance

Subsidiaries

Due froin banks 223,548  Clearing accounts for funding and scttlement of
remiliunges

Receivables from 600,000  Revolving credit lines with fixed smnual interest

CUSIOMCTS rates ranging from 4,90% to 5.15% and maturity
terms of less than 31 days
Utsecured - 600.0 million with no impairment
Collateral includes bank deposit hold-out, real
estate and chattel morigages

Accounis receivable 28,364  Advances for working capital
Non-interesl bearing, unsecured, payable on
demand

Accrued interest receivable 1,255 Interest on receivables from cuslomers

Deposit liabilities 946,379 With gnnyal ratcs ranging from 0.34% to 1.73% and
maturity terms ranging from 30 days 1o ome (1) year

Accounts payable 235  Loan repayments received on behalf of subsidiary
clients

Accrued interest payable 537 Interest on deposil liahilities

Due to Bunks 250,360  Clearing accounts for funding and settlement of
remittances

Interest income 17,860 Interest income on receivabls from customers

Interest expense 18,576 Interest expense on deposit liabilities and bills
payable

Other income 7228 Rentul ingome with lease term of three (3) vears and
annual escalation rate of 10%

Other expense 2,004 Share in utilities expensec

Other Related Parties

Reccivable from customers 4,678,124 Loans with interest rates ranging from 1.0% io
15.0% and maturity wrms mnging from six (6)
months to 25 years
Secured - 4.1 billion and unsecured - 0,7 hillion;
with no impairment
Collateral includes bank deposit hold-out, real
cstatc and chattel mortgages and collateral
participation certificates

Accrued interest 28,958

recgivables Intcrest on receivables from customers

Deposit liabilities 653,960 With annual rates ranging from 0.5% Lo 1.44% and
maturity terms ranging from 30 days to one (1) year

Intgrest income 118,917 Interest income on receivable from customers

Interest expense 5,356 Interesl expense on deposits and bills payable

Other expense 4,774 Marketing expense - Joint Venlure

{Forward)
December 31, 2011
Amount!  Cntstanding

Catepory Velume Balance Mature, Terms and Conditions

Other income 16,830 Rental income with lease term of 10 years from
Movember 1, 2007 to October 31, 2017 and snnual
escalation rates of 5% sturting sixth year of the lcasc
term.

Due from other banks 163,594  Includes savings deposit with interest rate of 0.13%

Investment securities 270,212 52 443 860 shares of stock classified as AFS
Investments with allowance for impaitment loss of
270.0 million.

Securilies transactions;

Purchascs 12,718,836 Outright purchase of securities

Sales 11,049,302 Ouiright sale of securities

Trading loss (125,414) Lowss from sale of investment sceuritics

Loan rclcases 3,222,193 [.oun drawdowns

Loan collections 545419 Scttiement of loans and inferest

Key Management

Personnel

Loan 1o officers 17,173 Housing loans to senior officers; Secured and
unimpaired

Other Related Parties

Receivable from customers 40R 485 Loans with interest mtes ranging from 0.5% to

16.5% and maturity terms ranging from one (1)
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month 1o 23 years; Collateral includes bank deposit

hold-out, real estate and chattel mortgages

The related party transactions shall be settled in cash. There are no provisions for
credit losses in 2013, 2012 and 2011.

The compensation of the key management personnel follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Short-term employee benefits 366,873 135,347 152,623 316,922 113,187 88,996
Post-employment benefits 47,381 19,642 14,653 47,3%1 19,138 12,109
414,254 154,989 167,306 364,303 137,325 101,105

The Parent Company and EPPI signed two JVA for the development of two
propertics under ‘Real estate under joint venture (JV) agreement’ by the Group
and Parent Company with book values of 1.2 billion, EPPI and the Group are

under common contrel. Thesc two projects are among the Bank’s strategies in
reducing its non-performing assets.

The nature of the transactions is purely joint venturc undertaking where the risks
and benefits are shared by both parties based on the agreed parameters. Fxit

mechanisms and warranties were provided in the JVA to protect the intcrests of
both parties.

The Parent Company contributed the aforementioned properties into the JV as
approved by BSP. EPPI, on the other hand, contributed its resourccs and technical
expertise for the completion of the said JV. The Parent Company is prohibited to
contribute funds for the development of the JV. Hence, there are no receivables
from each party with respect to the JV,

Transactions with Retirement Pians

Management of the retirement funds of the Group and the Parent Company is
handled by the PNB Trust Banking Group (TBG). As of December 31, 2013 and

December 31, 2012, the fair values and carrying values of the funds amounted to
1.9 billion for the Parent Company and 1.3 billion, respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank adheres to the highest principles of good corporate governance as embodied

in its Amended By-Laws and Articles of Incorporation, Code of Conduct and
Corporate Governance Manual. It subscribes to the philosophy of integrity,
accountability and transparency in its manner of doing business; dcaling fairly with its
clients, investors, stockholders, the communitics affected by the Bank’s activities and
its various publics. The Bank espouses professionalism among its Board of Directors,
cxecutives and employees of the Bank in managing the company, its subsidiaries and
affiliates; and respect for laws and regulations. The Bank practices a philosophy of
rational checks and balances and adopts a structured approach to its operating
processes.

The Bank operations is managed through an established organizational structurc with
adequate policies and procedures embodied in manuals approved by management and
board committees and the Board, These manuals are subjected to periodic review and
update to be consistent with the new laws and regulations and generally conform to
international best practices. The Bank has adopted the Revised Corporate Governance
Manual aligned with recenily issued regulatory guidelines and new reportorial
disclosures for entities within the group structure and significant transactions among
related partics with particular focus on the Related Party Transaction (RPT) Policy.
This is in accordance with the Revised Code of Corporate Governance and Sccurities
Regulation Code issucd by SEC.

The Bank is a proud recipient for two consecutive years (2011-2012) of the Silver
Award for good corporate governance from the Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD),
in recognition of the institution’s existing organization composed of dedicated
corporate directors and senior management committed to the professional practice of
corporate directorship in line with global principles of modern corporate governance.

Board of Directors

PNB is lcd by its Board of Directors consisting of fifteen directors. The Board is
primarily responsible for approving and overseeing the implementation of the Bank’s
strategic objectives, risk management strategy, corporate governance, and corporate
values.

Compliance with the highest standards in corporate governance principally starts with
the Board of Directors which has the responsibility to foster the long-term success of
the Bank and secure its sustained competitiveness and profitability in accordance with
its fiduciary responsibility. In the same manner, every employce of the entire
organization is expected to embrace the same degree of commitment to the desired
level of corporate standards.

The Board of Directors is elected annually by the stockholders, The Board of

Directors comprises fifteen members, including five Independent Directors. The
Board represents a combination of highly qualificd business professionals, former

163



bank presidents, and individuals with distinct finance, audit and legal competencies,
with each director adding value and exercising independent judgment.

The Board of Directors undergo continuing training in corporate governance and
collectively hold a broad range of expertise and rclated banking experience that
provide value to the strengthening and upholding of good corporate governance
practices in the Bank. In the Board, two directors were inducted “fellow™ by the
Philippine Institute of Corporate Directors and one director certified as a “fellow” by
the Institute of Corporate Directors of Australia, in recognition of their distingnished

reputation and commitment to the highest standards of corporate governance
principles, ethics and social responsibility.

Independent Directors

In carrying out their rcsponsibilities, the directors must act prudently and cxercise
independent judgment while encouraging transparcncy and accountability. The Bank
has four independent directors representing at least 27% of the Board, beyond the 20%
requirement of the SEC. Of the fifteen dircctors, Chairperson Florencia G, Tarriela,
and Messrs. Felix Enrico R. Alfiler, Deogracias N. Vistan were confirmed
independent directors by the BSP while Mr. Cecilio K. Pedro is awaiting approval as
independent director from the appropriate regulatory bodies. Mr. Federico C. Pascual
was nominated as independent director, to be elected as such in the upcoming annual
meeting of the stockholders.

Recognizing the importance of the role of independent directors, the Board has elected
the independent directors to act as Chairman of the Board, Board Credit & Policy
Committee (formerly Executive Committee), Corporate
Governance/Nomination/Remuneration  Committee, Board ICAAP  Steering
Committee, Board Overseas Offices Oversight Committee, Board Audit and
Compliance Committee, Trust Committce and Board Oversight Related Party
Transaction Committee. The independent directors are also members of the Risk
Oversight Committee wherein the Chairman is a non-executive director and former
president of a government bank with universal banking license. In these Board
Committees, the five independent directors play an active rolc in the formulation of
the business strategies and priorities of the Bank as stipulated in the Board approved
Five Year Strategic Business Plan of the Bank, its subsidiaries and affiliates. The
Board and the Committees continue to review and strengthen the corporate
governance policies to adopt consistency in the corporate governance framework in
the Bank, its subsidiaries and affiliates.

Chairperson of the Board

The Chairperson of the Board is Florencia G. Tarriela who assumed the position in
2001, As an Independent Director, Florencia G. Tatricla is the Chairperson of the
Board Corporate Govemnance/Nomination/Remuneration Committee and the Board
ICAAP Steering Committee; Vice-Chairperson of the Board Credit and Policy
Committee and seats a member of the Risk Oversight Committee, Board Audit and
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Compliance Committee, Board Overseas Oversight Committee and the Board
Oversight Related Party Transaction (RPT) Commnittee.

The Chairperson of the Board and the President & Chief Executive Officer are
complimentary. This relationship provides appropriate balance of power, increased
accountability, independent decision making by the Board and the management
responsibility to execute strategic plans of the Bank.

Board Committees

The ten (10) board committees have been instrumental in setting the tone for the
cotporate governance practices of the Bank. In 2013 and 2014, two new board

committees were established to provide focus on two significant business prioritics of
the PNB Group.

* The Board Credit & Policy Committee (formerly Executive Committee) was
created to perform the functions and duties as the Board may confer upon it in
accordance with law and the By-Laws of the Bank.

» The Board Credit Committee was created to review, discuss, endorse and/or
approve management recommendations, updates and report on credit matters and
to provide flexibility to respond to time-sensitive matters as well as 1o facilitate

the approval of certain corporate actions within the authority limits determined by
the Board.

¢ The Board Oversight RPT Committee was created in August 2013 to assist the
Board in performing its oversight functions in monitoring and ensuring
transparency to eliminate potential conflicts of interest of management, Board
members and sharcholders.

+ The Board IT Governance Committee was created in March 2014 to oversee the

development of the short-term and long-term Enterprise IT Strategic Plans of the
Bank, its subsidiaries and affiliates.

* The Board Audit and Compliance Committee has oversight responsibility relating
to the Integrity of the Bank’s [inancial statements, internal controls and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

e The Board Overseas Offices Oversight Committee was created to provide
oversight on the international operations and to preserve the long-term viability of
the overseas franchise licenses.

¢ The Risk Oversight Committee has the primary task to assist the Board in the

management of the risks the Bank is exposed to and development of risk
management strategies to prevent losses and minimize financial impact of losses.
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* ‘The Corporate Governance/Nomination/Remuneration Committee ensures the
Board’s effectiveness and adherence to corporate govemance principles and
guidelines and the selection of members of the Board and senior executives of the
Bank, as well as the appointment of the members of the Board committees.

¢ The Board ICAAP Stecring Committee provides active oversight on the consistent
adoption of the Bank’s ICAAP Program and performs periodic evaluation and
approval of the capital planning, risk assessment policies and procedures.

¢ The Trust Committee provides direction for the trust business and management of
trust assets, fiduciary accounts, investments and trust services.

The board committee meetings are held generally on a monthly basis or special board
committee meetings are called as often as neccssary. The board committee sccretariats
are responsible to ensure that the regular agenda of the mcetings, attendance of
members and resource persons are communicated prior to meetings and that
discussions are properly recorded and endorsed to the Board for approval.

Operations Management

The responsibility of managing the day-to-day operations of the Bank and
implementing the major business plans rest on the President and Chief Executive
Ofticer. Critical issues, policies and guidelines are deliberated in the pertinent
management committees: Senior Management Committee, Assel and Liability
Committee, Senior Management Credit Committee, IT Management Committee, Non-
Performing Assets Committee, Acquired Assets Disposal Committee, Promotions
Committee, Operations Committee, Product Committee, Bids and Awards
Committee, Information Technology Evaluation Committee, Senior Management
ICAAP Steering Committee, AML Review Committee and the Integration Monitoring
Committee. Comumittee meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures open
communication, meaningtul participation and timely resolution of issues.

The business plans, significant issues and its resolutions are cscalated to the level of
the Board as part of a strong culture of accountability and transparency embedded in
the entire organization.

Most of the management committees have the President as the Chairman with the
members comprised of senior management of the Bank and key officers of the various
business segments, the Risk Management Group, Office of the Chicf Legal Counsel,
Internal  Audit Group and Global Compliance Group. The composition and
appointment of senior officers in the different management committees are assessed
periodically and reorganized as necessary in line with the business priorities.

Compliance System

The Bank actively promotes the safety and soundness of its operations through a
compliance system that fully adheres to banking laws, rules and regulations and o
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maintain an environment that is governed by high standards and best practices of good
corporate governance. This is achieved primarily through the formulation of policies
and procedures, an organizational structure and an effective compliance program that
will support the Bank’s compliance system.

The Global Compliance Group, which reports directly to the Board Audit and
Compliance Comunittee, is primarily responsible for promoting compliance with the
laws and regulations of the different jurisdictions, corporate policies and procedures
and international best practices,

The Chief Compliance Officer has direct responsibility for the effective
implementation and management of the enterprise compliance system covering the
Parent Bank, its subsidiaries and affiliates. To further strengthen good corporate
govemnance, the Board of Directors appointcd the Chief Compliance Officer as the
Corporate Governance Exccutive tasked to assist the Board and the Corporate
Governance/Nomination/Remuneration Committee in the discharge of their corporate
governance oversight functions.

Global Compliance Group continues to evolve the Bank’s Compliance System with
the complement of five major divisions, namely: Global AML Compliance Division,
Regulatory Compliance Division, Business Vehicle Management Compliance
Division, (rlobal Compliance Testing Review Division and the newly upgraded
Corporate Governance Division. The new division provides support to the Corporate
Governance/Nomination/Remuneration Committee and the Board Related Party
Transaction Committee through the Chief Compliance Officer as the designated
Corporate Governance Executive.

The Bank's existing Compliance Program defincs the seven (7) key elements of an
effective compliance framework, with a proactive Board and executive level
oversight, effective compliance organizational structure, standardized policics and
procedures across all businesses, periodic monitoring and assessment, robust MIS and
compliance reporting, comprehensive compliance and AML awarcness training and
indepcndent compliance testing reviews. The Compliance Program also incorporates
the new policies, laws and regulations and enhancements to corporate standards of
which Philippine National Bank, as the Parent Bank, and its local and foreign
subsidiarics and affiliates, are required to be fully aware. The Compliance Program
has been implemented consistently in the various bank units, branches and business
vehicle entitics.

The Bank’s AML/CFT Policy Guidelines and Money Laundering and Tetrorist
Financing Prevention Manuals are two major manuals approved by the Board in
December 2013.  The revised AML/CFT Manuals has incorporated FATCA
compliance in preparation for the US repulatory reportorial requirements effective
2015. The Bank is fully committed to adhere to existing and new AML laws, rules,
regulations, and implementing guidelines issued by both Philippine and foreign
regulators,
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The Bank has updated policies and procedures embracing the compliance framework,
the corporate governance guidelines and the AML Risk Rating System issued by BSP
and foreign regulators on AML/CFT as well as FATCA laws and regulations. With a
comprehensive compliance system effectively implemented enterprise-wide, there has
been no material deviation noted by the Chief Compliance Qfficer.

168



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audited Financial Statements of the Bank for the Years ended 31 December
2011, 2012 and 2013 are included as exhibits.
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EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION

All expenses relative to the issuance and listing of the Shares was for the account of
PNB, estimated as follows:

Nature : Amount
SEC Registration Fees P 8.061,662.18
Documentary Stamp Taxes 84,792,500.,00
Cost of Printing 50,000.00
Listing Fees 33,248 660.00

There are no premiums to be paid by PNB on any policy to insure or indemnify
director or officers against any liabilities they may incur in the registration, offering or
sale of these securities.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Code, this registration statement is signed
on behalf of the registrant by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City

of__fg_.[pub cmﬁrhl 30,2014,

By:

OMAR . MIER
President & Chief Etecutive Officer

ZACARIAS E. GALLARDO DORIS 5. TE
FSVP & Chief Financial Officer Corporate Secretary

APR 3 0 201
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of

2014 affiants exhibiting to me their Competent Evidences of Identity, as follows:

NAMES mpetent Evidence of Identity/D lace of Issue
OMAR BYRON T. MIER Phil. Passport No. XX377338 /May 21, 2009/ DFA Manila
ZACARIAS B, GALLARDQ Phil. Passport No, EB1931075 /February 16, 2011/ DFA
Manila
DORIS 5. TE ‘ Phil. Passport No. EB0993396/3¢pt. 20, 2010/ DFA Mhni

Doc. No. &9 ¥
Page No. &/
Book No. Igf
Series of 2014
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EXHIBIT
No. Exhibit Description
1 Publication of Notice/Affidavit of Publication
2 Plan and Articles of Merger as approved by the SEC
3 Amended Articles of Incorporation and By-laws
4 Notarized Curriculum Vitag and Recent Photographs of Officers and
Directors
5 Authorization to the Commission to access Registrant’s Bank Account
6 Copy of Board Resolution approving the securities offering and authorizing
the Filing of the Registration Statement
7 Verified Resolution of the Board of Directors approving the disclosures
contained in the RS and assuming liability for the information contained
therein : ‘
8 Secretary’s Certificate authorizing:
* Officers to sign the Registration Statement
*  Access to bank accounts
* Adoption of undertaking to allow SEC to resolve conflicting issue
regarding independent directors
9 Secretary’s Certificatc on the adoption of resolutions with respect to:
* Manual of Corporate Governance
-« Fitamnd Proper Rule
10 Material Contracts
11 Annual Report
2 March 31, 2013 Audited Financial Statements
13 June 30, 2013 Reviewed Financial Statements
14 List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant
15 Consent of Experts and Independent Counsel
16 Fairness Opinion rendered by UBS Investments Philippines, Inc,
17 Valuation Report rendered by ING Bank as to valuation of the PNB shares
and the exchange ratio
18 PNR Memorandum dated 13 September 2013 re: Approving authorities in the

absence of Mr. Omar Byron T. Mier
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